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HEARING ON THE REAUTHORIZATION OF THE
JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PRE-
VENTION ACT OF 1974: PROVISION OF SERV-
ICES TO GIRLS WITHIN THE JUVENILE JUS-
TICE SYSTEM

MONDAY, MARCH 16, 1992

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Downey, CA.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:04 a.m., at the
Board Room, Los Angeles County 'Office of Education, Imperial
Highway, Downey, California, Hon. Matthew G. Martinez, Chair-
man, presiding.

Members present: Representatives Martinez and Barrett.
Staff present: Roger McClellan, co-staff director; Terry Deshler,

legislative assistant; Jennifer Amstutz, staff assistant; and Lynn
Selmser, minority professional staff member.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Good morning and welcome. We are de-
lighted to be here this morning to meet with people who are con-
cerned about the issues that we are concerned about.

I extend my personal gratitude to those of you who have joined
us as observers and to those of you who have joined us as wit-
nesses. We express our sincere gratitude for your taking the time
to do that.

We are here today for one of a series of hearings on the Juvenile
Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974. Many of you know
it is scheduled to expire this year, and we are in the process of re-
authorizing it.

The Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, known in
short as JJDPA, authorizes a broad range of activities to prevent
and treat the delinquent behavior of at-risk youth. And as we have
traveled into many places to hold hearings so far, we find that the
situation as it exists today is no longer exactly that as it was in
1974, but this highly successful program to this point has been re-
sponsible, in my estimation, for a significant drop in the number of
youths who are inappropriately held in detention and has reduced
the number of juveniles in adult jails and lockups, which was one
of the initial intents of the law.

The Act has aided in developing innovative and highly effective
programs, such as family preservation services and private/public
partnerships, which aid in the prevention of juvenile delinquency.



Youths have been redirected from delinquent behavior and deten-
tion centers into programs that provide specialized services in
family- or community-based programs.

In today's hearing we are going to address female delinquency
and the provisions of services to girls under this Act. There are
many of us that believe that we have not committed enough re-
sources to that particular issue. There are many of us who realize
that problems for young ladies are increasing, ever increasing, in
our society and they are becoming more prone to end up in gangs,
in crime, and with other problems that they have always suffered.

Girls committing the juvenile crimes and offenses often are ig-
nored, even though they account today for a significant percentage
of the juvenile delinquent population. However, generally, they
commit different kinds of crimes than the boys, crimes where the
girls are more a threat to themselves than they are to the commu-
nity.

A high percentage of girls committing delinquency offenses are
committing status offenses such as running away, anti-social be-
havior and cutting school. In fact, studies show that one-fifth of the
girls arrested are arrested simply for running away, and even
though there are four times more arrests of boys than girls every
year, girls account for 56 percent of the arrests for running away
and 33 percent of the arrests for curfew violations.

Even though there is a difference in types of offenses committed
between boys and girls, on the whole we are not providing special-
ized services for girls in the juvenile justice system. Therefore, they
are receiving less and unequal treatment than the boys when they
are arrested. Girls are committing juvenile offenses, but they are
not getting the services to prevent those offenses or to rehabilitate
them.

We treat our female juvenile delinquents differently than we
treat our boys. We try to protect them. If a young woman has run
away and the authorities think she is sexually or physically abused
at home, they will not return her to the home. But they do not
want to turn her out on the streets where she can be exploited.

Without any program specifically for girls, there is only one al-
ternative. The authorities put her into juvenile detention with a
valid court order to protect her, and keep her there longer than
they would any boy. I wonder why, why are there no other alterna-
tives than youth jail for her?

Our juvenile services have been developed to protect the commu-
nity from violent young boys. Girls, who are hurting themselves
through their juvenile offenses are not getting served. Instead, the
girls are being locked up.

In the last 20 years this country has made several big steps to-
wards ridding the system of large gender inequalities, but that is
not true for the juvenile justice system. And the inequality of serv-
ices for boys and girls that they encounter at a young age is some-
thing that will affect their development and their outlook for the
rest of their lives.

Historically, people have thought of juvenile delinquents as boys,
young hoodlums, creating trouble in the community, and many
programs address the problems connected with male delinquency.
But there is a large number of girl delinquents out there as well



and we need to gear our juvenile justice programs to address their
needs and the causes of their delinquency the same way we address
the boys' needs.

At this time, before I turn to calling up the first panel, I would
like to turn to my colleague, who has come a long way from Ne-
braska to be with us, because he is desperately interested in this
situation and committed himself to helping in every way that he
can. Mr. Barrett?

Mr. BARRETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is certainly a pleas-
ure for me to be here in sunny Southern California today. To para-
phrase the character of Dorothy in the Wizard of Oz, I do not think
I am in Nebraska anymore.

There are probably more people living in a 20-block radius of this
location in LA than reside in 62,000 square miles in my legislative
district, congressional district, in Nebraska, the western two-thirds
of my State.

The topic of this hearing this morning, I guess, is girls' services
or what many say are the lack thereof.

When I began to research this issue, I found some very startling
statistics which I would like to share with the subcommittee, Mr.
Chairman. Girls constituted in 1989 13.5 percent of all youths held
in public institutions. However, girls made up 30 percent of those
held in private institutions. This was a 25 percent increase in the
number of girls in private institutions in 1989.

Girls tended to be institutionalized for status offenses, like run-
ning away from home, more often than boys; 17 percent compared
to 3 percent in 1987. However, boys were more likely to be institu-
tionalized for serious personal or property damage offenses than
girls who committed the same offense.

Perhaps the most troubling statistic, at least I have heard, is the
length of stay in institutions for both boys and girls. That is in-
creasing. Youths in short-term public facilities tended to stay in
these facilities at least 7 percent longer in 1984 than they did in
1982. As well, there was a 10 percent increase in the length of stay
for youths from 157 days to 174 days.

I guess a promising bit of news, if one wants to call it that, ap-
pears to be the fact that the number of girls going to detention cen-
ters is dropping. Since the passage of the Juvenile Justice Act in
1974, the number of girls in detention facilities has dropped 25 per-
cent. Mr. Chairman, the youth experts in my State tell me that one
of the problems facing youth is the system itself. That is the way
they tend to be institutionalized quicker than really ought to
happen.

None of that is borne home quicker than the fact that girls
tended to be institutionalized for running away from home, as I
said, more often than boys. They tell me that a really successful
program is one which tries to reunite the family the quickest and
with follow-up counseling and review. I ani please to hear that re-
storing the family, when possible, is the most successful form of
treatment whether one is a boy or a girl.

There are some cases when that is not possible, of course. And I
guess it comes down to the government, mainly State government,
I guess, has to step in, look out and provide for the welfare of the
boy or the girl. I guess that is where we come in, Mr. Chairman.



While we may be removed from the core of the problem through
various bureaucracies of the State and Federal Government, we
still have a responsibility to insure that our kids are not somehow
abandoned or that someone does not put them in a room and throw
away the key.

As I stated in early hearings, while we cannot legislate love, we
can certainly facilitate it. If that takes a little extra Federal spend-
ing, Mr. Chairman, for a fiscal conservative it is a little tough for
me to say, but if it takes a little investment in our youth to reduce
their later dependence on the justice system, so be it.

I am not talking about extraterrestrial spending, but I am talk-
ing about some wise and well-planned-out spending, of course. So,
Mr. Chairman, I look forward to hearing from these witnesses
today and learning more about the challenges and the solutions
that are facing girls here in LA County. I hope you folks have some
suggestions for the subcommittee to consider, because I think we
are all open to ideas.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Barrett. I quite agree with

you. Coming from local government, I learned to be fiscally con-
servative myself, but I also realized, and I guess you do, too, being
from a business background, that sometimes you invest money to
save money.

And with youth, we need to invest that money to save that
money. It is a lot cheaper, I think, to spend money up front to redi-
rect their lives, give them some sense of self-worth and make them
realize that they can achieve anything that they set their minds to
and that there is somebody going to be there to help them, that
will not get into the other problems that give us a lot more cost.

I have always said it is a lot cheaper to educate and motivate
young people than it is to incarcerate them. And I believe it is true
in this particular situation.

I would like to begin with our witnesses. And today those wit-
nesses will address different aspects of this issue.

Our first panel is comprised of Dr. Libby Deschenes, of the Rand
Corporation and Ms. Rita Redaelli from Girls, Incorporated, who
will give us a national perspective on girls and juvenile justice.
Would you both come forward and take seats there at the table?

Pull the microphone over to you close so that we can be sure to
hear your testimony. Dr. Deschenes, we will start with you.

STATEMENT OF LIBBY DESCHENES, RAND CORPORATION,

LOS ANGELES, CA
Ms. DESCHENES. I must thank my colleague, Dr. Meda Chesney-

Lind, at the University of Hawaii, for preparing this testimony,
and I have added my own opinions to this testimony.

About one-quarter of the young people arrested in the United
States for juvenile delinquency each year are girls. I am going to
echo a lot of what Chairman Martinez and Mr. Barrett have said.
When people discuss the problem of delinquency, it is generally
about boys. As the topic of the hearing today suggests, that situa-
tion is changing.



There is renewed interest in women's issues, and the long-ne-
glected problems of girls in trouble are finally receiving attention.
Today there are some answers to the questions; who is the typical
female delinquent, what causes her to get into trouble and what
happens to her if she is caught.

Contemporary work on female delinquency suggests that while
there are many similarities between male and female delinquency,
there are also very important differences. For example, official
records, such as the uniform crime reports, show that girls tend to
be arrested for less serious offenses than boys. One half of girls ar-
rested are charged with larceny theft and runaway.

Self-report data from surveys of youth show fewer differences be-
tween boys and girls. There is a similarity between the prevalence
of the types of offenses but a difference in the frequency. Recent
longitudinal juvenile studies in Denver, Colorado and Rochester,
New York have shown a co-occurrence of delinquency and drug use
which is particularly noteworthy for girls.

These longitudinal juvenile studies in Denver and Rochester also
found that sexually active youth are more likely to be engaged in
drug and alcohol abuse. This is especially true among girls who
have been pregnant.

With some exceptions, theories of female delinquency use similar
explanations as theories of male delinquency. According to social
control theory, weak attachment to parents and poor parenting
practices are related to delinquency among both males and fe-
males. However, there are two very important factors in the theo-
retical explanations of female delinquency; and these are child
abuse and victimization.

In a Michigan training school it was reported to me that up to 90
percent of the girls had been abused. Victimization is now a central
issue in the treatment and rehabilitation of these girls. Up to 70
percent of girls in one runaway shelter, in comparison to 38 per-
cent of boys in another study, had been sexually abused. Other
studies of runaways and those found in shelters also show a lack of
a functional family amongst both boys and girls.

Girls have often been arrested for stealing food or for stealing
money for food. We see that, although girls and boys may commit
crimes for similar reasons, they are treated differently by our juve-
nile justice system. There is some question of gender bias in our
juvenile justice processing.

Researchers have noted the predominance of paternalism in the
treatment of females by the juvenile justice system. Females are
more likely to be protected and their sexual behavior monitored.
The focus of much of this attention is on the status offenses com-
mitted by females, as we have said: running away, incorrigibility,
and being beyond parental control.

In earlier years virtually all of the girls in juvenile court were
charged with these type of offenses. In 1990 over half of those ar-
rested for running away from home were girls. In 1985 only 15 per-
cent of those in juvenile court for criminal offenses were girls.
Many of the offenses committed by females, such as runaway and
prostitution, are often seen as precursors of more serious problems;
this gives them reason to lock up the girls.



The significant role played by status offenses in girls' delinquen-
cy is a major reason why those most concerned with the diversion
and the deinstitutionalization of youth arrested for these offenses
must consider, as this hearing does, the special needs for girls and
the urgent needs for programs that deal directly and specifically
with these needs.

Girls who find their way into the juvenile justice system have
many problems that are uniquely tied to their status as girls. His-
torically, the juvenile justice system has not taken girls' problems
seriously and instead locked them up when they refused to stay
home.

Unfortunately, contemporary judicial responses to girls in trou-
ble still leave much to be desired. Despite over 15 years of Federal
efforts to encourage the deinstitutionalization of status offenders,
there are still many girls who are inappropriately detained and in-
carcerated. Ten times more girls than boys are institutionalized in
training schools for status offenses, according to data from the 1987
youth in custody and detention and the correctional facility census.

Fo- detention centers, the States differ greatly in their rates. In
24 of the States, 70 percent of the girls incarcerated for offenses
are for offenses other than a Part I offense or serious crime. This is
compared to only two States for boys. Three percent of boys are
held for status offenses in comparison to 20 percent of the girls.

There is a growing belief that girls entering detention centers
and training schools have more violent and chronic prior offense
histories. These girls are being incarcerated in the deep end of the
system much more frequently than boys, perhaps due to the lack of
community-based programs or to attitudes and paternalism.

While the de-institutionalization trend has slowed in some areas
of the country, the number of girls in detention has increased by 10
percent over the decade, from 1979 to 1989, as have the arrests for
runaway and curfew violations. Pressures to re-institutionalize
status offenders should be strongly resisted.

-irls remain all but invisible in programs for youth and in the
li rature available to those who work with youths. Only 5 percent
of federally funded projects was directed at girls in the last few
years and only 6 percent of the moneys for juvenile justice was
spent on girls. "What is needed," says one director, "are more pro-
grams for pregnant teenagers. And in addition there is more need
for programs that are gender specific for females."

What are these specific needs of young women who come into
contact with the juvenile justice system? The programs should ad-
dress their unique problems and deal with their anger, their vic-
timization, the reality that they have received physical and sexual
abuse in their lives, the problems of pregnancy and motherhood,
and the problems of drug and alcohol dependency. There is a need
to develop a sense of self-efficacy amongst these women and to em-
power them to make their own changes.

National efforts to de-institutionalize status offenders have re-
sulted in significant progress. The last decade has shown a reduc-
tion in certain States and there is more interest in seeking alterna-
tives to incarceration for girls. Programs like therapeutic foster
homes, group living situations, homes for teen mothers and their
children, and independent living arrangements are proven, success-
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ful alternatives to locking up troubled and victimized girls. These
efforts need to be supported and expanded.

In short, delinquent girls share many problems in common with
their male counterparts. They are young, poor and often members
of minority groups. They also have problems, notably child sexual
abuse, that are directly related to their gender. Programs to meet
the unique needs of girls are still on short supply in most States,
despite the large number of girls that could benefit from their serv-
ices.

Stereotypes of youth in trouble as being all male have contribut-
ed to the neglect of girls' very real problems, leaving them with
few alternatives other than crime. Attention to their situation is
long overdue and will make a major contribution to solving female
delinquency.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Meda Chesney-Lind follows:]
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Testimony 2
by

Meda Chesney-Lind
Director, Women's Studies Program

University of Hawaii at Manoa

When people talk about the problem of delinquency, they are genially thinking
about delinquent boys. Yet, about a quarter of the young people arrested for juvenile
offenses every year in the United States are girls. Who is the typical female delinquent?
What causes her to get into trouble? What happens to her if she is caught? Until recently,
few people could supply answers to these questions. Now that situation is changing, as
the topic of this hearing clearly indicates. A renewed interest in and concern about girl's
and women's issues has meant that the long neglected problems of girls in trouble are
finally receiving attention.

Contemporary work on female delinquency suggests that while there are many
similarities between male and female delinquency, there are also important differences.
First, and most importantly, girls tend to be arrested for offenses that are less serious than

those committed by boys. About half of all the girls that are arrested are apprehended for
one of two offenses: larceny theft (which for girls is often shoplifting) and running away
from home. Boys delinquency also involves many minor offenses, but the crimes they
commit are more varied.1

One of the two major "girls offenses"--running away from home--points up another
significant aspect of female delinquency. Girls are quite often arrested for offenses that are
not actual crimes like robbery or burglary. Instead, they are activities like running away
from home, being incorrigible, or beyond parental control. These non-criminal "status
offenses" have long played a major role in bringing girls into the juvenile justice system.
In fact, in the early years of the juvenile justice system virtually all the girls in juvenile court
were charged with these offenses. 2 The significant role played by status offenses in girls'
delinquency is also a major reason why those most concerned with diversion and
deinstitutionalization of youth arrested for these offenses must consider, as this hearing
does, the special needs of girls; and the urgent need for programs that deal directly and
specifically with these needs.

IFederal Bureau of Investigation. 1990. Crime in the United States 1990. Washington, D.C.: Government
Printing Office.

2 Chesney-Lind, M. and Shelden, R. 1992. "Girls, Delinquency, and Juvenile Justice Pacific Grove:
Brooks/Cole.
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Currently, status offenses (particularly running away from home and

ungovernability) continue to play a major role in female delinquency. In 1990 over half

(56.5%) of those arrested for running away from home were girls.3 Moreover, many of

the girls charged with status offenses stay in the juvenile justice system. In 1985, the last

year for which we have data, girls were a 63% of those appearing for juvenile courts

charged with running away from home, and they are about half (42%) of all youth charged

with all status offenses; by contrast girls were only 15% of those in juvenile court for

criminal offenses.4

Why are girls more likely to be arrested than boys for running away from home?

There are no simple answers to this question. Studies of actual delinquency (not simply

arrests) show that girls and boys run away from home in about equal numbers. There is

some evidence to suggest that parents and police may be responding differently to the same

behavior. Parents may be calling the police when their daughters do not come home, and

police may be more likely to arrest a female than a male runaway youth.

Another reason for different responses to running away from home speaks to

differences in the reasons that boys and girls have for running away. Girls are, for

example, much more likely than boys to be the victims of child sexual abuse with some

experts estimating that roughly 70% of the victims of child sexual abuse are girls.5 Not

surprisingly, the evidence is also suggesting a link between this problem and girl's

delinquency--particularly running away from home.

Studies of girls on the streets or in court populations are showing high rates of both

sexual and physical abuse. A study of a runaway shelter in Toronto found, for example,

that 73% of the female runaways and 38% of the males had been sexually abused. This

same study found that sexually abused female runaways were more likely than their non-

abused counterparts the engage in delinquent or criminal activities such as substance abuse,

3Federal Bureau of Investigation. 1991. Crime in the United States 1990. Washington, D.C.: Government

Printing Office, p. 183.
4Snyder, H. et a]. 1989. Juvenile Court Statistics 1985. Washington, D.C.: U. S. Department of Justice.
5Finkelhor, D. and Baron, L. 1986. *Risk Factors for Child Sexual Abuse." Journal of Interpersonal
Violence 1: 43-71.
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petty theft, and prostitution. No such pattern was found among the male runaways.6

Studies of youths in juvenile court populations are also showing large numbers of abused
girls. An Arkansas study of girls adjudicated as delinquent found that 53% ha'i been
sexually abused, 25% reported scm from beatings, and 38% recalled bleeding from
abuse.

7

Girls on the run from these kinds of homes clearly need help. For many years,
however, their accounts of abuse were ignored, and they were institutionalized in detention
centers and training schools as delinquents if they refused to stay at home. Girls accused
of incorrigibility where also quite likely to be locked up. The reasons for this harsh
response are varied. One major problem that girls encounter in the juvenile justice system
is a product of their difficulties with their parents. Typically, when a boy is arrested, his
parents may be upset with him, but they will generally support him in court. By contrast,
girls charged with status offenses have been arrested and in court precisely because they are
having problems at home are were on the streets. In this situation, their parents are not their
allies and may, in fact, be their prosecutors. In addition, courts ze often left with few

alternatives other than incarceration since placements for youth in these situations have
historically been in very short supply and woefully inadequate to dealing with the
psychological problems of troubled youth. The net result was that girls often ended up in
juvenile institutions for non-criminal behavior, while their male counterparts did not.

In short, girls who fimd their way into the juvenile justice system have many
problems that they share with their male counterparts, but they also have problems,
particularly sexual abuse, that are uniquely tied to their status as girls. Historically, the
juvenile justice system has not taken girl's problems seriously, and instead locked them up
when they refused to stay at home.

Unfortunately, contemporary judicial responses to girls in trouble still leave much
to be desired. Despite over fifteen years of federal efforts to encourage
deinstitutionalization of status offenders, for example, there are still many girls who are

6 McCornack, A., Janus, M.D. and Burgess, A.W. 1986. "Runaway Youths and Sexual Victimizaton:
Gender Differences in an Adolescent Runaway Population." ChildAbuse andNeglect 10: 387-395.

7Mouzabuas, C. M. 1981. *An Inquiry into the Problem of Child Abuse and Juvenile Delinquency." In
Exploring the Relationship Between child Abuse and Delinquency, edited by R. J. Hunner and Y. E.
Walkers. Montclair, NJ: Allenheld, Osmun.
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inappropriately detained and incarcerated. A recent study of the nation's detention centers

revealed that in 1989 while only 3% of boys were in these facilities for status offenses,

over 15% of girls were being held on these charges. The nation's training schools also

have an over-representation of g-ris charged with minor offenses or status offenses. These

data reveal that only 14% of girls are incarcerated for serious violent crime while 13% are

incarcerated for status offenses. Many girls are incarcerated for simply for non-violent

property crimes.8

These figures, while cause for concern, do represent some very good news to the

supporters of deinstitutionalization. Prior to the passage of the Juvenile Justice and

Delinquency Act of 1974, nearly three-quarters (7 1%) of the girls and 23% of the boys in

the nation's training schools were incarcerated for status offenses.9 Between 1974 and

1979 the number of girls admitted to public detention facilities and training schools dropped

by 40%. Since then, however, the deinstitutionalization trend has slowed in some areas of

the country, particularly at the detention level. Between 1979 and 1989, for example, the

number of girls held in these same public facilities actually increased by 10%10 These
figures have also been accompanied by sharp increases in the last decade (1981-1990) of

arrests of girls for runaway (up 19%) and curfew violations (up 36.6%). Again, these

figures represent a shift away from declines in arrests of youth for status offenses that were

seen in the late seventies. Taken together, these trends suggest that strong pressure may be

brought to bear on policy makers to reinstitutionalize status offenders.

These pressures should be strongly resisted. Girls needs were never fully

considered when initial efforts to deinstitutionalize began in the nineteen seventies. Indeed,

after over a decade of "deinstitutionalization efforts," girls remain in the words of one

researcher "all but invisible in programs for youth and in the literature available to those

8Schwartz, I.M. Willis, D.A. and Battle J. 1991. "Juvenile Arrest, Detention, and Incarceration Trends
1979-1989." University of Michigan: Center for the Study of Youth Policy.

9 Schwartz, I.M. Steketee, M. and Schneider, V. 1990. "Federal Juvenile Justice Policy and the Incarceration
of Girls: Crime and Delinquency 36:503-520.

1 0Jamieson, K.M and Flanagan, T. (eds). 1987. Sourcebook of Criminal Justice Statistics-.1988.
Washington, D.C.: Department of Justice, p. 390; Flanagan. T. and McGarrell, E.F. Sourcebook of
Criminal Justice Statistics--1985. Washington, D.C.: Department of Justice. p. 517; Allen-Hagen, B.
1991. Children in Custody 1989. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Department of Justice.
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who work with youth."11 A report done in 1975 by the Law Enforcement Assistance
Administration revealed that only 5% of federally funded juvenile delinquency projects
where specifically directed at girls and that only 6% of all local monies for juvenile justice

were spent on girls.12 More recently, an exhaustive study of virtually all program

evaluation studies done since 1950 located reports on some 443 delinquency programs; of

these 34.8% were exclusively male and an additional 42.4% served "mostly males." Only

2.3% of the surveyed programs that explicitly served only girls, and only 5.9% that served
"some males" meaning that most of the programs' participants were girls. 13

What are the specific needs of young women in general, and those who come in

contact with the juvenile justice system either as victims or offenders? Sue Davidson

argues that:

The most desperate need of many young women is to find the economic means of
survival. While females today are still being socialized to believe that their security
lies in marriage and motherhood, surveys of teenage mothers indicate that
approximately 90 percent receive no financial aid from the fathers of their
children.

14

Likewise, a study of homeless youth in Waikiki, 1 5 about half of whom were girls,

revealed that their most urgent needs are housing, jobs, and medical services. Finally, a
survey conducted in a very poor community in Hawaii (Waianae) revealed that pregnant
and parenting teens saw medical care for their children, financial assistance, and child care
as their major needs. Social workers in the same community, by contrast, saw parenting
classes as the girl's most important need, followed by child care, educational and
vocational, and family planning. 16 These findings suggest that while youth understand

I IDavidson. S. 1983. The Second Mile: Contemporary Approaches to Counseling Young Women Tucson:
New Directions for Young Women, p. viii.

12Female Offender Resource Center. 1977, Little Sisters and the Law. Washington, D.C.: American Bar
Association, p. 34.

13Lipsey, M. 1991. "Juvenile Delinquency Treatment: A Meta-Analytic Inquiry into the Variability of
Effects." New York: Russell Sage Foundation (Research Synthesis Committee), p. 58.
14Davidson, p. ix.

15lwamoto, JI. Kameoka, K. and Brasseur, Y.C. 1990. Waikiki Homeless Youth Project: A Report.
Honolulu: Catholic Services to Families.
16 Yumoi. W.C. and Loos, G.P. 1985. "The Perceived Service Needs of Pregnant and Parenting teens and
Adults on the Waianae Coast." Working Paper. Kamehameha Schools, p. 16-17.



7

that economic survival is their most critical need, such is not always the case among those
working with them.

Among other needs that girls programs should address include the following:
dealing with the physical and sexual abuse in their lives (from parents, boyfriends, pimps,
and others), dealing with pregnancy and motherhood, drug and alcohol dependency,
confronting family problems, vocational and career counseling, managing stress, and
developing a sense of efficacy and empowerment Many of these needs are universal and

should be part of programs for all youth. However, it is my contention that most of these
are particularly important for young women.

National efforts to deinstitutionalize status offenders have resulted in significant
progress; the last decade, for example, showed a dramatic reduction in girl's incarceration
in certain states. There is also more interest in seeking alternatives to incarceration for
girls. Programs like therapeutic foster homes, group living situations, homes for teen

mothers and their children, and independent living arrangements have proven successful

alternatives to locking up troubled and victimized girls. 17 These efforts need to be
supported and expanded.

In short, delinquent girls share many problems in common with their male

counterparts; they are young, poor, and often members of minority groups. They also
have problems, notably child sexual abuse, that are directly linked to their gender.

Programs to meet the unique needs of girls are still in short supply in most states, despite

the large numbers of girls that could benefit from their services. Stereotypes of youth in
trouble as all male have contributed to the neglect of girl's very real problems as well
leaving them with few alternatives other than crime. Attention to their situation is long over

due and will make a major contribution to solving female delinquency.

17 For a review of some innovative programs for girls, as well as a more comprehensive review of "what
works" in delinquency prevention and intervention programs, see Chapter 10, "Programs for Girls" in
Chesney-Lind, M. and Shelden, R. 1992. Girls. Delinquency, and Juvenile Justice. Pacific Grove:
Brooks/Cole



Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Dr. Deschenes. We will hear
from Ms. Redaelli and then we will come back with questions.

STATEMENT OF RITA REDAELLI, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, GIRLS,
INC. NEWPORT MESA, CA

Ms. REDAELLI. Thank you. Congressman Martinez, Congressman
Barrett and friends, I am Rita Redaelli, Executive Director of Girls,
Incorporated, Newport Mesa, California, an affiliate of Girls, Incor-
porated, formerly known as Girls Clubs of America.

My statement here today is on behalf of Girls, Incorporated, the
Nation's authority on girls. We in Girls, Incorporated, know that
prejudice, stereotyping and society's low expectations have held
girls back. We are deeply concerned that these factors are often
present in services provided to girls in the Nation's juvenile justice
system.

At Girls, Incorporated, we know how to break traditional pat-
terns, foster girls' leadership and build their confidence. We have
developed and tested programs that build girls' capacity to over-
come the hurdles they face and become successful adults.

Girls, Incorporated is also a national network of nearly 300 cen-
ters located in 122 cities across the Nation, with an estimated com-
bined operating budget of $41 million. Nationally, 2,500 profession-
als and 8,000 volunteers run local centers, providing an average of
30 hours of activities per week, after school, on the weekends and
during the summer.

As of 1991, Girls, Incorporated had a service population of over
one quarter of a million. Just over half of the 6- to 18-year-old girls
served belong to racial and ethnic minority groups, more than
three-quarters come from families earning $20,000 or less and more
than half come from single-parent households, most of which are
headed by women.

Girls, Incorporated has served as a vigorous advocate for girls,
raising concerns about equitable and appropriate treatment. In
1978, just 4 years after passage of the Juvenile Justice and Delin-
quency Prevention Act of 1974, we held a landmark meeting,
Today's Girls, Tomorrow's Women.

This 3-day seminar brought together many of the Nation's ex-
perts in health, education, employment training, juvenile justice
and girls' services. They focused on the need for girls to receive
positive services in the areas of health, including reproductive
health, fitness, education, and employment. These services are nec-
essary in order for girls to move toward productive adulthood and
avoid the risky situations that might bring them before the juve-
nile justice system.

On February 2, 1990, we commented on the Office of Juvenile
Justice and Delinquency Prevention's proposed comprehensive plan
for fiscal year 1990 to that effect and have attached that letter for
the record. While we commended the plan, we also pointed out the
complete neglect of gender difference as relevant to their program
aimed at drug- and alcohol-free youth.



Yet, there are widely different behavioral patterns and societal
pressures and responses of young women and young men on many
of the issues surrounding problems of the juvenile delinquent be-
havior.

The Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974,
without question, removed many status offenders from incarcer-
ation. The record, however, is very uneven among the States, per-
haps suggesting a lack of common understanding of delinquency or
lack of alternatives within the communities.

In summary, young women, who become offenders, frequently
start as victims. When alcohol and/or drugs are added to the mix,
they very often proceed both early sexual activity and interaction
with the juvenile justice system. Beyond these most serious consid-
erations, there is a desperate shortage in this country of positive
developmental experiences for school-age children and young
women reaching the crucial transition of school to work.

Young people need assistance in building their individual assets
or competencies that cannot be provided by schools alone. As a so-
ciety we are placing inordinate pressure on single-parent families,
two-worker families, and especially on low-income families by ex-
pecting them to cope individually with an ailing economy and dis-
integrating neighborhood services.

Much that is available in communities as support for young
people is of a purely recreational nature, and most of it is devel-
oped along a male model. The basic strategy has to be that of posi-
tive youth development available equally to young women and
young men and in gender-appropriate programming. Youth devel-
opment is increasingly being seen as necessary to our Nation's
prosperity. It is also the flip side of delinquency prevention.

For girls and young women this means positive programs that
are sensitive to the particular pressures girls face and that provide
the skills and resources they need to cope in an equitable world.
Girls need to value themselves. They need to practice thinking of
themselves as valuable, confident and competent.

Girls need nurture, safety, support, approval and acceptance.
They need non-judgmental relationships. Girls need role models to
emulate and advocates to champion their causes. They need rela-
tionships with adults who expect them to achieve as well as with
adults who make demands on their behalf. Girls need information,
skills, strategies and resources for making decisions, solving prob-
lems, meeting their own needs and leading others.

Girls need close friends and positive relationships. Girls need to
be heard. Girls, Incorporated has developed programs and conduct-
ed research in many pertinent areas. Most recently we have pub-
lished the results of an extensive evaluation of our preventing ado-
lescent pregnancy program.

Operation SMART excites girls about pursuing science, math and
technology. In Friendly PEERsuasion, a research-based program,
girls acquire leadership skills to avoid the hazards of alcohol, tobac-
co and other drugs and to convince younger girls to also avoid
these hazards.



A major step forward in the reauthorization of JJDPA would be
emphasis on increased funding for programs directed at preventing
delinquency behavior by fostering the development of girls growing
up in risky situations. In many ways the females who are adjudi-
cated as delinquents have the same needs as other girls. They re-
quire adults who are trained specifically to work with young
women and will expect great things from them but, at the same
time, be sensitive to the trauma that many have experienced in
their homes.

Community service is preferable to incarceration and unlocked
facilities are better than locked facilities. As required by law, juve-
niles must always be removed from the sight and sound of adults if
held, even briefly, in the same facility.

Diversion from the system, another goal of the legislation, re-
quires a significant increase in the network of services providing
for the young woman who has left her home, voluntarily or invol-
untarily, because she can no longer live or prosper there.

Among the services most needed by young women in the system
are basic education, sexuality and parenting training, career coun-
seling and training oriented to non-traditional jobs or traditional
jobs paying decent wages.

We support the reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and De-
linquency Prevention Act. Young people in the juvenile justice
system are treated better today as a result of this Act. We suggest
that in the reauthorization of the Act the original emphasis on pre-
vention and diversion to community-based facilities should be reaf-
firmed and strengthened, with the hope that even fewer young
people will be held in secure detention or incarcerated.

We believe attention must be given to the way girls and young
women, as distinct from boys and young men, are treated in
today's society, including the hazards they face and behaviors in
which they engage. Training needs to be provided to personnel in
all secure facilities and community-based services that reflects this
understanding. Services need to be tailored for girls and provided
in environments that are respectful and supportive.

In 1983, Girls, Incorporated first adopted a policy statement on
juvenile justice, although organizationally we had been deeply in-
volved in the original passage of the law in 1974 and provided re-
search and services in the first decade after passage. That policy
statement was revised in "1991 by our governance body, the Girls,
Incorporated Council.

I close this testimony quoting that statement in part. "Girls, In-
corporated supports equity for girls and boys in the juvenile justice
system. Girls, Incorporated does not believe that it is acceptable for
a girl to be incarcerated for less serious offenses than a boy nor
should she be held in secure detention for a longer period of time
than would a boy for the same offense.

"The resources should be at least equivalent to the resources al-
located to boys' services. Furthermore, those services should be tar-
geted to girls' special needs and such services for girls and for boys
should receive equitable allocations of available funds."

We, at Girls, Incorporated, stand ready to assist you by making
available our research and our training capacity and our program-
matic expertise as you undertake your task. We urge that you con-
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sider special funding for efforts to increase throughout the juvenile
justice system an awareness of special strengths and needs of
today's girls and young women.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to submit my full statement for the
record. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Rita Redaelli follows:]
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Congressman Martinez, Congressman Barrett and friends. I am Rita Redaelli, Executive
Director of Girls Incorporated of Newport Mesa, California, an affiliate of Girls Incorporated
(formerly Girls Clubs of America). My statement here today is on behalf of Girls Incor-
porated, the nation's authority on girls. We know ai Girls Incorporated that prejudice,
stereotyping and society's low expectations have held girls back. And we are deeply con-
cerned that these factors are often present in services provided to girls in the nation's juvenile
justice system.

At Girls Incorporated, we know how to break traditional patterns, foster girls' leadership
skills, and build their confidence. We have developed and tested programs that build girls'
capacity to overcome the hurdles they face and become successful adults.

Girls Incorporated is also a national network of nearly 300 centers, located in 122 cities across
the country, with an estimated combined operating budget of $41 million. Nationally, 2,500
professionals and 8,000 volunteers run local centers, providing an average of 30 hours of ac-
tivities per week after school, on weekends and during the summer. As of 1991, Girls Incor-
porated had a service pop lation of over a quarter of a million. Just over half of the 6 to 18
year old girls served belong to racial and ethnic minority groups; more than three-quarters
come from families earning $20,000 or less, and more than half come from single parent
households, most of which are headed by women.

In addition, for the past fifteen years, Girls Incorporated has served as a vigorous advocate for
girls, raising concerns about equitable and appropriate treatment. In 1978, just four years after
passage of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974, we held a landmark
meeting Today's Girls: Tomorrow's Women*. This three-day seminar brought together
many of the nation's experts in health, education, employment training, juvenile justice and
girls' services. They focused on the need for girls to receive positive services in the areas of
health (including reproductive health), fitness, and education/employment in order to move
toward productive adulthood, and to avoid the risky situations that might bring them before the
juvenile justice system.

With the help of OJJDP, we published and distributed Today's Girls: Tomorrow's Women, a
copy of which has been provided to the Subcommittee by our Washington Office. This was
the first comprehensive look at the special conditions for girls in this country. Tens of
thousands were distributed throughout the country to educators, researchers, service providers
and others interested in a previously overlooked half of our youth. OJJDP funds also enabled
us to produce a short film depicting the then startling facts about the differential treatment of
girls. Much of the current attention to differential impact of education for girls and resources
for girls can be traced to the pioneering work of Girls Incorporated.

In addition, we received a delinquency prevention grant from OJJDP which funded expansion
of services to girls in seven cities over a period of three years in the late 70's. This funding
enabled our affiliates to expand their services into housing projects and other sites in their
communities where girls were in need of positive development programs to supplement their
formal education in school. These programs helped girls avoid adolescent pregnancy,
avoid substance abuse and learn decision-making skills that helped them believe in the reality
of the options of further education and careers. The services initially funded almost fifteen
years ago continue today with local support.

We want to commend the Subcommittee for holding this hearing. It was gratifying to learn of
your attention to the special needs of girls and young women. That attention is long overdue.
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On February 2, 1990, we commented on OJJDP's Proposed Comprehensive Plan for FY90 to
that effect, and have attached that letter for the record (Attachment A). We commended the
Office for their sensitivity to the crucial roles of racial and ethnic diversity in addition to the
shared values of our nation, but pointed out the complete neglect of gender difference as
relevant to their program aiming at drug and alcohol-free youth. Yet there are widely different
behavior patterns and societal pressures and responses of young women and young men on
many of the issues surrounding problems of juvenile delinquent behavior.

Types of Crimes and Offenses

These differences are marked in the types of crimes and offenses girls generally commit.
Drawing from data of juveniles held in public facilities in 1989, young women represented
only 10% of those held for delinquent offenses, but were 48% of those held for status offenses
and other nondelinquent reasons. Only a little over 3% of young males were incarcerated for
nondelinquent reasons.

Looking more closely at the delinquent offenses, about 28% of males had committed violent
offenses contrasted with 8% of females. According to the November 1990 OJJDP Update on
Statistics, property offenses are a major part of the juvenile crime problem. Shoplifting was
the most common offense referred to court for youth under 15, while burglary was most com-
mon for older youth. By far the most common property crime of females is shoplifting, while
males are most likely to be involved in burglary: Girls, whites, and youth 14 through 16 are
more likely to be referred to court for running away than other youth. The number admitted
to secure facilities while awaiting disposition of their cases varies greatly from state to state.

For nondelinquent offenses, 75% of young women incarcerated were status offenders. Parents
are more likely to declare a girl "out of control" around sexual issues than they are to make the
same judgment at)out their son. This reflects the double standard of our society. We will not
discuss this further, as Meda Chesney-Lind is a nationally recognized expert in this field. We
also know well that many young women run away form home because they cannot thrive
there, as the data on abuse strongly support. And young women without a place to sleep are in
jeopardy as alternatives are few; in many states confinement is the only safe haven offered to
girls and young women in trouble.

Reasons &iris turn to delinquency

A Wisconsin study showed that well over half the young women adjudicated delinquent had
been physically or sexually abused. The OJJDP 1989 statistics show that 15% of females in-
carcerated for nondelinquent offenses were there because of abuse and neglect. It is often hard
to understand exactly who has committed the offense in these cases.

To underline the serious consequences to young women of such abuse, most often occurring in
their home, a study conducted in Washington state with funds from the National Center of
Child Abuse and Neglect has just been reported in Family Planning Perspectives. This
research also establishes a connection between adolescent pregnancy and prior sexual or physi-
cal abuse. The most striking result is the level of sexual victimization among the group of
pregnant and parenting adolescent females studied - 66% overall, and 62% prior to their first
pregnancy. Eleven percent of respondents who were sexually victimized prior to their first
pregnancy had exchanged sex for drugs, compared with 1% of those who had not been abused.



Similarly, victimized young women were much more likely to exchange sex for money or for
a place to stay.

The Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act (JJDPA) of 1974 without question
removed many status offenders from incarceration, but the record is very uneven among the
states, perhaps suggesting a lack of common understanding of delinquency or lack of alterna-
tives within communities.

In summary, very often young women who become offenders start as victims. When alcohol
and/or drugs are added to the mix, they very often precede both early sexual activity and inter-
action with the juvenile justice system.

Beyond these most serious considerations, there is a desperate shortage in this country of posi-
tive developmental experiences for school age children and young women reaching the crucial
transition of school to work. Young people need assistance in building their individual assets
or competencies that cannot be provided by schools alone. As a society we are placing inor-
dinate pressure on single parent families, two-worker families and especially on low-income
families, expecting them to cope individually with an ailing economy and disintegrating neigh-
borhood services.

Needed Programs and Services

Much that is available in communities as support to young people is of a purely recreational
nature, most of it developed along a male model. Every Girls Incorporated affiliate is replete
with anecdotes that their members tell of the first choice of courts, fields, coaches, times, and
public attention going to young men.

The basic strategy has to be that of positive youth development, available equally to young
women and young men and in gender-appropriate programming. Youth developemnt is in-
creasingly being seen as necessary to our nation's prosperity. It is also the flip side of delin-
quency prevention. For girls and young women, this means positive programs that are sensi-
tive to the particular pressures girls face and that provide the skills and resources they need to
cope in an inequitable world. We suggest as underlying themes for any specific type of
program:

1. Girls need to value themselves. They need practice in thinking of themselves as
valuable, confident and competent.

2. Girls need nurturance, safety, support, approval and acceptance. They need
nonjudgmental relationships.

3. Girls need role models to emulate and advocates to champion their cause; they
need relationships with adults who expect them to achieve as well as with adults
who make demands in their behalf.

4. Girls need information, skill, strategies and resources for making decisions,

solving problems, meeting their own needs and leading others.

5. Girls need close friends and positive relationships with less intimate peers.

6. Girls need to be heard. They need environments in which they are taken
seriously for who they are, what they do and how they think and feel. Girls
need to experience equity of gender, race, ethnicity and social class.



We believe in comprehensive programs tailored to the age and developmental stage of the girls
and young women we serve. Each girl is entitled to programs that help her make connections
to future education and careers, appreciate her own heritage and the culture of others, feel
comfortable in her body, gain tools to express herself, develop a sense of security and a sense
of adventure, rely on herself, take responsibility for her actions and acquire the capacity to
make good decisions.

Girls Incorporated has developed programs and conducted research in many of these areas.
Most recently, we have published the results of an extensive evaluation of our Preventing
Adolescent Pregnancy program. Operation SMART excites girls about pursuing science, math
and technology. In Friendly PEERsuasion, a research-based program, girls acquire leadership
skills to avoid the hazards of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs and to convince younger girls to
avoid these hazards also.

A major step forward in the reauthorization of JJDPA would be emphasis on increased funding
for programs directed at preventing delinquent behavior by
fostering the development of girls growing up in risky situations. In many ways, the females
who are adjudicated delinquent have the same needs other girls do: adults trained specifically
to work with young women, to expect great things from them but to be sensitive to the trauma
that many have experienced in their homes. But community service is preferable to incarcera-
tion, and unlocked facilities are better than locked facilities. As required by law, juveniles
must always be removed from the 'sight and sound* of adults if held, even briefly, in the same
facility.

Diversion from the system, another goal of the legislation, requires a significant increase in the
network of services that provide for the young woman who has left her home, voluntarily or
involuntarily, because she can no longer live or prosper there. Case management must be
available for the young woman and her family to put their lives back together. Whenever pos-
sible, that is, whenever it is not threatening to the young woman, she should be left in her
home, but this may require extensive service and support for the entire family to develop new
patterns of behavior and consideration if there has been a history of victimization of the girl(s)
in the family.

Among the services most needed by young women once they are in the system are basic educa-
tion, sexuality and parenting training, career counseling and training oriented to nontraditional
jobs or those traditional jobs that pay decent wages.

Reauthorization of JJDPA

We support the reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act. Young
people in the juvenile justice system are treated better today as a result of this act.

We suggest that in reauthorizing JJDPA that the original emphasis on prevention and diversion
to community-based facilities should be reaffirmed and strengthened with the hope that even
fewer young people would be held in secure detention or incarcerated in the future. We
believe attention must be given to the ways girls and young women, as distinct from boys and
young men, are treated in today's society, the hazards they face and behaviors they engage in.
Training needs to be provided to personnel in all secure facilities and community-based serv-
ices that reflects this understanding, and services need to be tailored for girls and provided in
environments that are respectful and supportive.



In 1983, Girls Incorporated first adopted a policy statement on juvenile justice, although or-
ganizationally we had been deeply involved in the original passage of the law in 1974 and
provided research and services in the first decade after passage. That policy statement was
revised in 1991 by our governance body, the Girls Incorporated Council (Attachment B).

I close this testimony quoting that statement in part:

Girls Incorporated supports equity for girls and boys in the juvenile justice system.
Girls Incorporated does not believe that it is acceptable for a girl to be incarcerated for
less serious offenses than a boy nor should she be held in secure detention for a longer
period of time that would a boy for the same offense. The resources should be at least
equivalent to the resources allocated to boys' services. Furthermore, those services
should be targeted to girls' special needs .... [and] such services for girls and for boys
should receive equitable allocations of available funds.

We at Girls Incorporated stand ready to assist you by making available our research and our
training capacity and our programmatic expertise as you undertake your task. We urge that
you consider special funding for efforts to increase throughout the juvenile justice system an
awareness of the special strengths and needs of today's girls and young women.
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GA GIRLS CLUBS OF AMERICA, INC.
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Terrence S. Donahue
Acting Adminstrator
Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention
Room 742
833 Indiana Avenue n.W.
Washington, D.C. 20531

Dear Mr. Donahue a

Girls Clubs of America Inc. is pleased to have the
opportunity to commnt on the Proposed Comprehensive Plan
of the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention for FT 1990.

We commend the Office for its innovation in
announcing a comprehensive plan. To our knowledge this
has not happened in previous years. Certainly the
development and public notice of a comprehens e plan is
an important strategy in addressingthe goals of the
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
(OJJDP). It puts federal and state agencies, community-
based groups, and youth-soerving organizations on notice
rugarding priorities. Understanding these priorities
makes it possible for government and non-goent groups
to collaborate and support one another in addressing the
needs of youth.

However, we suggest that the timing of such public
notice be given greater consideration in the future. The
Comprehensive Plan proposal appeared in the December 28,
1989, issue of the Federal Resister (vol. 54, no. 249).
Because activities during this week are minimal for most
groups given the focus on family and tradition* at that
time of the year, the publication was overlooked by many
regular Register reviewers. Once It surfaced through the
backlog of papers, precious little time remained for
organizations to prepare co M0ent With regard to this
matter of the timing of public notice, we further suggest
that youth-merving and other related groups which may be
on your mailing list receive direct notice throuh he
mail. in this manner it is less likely that such an
important document will be ovelooked.



in addition, we comnend the OJJDP for its efforts to
be sensitive to the role of racial and ethnic diversity in
family and comunit 1 settings. Researchers have long
recognized that chidn learn values primarily from their
families and community. it is not enough to recognize our
shared values. To ensure the c~aunwcation of society's
values on drug- and alcohol-free youth, as well as on
civic remponsibility and behavior, such values must
emanate from the institutions and role models that are
recognized by our diverse counties.

We do note, however, that the comprehensive plan does
not demonstrate a similar level of sensitivity to sendsr
difference. There is no mention of prevention activity,
research, or training which is specific to the needs of
girls and young women. Just as it is important to address
racial/ethnic differences in promoting the goals of
society, so it is vital to understand and build upon the
differing experience of girls and women in our societies.
Girls Clubs of Ameica has been doing research end
programming for girls and young women for over 40 years.
Such work has demonstrated that girls and boys have
developmental differences which are important to the
implementation of programs designed for particular age and
maturation groups. Consequently, girls and young women
are not adequately served when they are part of co-
educational programs which have not been specifically
designed to address their needs.

In the area of juvenile delinquency and drug/alcohol
prevention, girls are especially overlooked. Yet many
groups of girls are increasingly at-risk of school
dropout, teen pregnancy, engaging in drug and alcohol
abuse, as well as other delinquent behaviors. Girl-
serving agencies must be targeted to collaborate with
OJJDP, just as agencies are which are specific to race
and/or ethnicity. Without this focused approach, state
and local officials will continue to be baffled by the
rise in delinquent behaviors of girls.

oreover, because girls and young women in the
justice system have never received the attention and
resources provided their male counterparts, when girls nnd
young women become delinquents, they have even less chance
of emerging as "rehabllitated" citizens. It is very
important, therefore, that the components of the 03DP
plan which address 'Causes nd Correlates of Delinquencw'
target the specific needs and behaviors of girls. Other

continued...
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p -an opponents in which a specific focus on girls in
n";= aX* "Super Teamas and 'Children in Cuntody,. We
advise that All programs examine how they address girls'
heds, however for the Lmmediate year, the Programs just
mentioned vil be seriously flawed, and chil len's slve
vil continue to be at great risk, if a focus on girls and
young women is not included.

Finally, we wish to note that although these comments
arm only offered by Girls Clubs of Am¢rica, we believe
that many gLrl-serving agencies share our concerns. We,
thamefore, encourage the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention to meet with some of these agencies
to begin to discuss matters of gender difference and
sensitivity. Further, we offer our services in assisting
in the arrangement of such discussions and invite you to
call upon oux expertise.

Thank you for this opportunity to comment . we look
forward to an Ongoing dialogue.

Sincerely,

iagaret Gates
iatIonal Ezecutive Director



Attachment B

GIRLS INCORPORATED

POLICY STATEMENT

JUVENILE JUSTICE

Girls Incorporated endorses the right of girls and young women to understand and derive the
full benefits of the legal system of our country. We support programs that foster girls'
knowledge and understanding of the law and encourage girls to function within its boundaries.
Despite these efforts, some girls will come into contact with the juvenile justice system,

usually for non-criminal acts, commonly called status offenses. Therefore, Girls Incorporated
urges the development and adequate funding of those programs that distinguish and separate
girls who are status offenders from those who have committed criminal acts. Services for
status offenders should be provided in appropriate settings, that is, not in detention centers,

jails or other locked facilifis.

Girls Incorporated supports equity for girls and boys >', the juvenile justice system. Girls In-
corporated does not believe that it is acceptable for a girl to be incarcerated for less serious of-
fenses than would a boy, nor should she be held in secure detention for a longer period of time
than would a boy for the same offense. The resources allocated to services and facilities for
girls who are incarcerated should be at least equivalent to the resources allocated to boys' serv-
ices. Furthermore, those services should be targeted to girls' special needs.

For all girls who do come into contact with the juvenile justice system, we advocate programs
that strengthen family units, foster decision-making skills, offer job training, utilize
community-based settings and provide opportunities for alternative education. We believe that
whenever possible girls should be returned to their families, but that such placements are al-
ways inappropriate if they put girls at risk. It is critical that family and community-based

programs for troubled girls receive adequate funding to meet the needs of these girls. Further,
such services for girls and for boys should receive equitable allocations of available funds.

Adopted by the Girls Incorporated Council, April 27, 1991



Chairman MARTINEZ. I probably should have announced in the
beginning that all the written statements that are submitted will
be entered into the record in their entirety, and we will leave the
record open to receive additional testimony to be included in the
record.

Before I begin the questioning, let me make a statement. You
know, as we have traveled around and we have seen some of the
programs that are in existence, so many of them are community-
based. The initiative comes from the communities to help these sit-
uations and really a good deal of the funding also comes from those
communities and people of good conscience who decide they want
to help because they realize there is a problem.

And in those programs, even there, sometimes they are ignoring
female delinquency. I do not think they do it intentionally. I think
that because they have traditionally thought of delinquency prob-
lems being with young men, not with young women, in the plans
that they have set, the programs are geared really more at boys.

A lot of these programs, although the base of their funding
comes from the communities and the organizations that support
them, still do use Federal dollars, and so in using those Federal
dollars there may be something that we can do to raise their con-
sciousness level to the fact that they should be treating boys and
girls equally.

You mentioned in your testimony, Dr. Deschenes, the gender
biases. Can you give me some specific examples of what you mean
by that?

Ms. DESCHENES. The primary examples involve the fact that girls
are locked up for less serious offenses and authorities feel that fe-
males need to be protected. That has been the basic difference. And
boys are locked up for the serious offenses.

Another example is that girls often spend a longer time incarcer-
ated than boys do for the same types of offenses.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Yeah, I understand the biases there and it
comes from desire really to protect, not realizing that they have to
do more than just protect. I thought maybe there was some infer-
ence that in the programs provided, there was also inequity and
what do we do to-you know, there are a lot of my colleagues that
do not like the word set-as.,de.

You direct in the law that a certain amount of money be expend-
ed or the money be expended equally for girls' programs as for
boys' programs. How do you overcome some of that? And then you
go back to the first thing I said about community-based organiza-
tions, you know, you cannot impose on the moneys they contribute.
You have to suggest to them in some way that they be more aware
of the problem that, "Hey, the girls have specific needs. Specific
programs are needed for them," et cetera.

How do we, as a national policy-setting body set a policy that
makes them understand that these are the things they have move
on?

Ms. DESCHENES. I think part of the direction should be towards
increasing the funding, specifically for research of girls. I know
that there is very little research that has been done specifically on
girls. I, myself, have been trying to do research on girls' programs,
but the problem is that proposals usually do not get accepted or



there are so few programs out there that it is difficult to study the
issue.

Chairman MARTINEZ. All right, what you are suggesting then is
maybe there be some specific language in the reauthorization that
says, "The Secretary will grant a specific amount of money for re-
search on problems affecting girls."

Ms. DESCHENES. I think that and I also think that we should sup-
port research on delinquency prevention in particular. The longitu-
dinal studies are showing a great co-occurrence of drug use, delin-
quency and victimization. I think that if we put more efforts into
delinquency prevention, specifically towards these Girls, Incorpo-
rated types of programs, we will have much better efforts.

It does not have to be more money than for boys, but I think
there should be an emphasis on getting as many girls in these pro-
grams as there are boys in these programs.

Chairman MARTINEZ. That is what I mean, short of a set-aside,
saying, "You will spend a specific amount of money for such-and-
such." Because sometimes a set-aside is the only way you can get
funding for a specific program. In defense contracting, that is the
only way that the minorities started getting a fair share of the con-
tracting is when the Congress decided that there would be set-
asides and you specifically identify the source of money for that.

The thing is that in the places we visited, we have seen an in-
crease in gang activity by young women who are bearing children,
and are now rearing that child in a gang tradition. And that did
not used to happen. We have pictures of them wearing the colors of
the gang and at 5 or 6 years old holding a gun in their hand. Can
you imagine how those kids will turn out in generations to come?

Ms. DESCHENES. I think that is somewhat rare in the areas that
you've been seeing it. I think there always have been girls that
have been parts of the gangs. The mothers have also, in some
cases, been with their sons in the gangs, contributed to their gang
delinquency and not tried to get them out of the gangs. I think that
there are different movements here in Los Angeles, particularly in
the Watts neighborhood, where the mothers are fighting against
the gangs.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Well, what is rare today becomes tomor-
row, unless something is done to check it, a customary thing. I do
not think that a few years back that anybody thought that they
would see White Bloods or Crips. But there are now White Bloods
and Crips. And they used to be just black.

Ms. DESCHENES. But I do not think the gangs are really the prob-
lem. The gang problem represents a small minority. There are not
that many girls in gangs. The real problem is the girls who are the
runaways, the homeless, the ones who are being caught for shop-
lifting; the programs are not geared to them.

The gangs are a very small part of the program, although they
are an important part of our problem with delinquency. We need
more services, such as prevention services, for the regular girls.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Well I think if you get some funds to do
some research you will find that the number of girls that play an
important part of gang membership is increasing rapidly. There
are a lot of other problems connected with girls, and a lot of them
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stem from a bad home environment, which leads me to another
question that I have and maybe you can answer it for me.

In receiving testimony, I have gotten the impression that in
many cases the valid court order is used to put people, especially
girls, in lock-up because they keep running away from home. In
the case of girls, there has got to be a reason why they are running
away.

I did hear of a case in which there really was not what I consider
an adequate job done in determining why the youths were running
away from home and violating the valid court order and getting
locked up. And I think that if you are going to exercise that court
order because a youth continues to run away that you really ought
to try to find out why he or she is running away. It is not an easy
thing to do, they do not always come forward.

In one instance, one particular individual told me that it was
really sexual abuse that made her run away, that she didn't want
to talk about. And, you know, how do you get it out? In your expe-
riences, do you find that the court order in many cases is abused?

Ms. REDAELLI. Libby, maybe you can answer that question better
than I can, but from my experience as an executive director of
Girls, Incorporated and working particularly with teens, for teen
girls who do run away, the problem usually resides at home. There
is either a dysfunctional situation, alcohol, or sexual abuse of some
kind.

I really cannot answer what the effects of a court order are. I
know that with the programs which we offer at Girls, Incorporated,
we provide an environment where a girl feels important. She is
able to find help through those programs, and learns what to do as
a victim at home.

We act as resources or lead them to resources where they can get
help to rectify their situation at home. Girls, Incorporated is the
authority on girls in the Nation, in the programs that we develop
for them. Part of our name change, Girls, Incorporated from Girls
Clubs of America, came from the tremendous research that we had
been putting into girls programs.

Back to your first question, I think that when we look at our Na-
tion's prosperity as the bottom line, the reality that women make
up over 50 percent of the workforce, should be enough of an impe-
tus to procure more funding to help girls. It is going to effect our
Nation s economy. We need to prepare our girls. And we need to
start very young with age-appropriate programming.

Girls, Incorporated has all of these types of programs that ad-
dress these issues at the girls' appropriate age and development. I
have answered, indirectly, both questions.

Chairman MARTINEZ. One of the things is, you know, when you
spoke in this last sentence about the programs that you have that
are effective, and as we have studied the programs and the things
you offer, we have seen that they are effective. We have seen other
effective programs as we visited different sites. But in every in-
stance where I have seen these successful programs, I noticed that
they only reach a small percentage of the total need.

And the Federal Government has very limited funds to increase
that percentage as everything has its priority and we are in a
budget deficit and so on, and so on. But that is not a reason why



we cannot find some way to fund these programs that are so impor-
tant to the future of our country. But by the same token, I believe
Federal money should be seed money that encourages somebody
else to put money into good programs.

Because after all, we all have a responsibility to our society. We
cannot sit, like we have done for so many years, and say "it is not
my problem because it does not directly affect me today, or because
I do not have someone that it has directly affected that I am con-
cerned about."

We all have to be concerned for each other as a total community.
Let us say we do finally get a bigger appropriation for this. How do
we leverage that money to the greatest extent to get others to par-
ticipate in it. Do you have any suggestions?

Ms. REDAELLI. First, I would suggest being a strong advocate. I
think traditionally funding sources give more to male-oriented or-
ganizations and agencies. I think we need, from your level, strong
advocates to state the importance of girls' services.

Word will pass along to other types of funding sources. They will,
for example, want to get Girls, Incorporated, to offer training pro-
grams to the Juvenile Justice Services and other youth-serving or-
ganizations. Then the programs which reach these girls will be run
by trained facilitators.

Various youth-serving organizations can acquire programming to
meet the special needs of girls. Not all youth organizations do.
Most are recreational in nature. Or schools, in their after-school
programming, might have a venue to reach the girls with these
programs, instead of just hanging out recreationally.

I think that, number one, it is important to be a strong advocate
to the YMCA's, to the after-school programs, to the school districts,
to Girl Scouts and Boy Scouts, and to the churches. Is there a
chance for them to be able to deliver these types of programs? That
is the flip side of delinquency to prevention as well as funding.

Chairman MARTINEZ. I think that maybe if information from
hearings like this one and other public information be put out on a
national level so that it raises the conscience level of people who
had before not even thought of the issue of unequal services to girls
because they think that delinquency is a boy's problem, not a girl's
problem.

Dr. Deschenes, on the issue of the abuse of valid court orders, do
you believe there is any abuse out there? In regard to girls I am
talking about their tendency to run away from home. And usually
a valid court order is issued to force them to stay in the home, and
when they do not then the girls are locked up. And this is done
without, I thirk, really finding out why that person is running
away from ho-ie. Do you agree?

Ms. DESCHENES. I cannot really answer that question. But I
would like to add that I think we know why some of the girls are
running away from home. We have heard testimony here, I have
talked about their victimization. I think that we need more pro-
grams for the young girls as we have developed for some of our
female offenders.

We need more shelters and semi-independent living situations. It
may not always be appropriate to preserve the family. There may



be such a terrible situation that they cannot go back, and that is
why they keep running away.

There needs to be an increase in the smaller programs such as
shelters where girls can be fostered, not necessarily foster homes,
but shelters where services and counseling for these juveniles can
be provided. We need to find out what these victimization issues
are.

I know from my few experiences in the programs that I have vis-
ited, that the girls are very reluctant to talk about the issues of
sexual abuse and victimization. It takes quite a long time before
they will open up.

Chairman MARTINEZ. It is so appalling to me that children are
brought up in these abusive situations, maybe because I was
brought up and I raised my own family, my five children, in a
whole different atmosphere.

In fact, I had a son who wanted to be a policeman, and after
working 6 months with the police department, seeing the kinds of
family traumas out there, he decided, because it was so foreign to
him and the way he was brought up, that he decided that is not
what he wanted to do. And it was probably just as well.

There are probably a lot of other questions. We will continue the
dialogue as we proceed towards the reauthorization. At this time I
would like to turn to Mr. Barrett.

Mr. BARRETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Excellent testimony. I
appreciate both of you and what you have told the subcommittee.
Rita, I guess in terms of Girls, Incorporated, you indicated that you
have a network now of nearly 300 centers and about a $41 million
operating budget. I guess my question essentially is, what is the
source of the funding?

Ms. REDAELLI. Foundations and grants.
Mr. BARRETT. And individuals, foundations, corporate communi-

ty?
Ms. REDAELLI. That is correct.
Mr. BARRETr. Okay. No tax dollars?
Ms. REDAELLI. Some of the local centers receive community de-

velopment block grants. That is the extent of it. At times we ap-
plied for State funding for child care, which is a part of our after-
school quality supervised care services. But minimal.

Mr. BARRETT. Okay. Thank you. I guess we are all in common
agreement that girls are held in detention more than boys. And I
wonder if we can also agree that the majority of girls in the private
facilities are held for the non-delinquent cases, the runaways and
so forth, is that generally true?

Ms. DESCHENES. That is generally true.
Mr. BARRETT. Okay. How about the kids that are held in private

facilities, being held considerably longer than those in public facili-
ties. Is that generally true? Some of the research I did indicated
that those that are held in private facilities are held there consid-
erably longer than those held in public institutions.

Ms. DESCHENES. That varies greatly by State. I know some States
with programs that are only 2 to 5 months for their private facili-
ties as compared to much longer, 13 to 15 months, for the public
facilities.



Mr. BARRETT. So you would not necessarily agree with that state-
ment. Rita, how about you?

Ms. REDAELLI. I really cannot make a comment on that, Mr. Bar-
rett, I really do not know.

Mr. BARRETT. What about a situation then, I guess research also
tells us that boys, when they are held longer in a detention situa-
tion, sometimes it rubs off, they become a bigger part of the prob-
lem if they are held longer. Would this necessarily be true for girls,
or is there any research that points in that direction? In other
words, a kid that is held longer is going to be a better case for con-
tinued delinquency.

Ms. DESCHENES. Are you talking detention or training schools?
Mr. BARRETT. Both?
Ms. DESCHENES. Okay. We have seen problems in the past where

girls who were held for a long time in detention centers suffered
severe victimization within the detention centers and possible sui-
cide risks. In terms of training schools, there is no evidence that I
know of about girls. However, from the comment that I made earli-
er, I would think that it takes longer for the girls to confront their
problems. Perhaps holding them longer might make sense if one is
making headway with those problems.

In terms of the length of time, I believe that the average length
of time is about 12 months in a residential training school. We are
finding that 12 months is just too long. Progress can be made with
a much shorter residential program as long as you have appropri-
ate aftercare services for them when they return to the communi-
ty.

What is needed is more Federal funding to be given through the
States, perhaps similar to the moneys that have been given to the
drug programs through the Federal drug block programs. There
needs to be funding for girls' programs, such as aftercare. There
also needs to be an increase in the regular supervision of girls in
the community.

Ms. REDAELLI. Congressman Barrett, I would like to add to that.
Girls, Incorporated has done research on the development of some
of our specific programs. It has been proven in our research that
boys thrive with male role models, stronger figure models, around
them. They seem to do better in these kinds of environments,
whereas girls do not.

I do not believe that the public or private facilities which you are
referring to have the training or research data to allow them to
serve girls in an appropriate way. Based on the research that we
have done, Girls, Incdrporated has proven that girls do best with
peer training and our trained facilitators. They work with girls to
train other girls.

Once again, I do not believe that the public facilities which we
are talking about have that understanding or research, or the ma-
terials available to deliver programming and help the girls the way
they need to be helped. Girls, Incorporated can offer that assist-
%ince.

Mr. BARRETr. Thank you. And would you also agree that the av-
erage of 12 months is a little bit too long?

Ms. REDAELLI. Yes.



Mr. BARRETr. Okay. Great. Thank you very much. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Barrett. Thank you both
for appearing before us. Your testimony is invaluable to us. And
like I say, we will keep a dialogue going. There may be questions
that we come up with or think of afterwards. We would appreciate
it if we sent those through the mail to you, you would respond to
us. And those would be included in the record. Thank you again.

Ms. REDAELLI. Thank you.
Ms. DESCHENES. Thank you.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Our next panel consists of two young

people who are participants in programs and Ms. Vicki Burke, who
is the director and founder of PACE Center for Girls. The one
young lady we will not identify for confidentiality purposes. If you
would come up and sit in the front here. And I understand you
have someone with you, would you like to come up and sit with
her? There are four chairs here. Ms. Vicki Burke, I understand Ms.
Talaya Ford is with you. And if you can sit on this other side over
here and then the two of you can sit on this side. I would like to
first hear from the young lady who we are not identifying today.

STATEMENT OF UNIDENTIFIED PARTICIPANT, CHILDREN OF THE
NIGHT, LOS ANGELES, CA

The PARTICIPANT. I am 15 years old and I have been away from
home since I was 13. My dad kicked me out. He really did not care
what happened to me. I spent the last 2 years struggling to survive
on the streets. So many things have happened to me. I was kid-
napped and forced to do things I did not want to do. Just 2 weeks
ago I was jumped and left for dead. That left permanent scars. I
am trying to recover from partial blindness.

About 6 months ago I was placed into a group home. I was treat-
ed like the girls that came straight out of juvenile hall. I preferred
to be on the streets than in there. Most of the kids are on the
streets not because they ran away but because of family rejection.
Like mine was. They need places to go. Some can get counseling
and return home, but some cannot. They need places where they
can receive services like shelters, such as Children of the Night or
Angel's Flight. At these places kids can leave but then return if
what they left for did not work out.

SODA beds are another alternative. The people who own these
beds are paid about $900 a month just to have the beds open. Most
of the kids sent there do not end up staying, because it is only for
one night. When they first get there they are told that they do not
have to stay. That $900 a month can be used to build shelters for
more extensive stays and services. That would help homeless chil-
dren a lot. Thank you for listening.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you. Your father kicked you out?
The PARTICIPANT. Yes.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Where is your mother? Is your mother

alive?
The PARTICIPANT. Yeah.
Chairman MARTINEZ. And your mother would not take you in?

Are they living together, your father and mother?



The PARTICIPANT. No.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Then your mother, did you try to get help

from your mother?
The PARTICIPANT. I just met her about a year ago.
Chairman MARTINEZ. You just met her about a year ago?
The PARTICIPANT. And we are sort of getting counseling to get to

know each other.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Do you feel you are receiving the help you

need now?
The PARTICIPANT. Yeah, I am.
Chairman MARTINEZ. How many beds are there at the facility

where you are staying?
The PARTICIPANT. Right now there are seven. There was just a

new building put together with 24 beds.
Chairman MARTINEZ. It hardly makes a dent in the real problem

out there, does it?
The PARTICIPANT. More can help. I mean, there are some shelters

that really do not do anything for anybody. They let you do what
you want, leave as you want, go out during the day. It just exposes
you to being on the streets.

Chairman MARTINEZ. You are a bright young woman. And you
are very articulate. Are you attending school at the present time?

The PARTICIPANT. Not right now. My plan is to get into school. If
things go well I will graduate next year. I plan to attend occupa-
tional school. By the time I am 16 I can get a job and save money
for an apartment.

Chairman MARTINEZ. How long are you going to be allowed to
stay in the facility you are in now?

The PARTICIPANT. They set something special up for me so I can
stay until I get enough money to get an apartment.

Chairman MARTINEZ. That is great. You know, in many cases
these facilities are only temporary. They do not really provide for
young people long-term. I am glad this one is providing for you. Do
you feel now you have a positive direction in your life, because
somebody reached out and helped you?

The PARTICIPANT. Yes. I feel that the plan that I have worked
out now is going to help me a lot better than any foster home
would have. Some foster homes are terrible. Believe me.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Amen. I hear more horror stories coming
out of foster homes. It is a shame, because I believe that one of the
things we ought to provide for children as a society is a place fer
them to grow up where there is love and caring. And a lot of our
social problems come from the fact that kids are not brought up in
a loving, caring home. Certainly we all have to be judged before
our Maker eventually some day. I cannot understand the mentality
of a man that would throw his daughter out on the street at 13
years of age. What grade were you in at 13?

The PARTICIPANT. I was in eighth grade.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Eighth grade. And so you have missed 2

years of school then?
The PARTICIPANT. I have missed 2 years, but I have taken tests

and presently I am in the 11th grade.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Like I say, you are very articulate, and you

sound like a very intelligent woman. You have written a good



statement. Better than some people I know. But no, you should be
encouraged to really keep a positive attitude and move ahead. And
I am going to tell you something, anything you can think of in
your mind, you can achieve, if you just have the patience and
desire and if you look for the people that will help you. There is
always going to be people that are going to try to knock you down.
Ignore them. Go around them and find the people that will help
you. And you can make it. Good luck to you.

The PARTICIPANT. Thank you.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Ms. Ford?

STATEMENT OF TALAYA FORD, PARTICIPANT, PACE CENTER FOR
GIRLS, JACKSONVILLE, FL

Ms. FORD. Mr. Chairman, my name is Talaya Ford. I am 16 years
old and a graduate from the PACE Center for Girls in Jacksonville,
Florida. I appreciate the opportunity to tell you about myself and
how I have changed my life in a positive way. I hope that my expe-
rience will assist you in helping other girls who may be in similar
situations.

I would like to give you some background information about
myself. T am originally from Philadelphia, where I lived with my
grandparents. My father was in prison since I was 2 years old, and
my mother became a drug addict when I was 6 years old. My
grandparents were the ones who raised me.

When I was 10 years old my grandmother died, so my mother
wanted me to come live with her in Jacksonville, Florida. This
made me feel badly since my mother had never been there for me
before. It was hard being separated from my grandfather, who was
like a father to me.

When I was 11 my grandfather moved to Jacksonville, Florida,
which helped. But I still did not get along with my mother. My
mother did not understand why my attitude was changing and as-
sumed that I was on drugs, which at the time I was not. She placed
me in a drug treatment program in an attempt to make things
better. All this did was upset me, to be placed where I did not
belong.

After returning home I was angry, and our relationship got
worse. This is when I began sneaking out of the house during the
night and going to nightclubs, even though I was only 13 years old.
I eventually ran away to stay with friends. My mother put a custo-
dy order out on me and I was picked up by the police and held in a
detention center for a week. This is when the social services agen-
cies became involved.

I went to court, where my mother said she did not want me at
home. I did not want to go home. I was placed in a foster home. I
did not like being in the foster home because I felt out of place.
The home was not heated properly and the foster parents were
nasty towards me and the other foster children. That is why I ran
away from there.



I tried to live on the streets, staying with friends, but I soon real-
ized that I could not take care of myself. When I got sick I turned
myself in to the social service agency. They took me back to the
detention center for several days and then placed me in yet an-
other foster home for girls. It was better than the other foster
home, but it was still not somewhere a person should live. During
the time I stayed there I saw girls trying to kill themselves. They
would cry every day, and so would I.

About 4 days later I was told I was going to be sent to another
foster home. I could not handle being shifted around and being
treated like nobody cared what happened to me. I ran away from
there, even though I already knew that living on the streets was
not a good life. I felt it would be better than going from foster
home to foster home.

For the next 2 years I lived with friends, not going to school,
using drugs, drinking and wasting my life away. I continued to
have contact with my grandfather, because he was the only person
that I felt really cared about what happened to me.

When I was 14 I was driving my friend's mother's car and I hit a
school bus. The ambulance took me to the hospital. The police gave
me tickets for reckless driving.

After I was released from the hospital I continued to stay with
friends again. My life did not change. I was around people doing
nothing for themselves, and therefore I had no hope for the future.
When I was 15 my grandfather died. I tried to blame everyone else
for his death. I felt angry, sad, and most of all very alone. The most
important person to me in my life was now gone.

One of the last things my grandfather told me was that I was
going to get my education. He believed in me and saw a better
future for me. That was a turning point. I then knew I had to
change my life.

I turned myself in to the police and was taken to the detention
center. I heard about the PACE Center for Girls and felt like there
might be an opportunity for me to get my education. When I went
to court it was decided that I could move back with my mother. We
worked on our relationship and began getting along better.

I also enrolled in the PACE Center for Girls. The program
taught me many things. I learned not only academics but also the
life skills I needed to make it. I felt as though the staff really un-
derstood me. They taught me how to set goals, achieve them, and
then recognize my accomplishments. This made me feel really good
about myself. I had a very special adviser at PACE who helped me
deal with my personal problems as well as school problems. She
met with my mom monthly to discuss progress and to talk about
how things were going at home.

This also* helped my relationship with my mom. I earned my
high school diploma and am currently taking a computer course
through the community college and working part time. When I
turn 17 I will enroll in the college nursing program.

It was not a judge that made me want to go to school, or the
social workers who made me want to better my life. It was people
who cared, who made me know that I deserved better. Being in and
out of the detention center and foster homes did not help any. To
tell somebody you were in places like that was like boasting old



war stories. But to tell someone how people like my grandfather,
my mother and the people at PACE gave me that push and confi-
dence to make me want to strive for excellence, was like telling
someone how I won the war.

Thank you.

STATEMENT OF TALAYA FORD, PARTICIPANT, PACE CENTER FOR GIRLS,

JACKSONVILLE, FL

Mr. Chairman, I my name is Talaya Ford. I am 16 years old and I am a graduate
from the PACE Center for Girls in Jacksonville, Florida. I appreciate the opportuni-
ty to tell you about myself and how I have changed my life in a positive way. I hope
that my experiences will assist you in helping other girls who may be in similar
situations.

I'd like to give you some background information about myself. I'm originally
from Philadelphia where I lived with my grandparents. My father was in prison
since I was 2 years old, and my mother became a drug addict when I was 6 years
old. My grandparents were the ones who raised me. When I was 10 years old my
grandmother died so my mother wanted me to come live with her in Jacksonville,
Florida. This made me feel badly since my mother had never been there for me
before. It was hard being separated from my grandfather who was like a father to
me.

When I was 11 my grandfather moved to Jacksonville which helped but I still
didn't get along well with my m(,ther. My mother didn't understand why my atti-
tude was changing and assumed I was on drugs--which at the time I-wasn't. She
placed me in a drug treatment program in an attempt to make things better. All
this did was upset me to be placed somewhere I didn't belong.

After returning home I was angry and our relationship got worse. This is when I
began sneaking out of the house during the night and going to nightclubs, even
though I was only 13 years old. I eventually ran away to stay with friends. My
mother put a custody order out on me and I was picked up by the police and held in
the detention center for a week. This is when the social services agencies became
involved. I went to court where my mother said she didn't want me home and I
didn't want to go home. I was placed in a foster home.

I didn't like being in the foster home because I felt out of place. The home was
not heated properly and the foster parents talked nasty towards me and the other
foster children. That's why I ran away from there.

I tried to live on the streets, staying with friends, but I soon realized that I
couldn't take care of myself and when I got sick I turned myself in to the social
services agency. They took me back to the detention center for several days and
then placed me in yet another foster home for girls. It was better than the other
foster home but it still was not somewhere a person should live. During the time I
stayed there I saw girls trying to kill themselves. They would cry every day, and so
would I. About 4 days later I was told I was going to be sent to another foster home.
I could not handle being shifted around so much and being treated like nobody
cared what happened to me. I ran away from there. Although I already knew that
living on the streets was not a good life I felt it would be better than going from
foster home to foster home.

For the next 2 years I lived with friends, not going to school, using drugs, drink-
ing and wasting my life away. I continued to have contact with my grandfather be-
cause he was the only person that I felt really cared about what happened to me.

When I was 14 I was driving my friend's mother's car and I hit a school bus. The
ambulance took me to the hospital. The police gave me a ticket for reckless driving.
After I was released from the hospital I continued to stay with friends again. My
life didn't change. I was around people not doing anything for themselves and there-
fore I also had no hope for the future.

When I was 15 my grandfather died. i tried to- blame everyone else for his death. I
felt angry, sad, and most of all very alone. The most important person to me in my
life was now gone.

One of the last things my grandfather told me was that it was very important to
get my education. He believed in me and saw a better future for me. That was a
turning point, I then knew I had to change my life.

I turned myself in to the police and was taken to the detention center. I heard
about the PACE Center for Girls and felt I like that might be an opportunity to get



my education. When I went to court it was decided that I could move back with my
mother. We worked on our relationship and began getting along better.

I also enrolled in the PACE Center for Girls. The program taught me many
things. I learned not only academics but also the life skills I needed to make it. Ifelt as though the staff really understood me. They taught me how to set goals,
achieve them, and then recognize my accomplishments. This made me feel really
good about myself. I had a very special advisor at PACE who helped me deal with
my personal problems as well as school problems. She met with my mom monthly todiscuss my progress and to talk about how things were going at home. This also
helped my relationship with my mom. I earned my high school diploma and I'm cur-
rently taking a computer course through the community college and working part
time. When I turn 17 I will enroll in the college nursing program.

It wasn't the judge who made me want to go to school or the social workers who
made me want to better my life. It was people who cared, who made me know that I
deserved better.

Being in and out of the detention center and foster homes didn't help any. To tell
someone you were in places like that was like boasting about old war stories.

But to tell someone how people like my grandfather, my mother and the people at
PACE gave me that push and confidence to make me want to strive for excellence,
was like telling someone how I won the war.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Ford. We will hear from
Ms. Burke?

STATEMENT OF VICKI BURKE, DIRECTOR AND FOUNDER, PACE
CENTER FOR GIRLS, JACKSONVILLE, FL

Ms. BURKE. Good morning. My name is Vicki Burke. I am the di-
rector of PACE Center for Girls. It is a non-residential, community-
based program that we started about 7 years ago, primarily for
status offenders. Eventually we ended up taking delinquents, de-
pendents, high school drop-outs, and teen parents, primarily just
girls.

What we see is that they all have basically similar problems.
Frequently, there is a history of some dysfunctional family, maybe
their parents were substance abusers. As Talaya told us, it may be
a father who was in prison or a mother who was in prison.

I had this great speech prepared about how boys act out differ-
ently than how girls act out. But you already gave it. So I am justgoing to take a few minutes to tell you what we did in Florida and
what we are doing in Florida, for girls.

When we initially started the program, I called our State social
services agency to find out what other kinds of programs there
were in the State, on which we might be able to model ours in
Jacksonville. At that time we had no programs for girls in our city.
The information I got was that there are no programs for girls in
the State of Florida. So they really could not help us.

I am a social worker. I tried to do some research around the
country but obviously aid not have the skills to do that. We ended
up just making up our program. When we made mistakes, we
would quit doing whatever was going wrong. If we learned some-
thing that worked, we would start doing that.

There are several reasons why our programs are so successful. It
is non-residential, we keep the young women at home whenever
possible. There are situations when it just does not work out for
them to stay at home. But most of the time, if we can keep a girl at
home and work problems out there while she is at home, the situa-
tion is really going to change for the better.



I think we are successful because our staff-student ratio is so low.
Our classroom size is no larger than one to ten. We do this primari-
ly because most of our girls have been out of school for at least 1 or
2 years. We have had some 16-year-old girls who are still in the
fourth grade. Chances of them finishing high school are pretty
much nil.

I think another reason for our success is that our program is not
geared solely to addressing pregnancy, substance abuse, or drop-
ping out of school. It encompasses all of the problems. If we have a
mother who is a substance abuser and we are trying to help her
daughter, we are going to do whatever we can do to get her mother
help as well. If we have a mother who is not employed, we are
going to do whatever we can do to help her find employment.

We do not just take one girl and say, "Okay, we are going to fix
this particular problem right now." Instead, we look at everything
that is going on in her life and work it from that perspective. If we
know everything that is going on in her life, we can really address
all of the problems.

It does take a long time to find out about things like sexual
abuse, but there are some pretty neat things that can be done
which do not take a lot of time. For example, we have several ex-
perts on sexual abuse in our cities. We have many folks come in
from the community to talk about their jobs or whatever they are
familiar with.

We will have somebody come in from the child protection team
to talk about sexual abuse. She might talk to 20 girls. As soon as
she finishes talking it is incredible how many hands are raised. It
would probably take us months to get to that. But because this one
expert comes in and talks very candidly and openly about sexual
abuse, it takes no time at all for other girls to think, "Gosh, that
happened to me, I am not alone."

Another reason for our success is that we are really focused on
what we are trying to do. We think that education is the only way
these girls are going to have a better life. This does not mean just
high school, but going on further than '1hat. The goal is to go on to
college, to go on to vocational school.

One absolutely has to graduate from high school. But in order to
really be able to take care of oneself and not be dependent on
someone else, more than just a high school education is needed
these days.

Another thing we do is assign each student, as soon as she comes
in, an advisor who is responsible for her the entire time she is at
our program. This means that if she needs glasses, her advisor will
get her glasses. If she needs to go to court, her advisor goes to court
with her. Advisors do home visits With the parents to let them
know what types of goals we have set up for the girls in the pro-
gram, and whether or not their daughters are achieving those
goals.

We also have goals set up at home and discuss with the parents
whether or not the girls are achieving those goals. They can be
simple goals, such as keeping curfews, cleaning their bedrooms, or
getting to school on time in the morning. We do not put too much
pressure on them because we want them to be successful at little



things; once they are, they will be able to see that they can go on
to bigger things.

We also have a follow-up job placement portion of our program.
We follow girls for 3 years after they leave our program to make
sure that they are working or they are in school. They cannot grad-
uate from our program unless they are enrolled in school or have a
job. Otherwise we would be sending them back out there where it
is just not going to work. We have seen that, we know that.

Our follow-up placement coordinator calls them on a monthly
basis and asks about school or work. A girl can leave our program
who we know is going to make it because she has a great job. But
in 3 months she can get mad at her employer and quit, just like
that. We really have to stay on top of them and help and support
them as much as we can.

We have a lot of girls who just call us, just to talk and tell us
how they are doing. I would like to say that not every girl who
comes into our program is successful. In the beginning, because our
waiting list was so long, we were kind of forced to simply say
"Okay" and let them go if they decided to leave.

Now, however, we have taken girls back who have been through
our program two or three times unsuccessfully, but end up turning
their lives around just by realizing that this is an opportunity. The
girls who we take into our program are not court-ordered, they are
there voluntarily. We tried court-ordered in the very beginning; it
did not work.

Our program is not meant to be punishment. The girls that we
take choose to be there. If they decide in 2 or 3 weeks that they
want to leave, we can tAlk until we are blue in the face, but it is
still their decision. It has to be their decision. They have got to
start making, we hope, smart decisions for themselves. If we are
getting them to do everything we want them to do, then that is not
going to help them once they leave our program.

Length of stay for our students really varies, as we try to focus
on each girl individually. We might have a student who is there for
4 months or we might have a student who is there for over a year.
It really depends on the individual.

Finally, the most important reason for our success is that the
people who are involved in our program, the staff we have, are un-
believably dedicated to girls. They give way over what is expected
of anyone in their job.

More important is the community. We have boards of directors
who are just incredible at getting us the things we need. Obviously,
like everyone else, we do not have a lot of money. We have three
programs in operation right now and pay no rent or utilities at any
of the three programs. Board members and communities have do-
nated everything.

I came up with some recommendations for the committee to
hear. One, I would like States to start doing some data collection
on girls in the juvenile justice system. I agree that there has not
been enough data on girls for us to really look at what the issues
are.

I would like this committee to direct States to address and in-
clude girls in their State plan. I would like this committee to pro-
vide technical assistance to States for services concerning girls.



Again, when we first started out, we had no programs on which to
model ours. It was really just our best guess.

I think that it is important, particularly since we sent out a
survey to some other States, to find out what the States are doing
for girls. I have received several phone calls and some information.
They are basically saying that they do not know what to do for
girls. They know that they need to do something for girls, but do
not have many programs on which to model themselves. Very few
non-residential programs exist. Most of the programs for girls are
residential.

I would like this subcommittee to look at providing some fund-
ing, perhaps to the research and development of programs that can
be model programs for other States to use. Lastly, I would like to
see that court orders are not invoked to address status offenses. I
see court orders used, in the best intentions, to keep kids, girls pri-
marily, safe and off the streets.

It is interesting that most of nur girls at PACE are from single-
parent homes. Most of our girls Jlive with their mothers. Their
mothers have generally been sexually and physically abused, sub-
stance abusers, dependent on welfare, and teen mothers.

I see that we have a perfect opportunity to break this cycle,
which we keep saying that we want to break, by addressing both
the girl's and her mother's needs. These young women definitely
are our future. I feel as if we can make a difference. We cannot
continue to complain about the numbers of teen pregnancies, drop-
outs, and runaways rising without choosing to make a difference.

I am really looking at you to take the lead. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Vickie Burke follows:]
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Vicki B. Burke
Director

P.A.C.E. Center For Girls, Inc.

Chairman Martinez and members of the Education and Labor
Subcommittee on Human Resources, my name is Vicki Burke. I am the
Director of P.A.C.E. Center For Girls, a non-residential,
community-based program for high risk girls, ages 14 through 18.
Thank you for holding this hearing today, and thank you for giving
me the opportunity to speak before this Subcommittee regarding the
young women in our country who are presently in the juvenile
justice system. These young women are being treated as delinquents
when they are primarily children in need of services (status
offenders - runaways, truants, ungovernables, throwaways).

Historically, services to girls have not been given adequate
attention in the juvenile justice syst. m, since girls represent a
smaller percentage of the delinquency population. Most juvenile
justice programs have either locked girls away in secure
residential facilities or simply ignored them. Young women are
typically not locked up because they pose a threat to their
community, but because juvenile judges believe it is somehow in the
best interest of the child to incarcerate them or judges are
constrained because there are no services for them anyway.

The Problem

Communities can see the results of boys who have grown up in pain
caused by dysfunctional families, physical and sexual abuse,
neglect, or substance abuse. They act out by victimizing the
community through criminal, sometimes violent, behavior.
Communities, because they want to protect themselves, their
families, their property, and their neighborhood, pay attention.

When girls act out their pain, they often are self destructive.
They run away, become involved in prostitution, have babies, or
surrender their lives to men for attention and shelter. Their pain
is silent and invisible. The only victim a girl will leave behind
is herself. Too often communities do not pay attention.

Since troubled boys are a threat to the community and they act out
their problems in a visible way, they receive more attention and
thus more services and opportunities than girls receive.

Girls are again victimized when they seek help because, there are
so few resources available to them. Females are returned home or
receive no services twice as often as males. Girls routinely wait
longer than males to receive treatment, and the treatment they
finally do receive is often less intensive and of shorter duration.
Waits up to six months are not uncommon for girls. In a sense,
girls are penalized, because they do not act out by committing a
crime. Most girls who come to the attention of juvenile justice
authorities have committed "status offenses," such as running way
or violating curfew. These offenses would not .be crimes if
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committed by adults. These young women have been committed to lock
up or secure residential facilities because they have violated a
court order not to run away, to attend school, or obey their
parents. Is it reasonable to ask a young women to attend school or
remain at home if she is being-sexually abused? Frequent runaways
is a common symptom of past or present sexual abuse; these youth
need treatment not incarceration.

In 1974, the Juvenile and Justice Delinquency Prevention Act
,required the removal of status offenders from secure institutions.
The law was intended to benefit girls, who had previously been
locked up in secure residential programs for less serious offenses
and for longer period of times than boys. Service providers
applauded the movement away from institutionalization, but pointed
out that leaving the kids (primarily girls) to fend for themselves
was not the answer. In detention centers or training schools, they
at least had food and shelter. Now too many girls live on the
streets or in unhealthy, exploitative or abusive environments
because as most juvenile justice authorities and child advocates
acknowledge there are very few services for troubled young women.

There seems to be a double standard in our society about young
women. Public attitude seems to blame the girls for having these
problems. Girls are labeled as "bad" for being promiscuous when
they are actually recreating their earlier abuse or looking for
someone to give them the love and attention they never received at
home. Girls sometimes try to fill this void by having a baby -
someone to love them.

There have been several studies that document the inequities of
services between boys and girls including The University of
Michigan Center for the Study of Youth Policy, "Programming For
Young Women in the Juvenile Justice System", (January, 1991);
The Virginia Department of Youth and Family Services, "Young
Women in Virginia's Juvenile Justice System; Where Do They
Belong", (December, 1991); The Florida Supreme Court Gender Bias
Study Commission Report, (December, 1990); The Oregon's Girls
Advocacy Project, "Comprehensive Statewide For At-Risk Girls and
Young Women, (November, 1990); The National Council of Jewish
Women, "Adolescent Girls in the Juvenile Justice System", (March,
1984).

Some of their findings are as follows:
- girls make up over half of the children in need of services

(status offenders) category
- girls pose little threat to society
- girls spend more time locked up in secure, residential

facilities and for less serious offenses than boys
(i.e., violation of court order to not run away, to attend
school, keep curfew, or obey parents)



- girls are not a focus in the juvenile justice system because
more boys commit crimes

- aost programs for girls are residential, but out-of-home
placements are unnecessary for many girls and they often
lack aftercare services offered upon return home. The
University of Michigan noted the reason girls were placed in
residential programs was due to the lack of community based
alternatives although community based alternatives are the most
effective.

- The Florida Supreme Court Gender Bias Study found that
prostitutes had one common trait - they ran from sexual or
physical abuse. They determined that not all incest victims
became prostitutes, but almost all prostitutes were incest
victims. They found that adult prostitutes had often started
as teenagers.

Another study done by the Valentine Foundation, " A Conversation
With Girls," (May, 1990), concluded that girls act out differently
and need different programs than boys. They also found a strong
correlation between childhood sexual abuse and substance abuse,
homelessness, women in prison, and eating disorders. This study
also concluded that most dropout prevention programs are geared
toward boys.

Community safety is the standard upon which services to youth has
been based, meaning girls constitute a lower priority than boys.
Girls are far more likely to be threat to themselves rather than to
the community. People seem to believe that the worst a girl is
going to do is get pregnant, but the worst a boy is going to do is
kill someone. This phenomenon tends to drive the system with the
juvenile justice system devoting the bulk of their resources to
males. Lacking a powerful lobby of agitated victims, girls
programs are often the last funded and the first cut. Fragments of
help are all that is typically offered to troubled girls who will
become the mothers of our next generation.

Although it is hard to see the quite suffering and danger faced by
our young women, their dilemma is our dilemma. When we throw away
homeless, runaway, abused or neglected girls, we throw away a part
of our future. There are costs to each of us when we are unable to
see and help the young women of our next generation. We perpetuate
a worsening cycle of generational abuse, teen parenting,
delinquency and emotional dysfunction. In addition to these
unquantifiable, human consequences, we also pay a high monetary
price when we neglect these young women:

* 60% of all American families on public assistance are headed
by former or current teen mothers

* An unwed mother is the most likely person to join the welfare

rolls and the least likely to join the labor force
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* The U.S. estimated that $21 billion is spent annually for
teen households

* Single mother families are the fastest growing segment of our
homeless population

* More than 75% of people living in poverty are women and
children

* Two thirds of the world's illiterate are women and girls

One Solution

In 1989, in Florida alone, 49% of our child population was female
yet girls were 77% of the child sexual abuse victims; 44% of the
child abuse fatalities and 48% of those abandoned. Fifty six
percent of the runaway and homeless youth were girls. Florida has
the nations's highest suicide rate and ranks fourth in the nation
for teen pregnancy. Ninety percent of our teen mothers are not in
school and less than half of the teens who are parents before age
18 graduate from high school.

In Jacksonville, Florida, the need for services for girls was
recognized in 1985. P.A.C.E. Center For Girls opened that year
with the support of the juvenile court judges. The first ten
clients wete all status offenders who were locked up in the
detention center for running away. All of the girls enrolled in
P.A.C.E. have either dropped out or have been identified as
potential school drop outs. Sexual or physical abuse is one of the
most common problems faced by the young women who attend our
program. Because of a myriad of social and emotional issues, they
experience extreme difficulty in adjusting to a regular school
environment. Despite the multiplicity of problems noted above,
these disenfranchised young girls respond positively in a caring,
therapeutic environment.

P.A.C.E., a non-residential, community-based program, serves the
needs of female status offenders, delinquents, dependents,
dropouts, pregnant or teen mothers who are ages 14 - 18. The
program has provided comprehensive educational and social services
to over 700 young women since inception. The intent of the program
is the prevention of juvenile delinquency, status offenses, high
school dropouts, foster care referrals and teen pregnancies.
P.A.C.E. provides young women with the necessary skills to become
independent, self-reliant and productive citizens in their
communities.

Description of Services

P.A.C.E. offers a comprehensive continuum of services that are
specially designed to meet the unique needs of at risk girls.
Attendance is voluntary and there are no charges for services. The
staff/student ratio in each class is 1:10. Upon entrance in the



47

program, each student is assigned a staff advisor and advocate for
their length of stay in the program to ensure the students needs
are met and any problems addressed. The specific components of the
program are:

I. Education: Education is the core of P.A.C.E. and the key to
bringing many of the girls out of broken homes, poverty, and
low self esteem. Each girl attends school while at P.A.C.E.
and works towards her high school credit diploma or the G.E.D.
P.A.C.E. is a fully accredited high school credit program
which includes remedial, high school credit and General
Education Development (GED) Examination preparation. P.A.C. E.
has a scholarship fund to assist with continued education for
the girls after they graduate from P.A.C.E.

II. Life Manacement: The P.A.C.E. curriculum consists of a five-
part life management component which includes classes that are
designed to educate, motivate and build self esteem. Areas of
study include: health and physical fitness, life management,
cultural appreciation, career development and home economics.

III. Counseling: P.A.C.E. treatment plans are specifically
tailored to each student. Individual and group counseling
sessions are conducted regularly. Staff are on call 24 hours
a day in the event of an emergency. Close communications
and availability of staff to students are key in defusing
many crisis situations.

IV. Community Service: The enhancement of self esteem and
promotion of self worth are integrally related to pride and
involvement in a community. Therefore, P.A.C.E. requires
each girl to participate in at least two different community
projects while enrolled. Thcse projects include serving
lunch to the elderly, working with abused children, and
helping with abandoned animals at a local shelter. These
projects are also a way for our students to pay back the
community for supporting them.

Although the average length of stay is seven months, the program is
based upon individual needs, so length of stay can vary from four
months to one year. The girls can not graduate from the program
unless they are enrolled in continuing education or are employed.
Additionally, P.A.C.E. has developed a comprehensive 3 year
placement and follow-up evaluation component whether a girl
successfully completes the program or not. The follow-up
coordinator ensures that students continue with their education and
employment.



Recommendations

We urge the Subcommittee on Human Resources to address the special
needs of this population in the reauthorization of the Juvenile
Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act by:

1. Directing the OJJDP to study girls in the juvenile justice
system, the number of female status offenders who are put in
secure detention, the disposition of cases, and any
disparities in services based on gender.

2. Directing each state to include and address how they are going
to provide services to girls in their plans and to report
annually on their progress.

3. Providing funds for research and development projects that can
assist female status offenders and delinquents.

4. Providing technical assistance to states in creating gender
sensitive services and programs.

5. Ensuring court orders are not invoked in response to frequent
runaways, sexual activity and truancy.

There has to be more services available to accommodate and address
their special needs. Services have to be more gender specific.
Girls tend to unload when they feel safe, but when placed in
treatment programs for boys they clam up for fear of being laughed
at or being victimized again.

If residential services are being provided, follow up and aftercare
services have to be required when they return to often the same
environment they were being abused or neglected in. Problems for
girls are intertwined. You have to look at more than just teen
pregnancy or abuse or homelessness or drug abuse. Services can not
be fragmented to address an individual problem when they are all
related.

There is a lot of fragmentation in states and between states trying
to serve young women. Every one is working with good intentions,
but in isolation. We need to tie in collaborative efforts and
identify successful non-residential and residential programs that
are addressing all of their issues and share with the each other.
We talk about breaking the cycle, but we can not accomplish that
without addressing the needs of the young women who are our future
mothers. We can not continue to neglect this population.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify. We are looking forward
to working with you to ensure the juvenile justice system is
responsive to all of our nation's youth.



Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you. I do not know how to begin.
You know, the last statement kind of threw me. I am going to try
to take the lead on this. I am going to, in the reauthorization of
this, ask for certain things to be changed.

One of the things that comes clear here today is that there is not
really enough research being done regarding the sources that girls
need and not enough attention or resources have been devoted to
them. Dr. Deschenes said the same thing, the need for research. I
think Ms. Redaelli said the same thing. It is obvious from what you
say, that when you called the State social services to ask for some
direction they could not give you any, because there was nothing
out there.

Later in your statement you said that you called other States to
see what they were doing and they tell you they do not really
know. I am going to ask you to make available that information, if
you can document the information that you received from the
States regarding the lack of programs for girls. Because it is obvi-
ous here that there are a lot of places that do not have any girls'
programs and do not know what to do to serve girls adequately.
And if they do not know what to do it is because they have not
paid any attention to it or tried to do anything about it.

How long has your program been in existence?
Ms. BURKE. Over 7 years now.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Seven years. So 7 years ago, which is not

that long ago, the State of Florida did not have one program like
this?

Ms. BURKE. The only programs that Florida has, other than our
program which right now is only in three sites, are what are called
group homes. At group homes, if a girl becomes a delinquent, she is
sent away.

Chairman MARTINEZ. What happens in those group homes?
Ms. BURKE. Length of stay is usually very short. It is never in

the community where the girls are. There is never any follow-up. I
have visited several group homes. The girls are involved with aca-
demics while they are there. They practice other life skills which
are really important. Most of the girls seem to do well when they
are there. But then they are sent back to the community, to the
same environment and the same family. We have taught them all
of these wonderful things, but cannot possibly expect a child to go
home and work out all these problems.

Chairman MARTINEZ. It comes back to what I said earlier about
sending a kid back to the same environment that is causing them
to fail in the first place. I mean, why do we keep sending them
back? Or, if they keep running away why do we use a valid court
order to stick them in a lockup some place? And then we keep
them there and we do not do what we .,.eed to do for them. The
second that they are out they go back 0 the same environment
they were in. They get in the same kind of environment and have
the same mental attitudes that caused them to have the problems
in the first place.

I mean, I remember talking to a young kid in Job Corps, which
Job Corps turned around. But Job Corps is a complete residency
program. And talking to him, I thought gee, what a positive young
man he was. And there was a young woman there, too, and what a



positive young woman she was. And I thought to myself well, these
people would be successful regardless, because they have this posi-
tive attitude and this great drive.

And when I made that remark the director quickly jumped on
me, and deservedly, and said yeah, you did not see them when they
came in. The one young woman was ready to fight at the drop of a
hat and usually did. And the young man was the same way.

And so I asked the young man if he was a dropout from school.
And he looked at me right straight in the eye and he said no, I was
not a dropout, I was a force-out. He said that his life situation
forced him out. His environment at home, his environment at
school, his environment in the community. And I thought, that is a
brilliant statement, he understands. And now he has changed all
that. I

And he was going to go into the Marine Corps and go to helicop-
ter school, he had already signed a contract to do that. And he had
his future all planned out. When he got out of the service, after
learning all that in the service, that is what he was going to work
in as an occupation. Which was outstanding. And I really believe
that he will accomplish that.

But all of these young people. I see that all they need is some-
body to point them in the right direction. All they need is an alter-
native. And you ask me to be leader, I have got to get 434 other
people who think they are leaders to consider all of this, to say,
hey, this is what we have to do.

We were very successful reauthorizing the Older Americans Act.
Hopefully we will be successful on this. I have some colleagues on
our committee, Mr. Barrett being one of them, who are very anx-
ious about it. Mr. Barrett, I guess you know, comes from that State
that is the home of Boys Town. And one of the most remarkable
success stories, but again it is for boys.

Ms. Burke, you said that 7 years ago you went out and asked
other States about their programs for girls and there was none.
Then you asked for technical expertise from the government. I am
not sure the government can give you technical expertise because I
am not sure they have it. Maybe you can give technical expertise
to them.

Ms. BURKE. I am one person, one social worker, who did some-
thing in my community that has really snowballed. In talking with
other folks from around the country, it is obvious that this is not
just a problem in Florida, or only in my community. I would love
to be able to meet with some other folks who have either residen-
tial or non-residential programs. We would be able to look at some
really good programs and see what fits our different needs.

This is why I am looking to you. I do not even know where to
begin. I know that I would like for all girls in this country to have
the same opportunities as the two who spoke before me. The goal is
for them to finish school and move on to a better life. I know that
we cannot change what has happened to them. But I also know
that we sure could help change what their future would be. It
seems as if somehow we ought to be able to do this. It should not
be too difficult.



Chairman MARTINEZ. I agree with you. But there are some stum-
bling blocks. Let me ask you this, were you aware of Children of
the Night Program before today?

Ms. BURKE. I had seen it on the news.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Had you not talked to anybody from that

program at all?
Ms. BURKE. There are other programs, such as Girls, Incorporat-

ed with whom I have talked. There is a program out in Oregon,
Girls Emancipation Program, that is a residential, independent
living program for girls. I met their director. She and I have been
talking about what we are doing for girls. I find out about these
programs by meeting people who introduce me to others. Or some-
body who has heard about me from someone else will call wanting
information. There really is no-

Chairman MARTINEZ. Association, group, or national network.
Ms. BURKE. Yes. Tomorrow I am going up to New York for the

week to meet and talk with several of the foundations. There have
been several studies in the last couple of years about services for
girls, concerning the amount of funding that has been going into
girls' programs versus boys' programs. We are brainstorming and
trying to build a national task force. For example, could we have a
national girls conference? What are some things that we can do to
try to make this happen?

Chairman MARTINEZ. Now Girls, Incorporated has a national net-
work, right?

Ms. REDAELLI. Yes, that is correct.
Chairman MARTINEZ. And you have what, 122 sites?
Ms. REDAELLJ. One hundred and twenty-two cities across the

Nation, 300 centers.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Three hundred centers. Quite a substantial

number.
Ms. REDAELLI. We are based in New York. We have a national

resource center, the only one of its kind, in Indianapolis that does
research on girls and young women.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Do the studies that Ms. Burke talked
about, some of them come out of your research center there?

Ms. REDAELLI. I do believe so.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Could we have copies of those studies?
Ms. REDAELLI. Absolutely. We can send them to you.
Chairman MARTINEZ. There are so many associations and organi-

zations that have international network that then have annual
conferences and come to Washington with their annual conference
to make the legislators in Washington understand. And they take a
day to go out and lobby the legislators on their particular needs.
Has your group ever done it?

Ms. REDAELLI. We have our 47th national conference coming up
this April, next month, in Beverly Hills.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Oh, that is a great place. Has Girls, Incor-
porated made an effort to take as associates organizations that, you
are simply based in Florida, right?

Ms. BURKE. Right.
Chairman MARTINEZ. And you have three centers?
Ms. BURKE. We have three centers and we are preparing to open

two new ones in Miami and Fort Lauderdale.



Chairman MARTINEZ. Because their aim and goal is the same as
yours, is there a way that maybe because you already have a na-
tional network, of drawing some of these other people into that?

Ms. REDAELLI. Of course.
Chairman MARTINEZ. And really forming a political force, right.

Because somehow that is what you need to knock people in the
head in Washington. It is like the guy said, sometimes you have to
get their attention with a big stick. And it would help us tremen-
dously in our moving to reauthorize this.

Ms. REDAELLI. The other thing we do throughout the country is
have annual regional conferences. There are conferences annually
in Ms. Burke's area of the country that would not require her to
travel across the country every year. We have national and region-
al conferences.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Do you have a mailing, a regular mailing
that goes out across the country?

Ms. REDAELLI. Yes.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Are you on that mailing list?
Ms. BURKE. No, sir.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Would you like to be on that mailing list?
Ms. BURKE. I sure would.
Chairman MARTINEZ. I would think that would be a great advan-

tage to get on that.
Ms. REDAELLI. I would like to add that Girls, Incorporated has af-

filiates, program associates, which Ms. Burke could possibly
become. There are groups such as YWCA's and Boys and Girls
Clubs across the Nation that are program associates. They receive
our research to help their programs. I am sure that we can work
together.

Chairman MARTINEZ. All right. Super. Maybe I have been a little
help to you here.

Ms. BURKE. Thank you.
Chairman MARTINEZ. The young women, I just want to ask one

question of both of you. You have been through what I call a trau-
matic experience in your life, but maybe looks like it is moving to-
wards a positive outcome. And you have received some services in
that direction. Now thinking about the things, the help you have
received, are there any other things that you would have liked to
receive that you have not, or things that you have received that
you think should be basic to any kind of a program that tries to
help young people like yourself? Start with you, Ms. Ford.

Ms. FORD. When I was in the foster homes, I felt that if someone
had been sent out as a representative from somewhere to talk to
the kids, ask about what was going on in the home, ask how they
were getting along, and talk 1.o the foster parents, foster homes
would have been a better place. Maybe I would not have run away
from them.

Chairman MARTINEZ. It is intel esting that you say that. I used to
commend parents who were willing to take another child into their
home to raise them. In some of cases some of these people had chil-
dren of their own. Until I met a group of young students had all
come together because they had all been foster children of foster
homes who were now trying to get a real credible education to



make something of their lives. And they helped each other as a
peer group, a support group.

And listening to some of their stories about their foster homes,
and I suddenly started to realize, hey, it is not all so rosy out there.
I got in touch with McLaren Hall and talked to the one-time direc-
tor out there, George Egan, who talked about the real situations
for these kids. A lot of them had been placed in foster homes that
were abusive.

And I wondered, why does somebody not do a better investiga-
tion of who is going to take these kids. And then sit down and then
monitor the homes themselves. You know, surprise visits to the
home, talk to the kid, find out how that kid is being treated in
there. If any follow-up is really being done, effectively it is not
going on extensively enough because there are too many children
being abused in foster homes.

And that is something that I think, Mi. Barrett, we really ought
to work on. Finding out just what we do as national leaders to find
out how we can improve the situation for foster children in foster
homes. That is a good suggestion, Ms. Ford.

The PARTICIPANT. I agree with her suggestion. In the Department
of Children's Services, the people who place these children are
really another form of counselors. It would have helped if someone
had come and looked at the situation in the home; it is not neces-
sarily right all the time.

Chairman MARTINEZ. In some cases, unfortunately, people take a
kid into their home just because they are going to get a stipend for
that child and it is going to mean a little extra money, income, in
the house. But the family and the child may not be compatible. I
do not know why they do not do a better job of matching. There
have been some very successful foster home situations.

I was aware of a lady who really was super woman, I mean liter-
ally Superwoman. She had, through her years, had 123 foster chil-
dren, who all considered her their real mother, 123. And on her
eighty-fifth birthday, there was only one who was not there who
sent a letter saying he was sorry he could not be there. And all of
them were very successful people. So she had had a positive effect
on them.

And I guess in my mind, that stuck, until I started hearing about
these other situations, which are tragic really.

The PARTICIPANT. I mentioned the SODA beds earlier: people are
paid money just to have the beds open. As soon as the kids get
there, they are told that they do not have to stay. From what I un-
derstand, the people who have these beds only have them for the
money. They do not usually get kids in for an entire month. It is
only a one night thing.

Chairman MARTINEZ. And that money is taxpayer money and if
it is going to be used that way I think we ought to require a more
responsive attitude for it. Thank you. Mr. Barrett?

Mr. BARRETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am interested in the
conversation about foster homes. I know that there are abuses,
many abuses. And yet, I know that there are also.some wonderful
cases. I just this last weekend visited with a friend of mine, a
mayor of a small community in western Nebraska. He and his wife
have successfully had 39 children in foster care.



I helped pass the first foster care review board bill in my State
when I was in the State legislature. Which is a board of volunteers
who track kids in foster care and are now actually taking care of
some of the things that you have alluded to. So not only are there
abuses, Mr. Chairman, but there are also some wonderful success
cases.

And I wonder, as you suggest, if we might not, should not, take a
better look at foster care nationally. And perhaps take a look at a
success case in my State, where we do track kids now. We keep
track of them. If they are in the system so long, we need to know
why. And those volunteers are doing a wonderful job. So thank you
for that testimony.- My antenna goes up very quickly.

Also, your comment, young lady, about preferring to be on the
streets. I could not hear your testimony entirely on the beds. It was
$900 per month?

The PARTICIPANT. From what I understand, from people I have
talked to.

Mr. BARRETT. Okay. And is this a private, public-
The PARTICIPANT. It is just a regular home and there is a bed

open in case a kid is picked up by the police some night. If the
police cannot get a hold of the parents, or if the parents do not
want to come pick them up, they are usually sent to one of those
homes. They will not send them to a shelter.

Mr. BARRETT. This is a private home?
The PARTICIPANT. Yeah.
Mr. BARRETr. Is this usual and customary in LA, are there a

number of these around?
The PARTICIPANT. Once I was picked up by the police, who tried

to send me there. Instead, my mother came and picked me up. The
police do that with a lot of the kids that they pick up, for whatever
reasons, curfew, jaywalking.

Mr. BARRETT. Again, are there a lot of these in the area?
Ms. ALVAREZ. It is primarily LA County that has SODA beds.

SODA stands for status offender detention alternative. Instead of
putting runaways in juvenile hall or kids that violate their curfews
in juvenile hall, they put them in these SODA beds.

Mr. BARRETT. Okay. Thank you. Then you said your mother
picked you up?

The PARTICIPANT. Yes.
Mr. BARRETT. That to my mind goes to the comment that you

made about your father, has there been any attempt to reunite you
with your father?

The PARTICIPANT. I occasionally call my father every now and
then. He is really not interested in talking to me. I have six other
brothers and sisters I call up to say hello on birthdays or other oc-
casions. But there is really no way I can get back together with my
father.

Mr. BARRETT. I was also interested in your siblings. You said you
have six. And you talk occasionally. Apparently no major attempts
to reunite there. Were they asked to leave the home as you were,
were they kicked out also?

The PARTICIPANT. Well, they are only 7 or 8 years old. The oldest
there is 13. He is a foster child.



Mr. BARRETT. All right. I, like Chairman Martinez, I really ap-
preciated some of the things you had to say very much. Good luck
to you. Talaya, what a beautiful name. What a beautiful job you
have done. Good testimony. Mr. Chairman, Talaya and Ms. Burke
and I shared a cab coming over this morning, so I got Ms. Burke's
full speech. And that is why probably she refused to share with you
the text of her full speech. But I appreciated it very much. Not
only the cab ride and the conversation, but your testimony this
morning.

And I do not know, I guess I kind of zero in on the aftercare, the
follow-ups that you are doing. That has got to be part of the success
of your program. And you are also saying the average length- of
stay is 7 months.-And we talked about 12 months earlier. Any com-
ments there, are you doing that much better job, are you getting
them out too soon?

Ms. BURKE. I think 7 months is the average length of stay. But
we keep some girls for 4 months and some for over a year. It really
depends on their needs. When they first come in they are very
angry and upset and test us to see what our limits are. They need
to know if we really care about them, or if we are just saying these
things.

In the next 2 months, they do a complete change. They are in-
credible in school and at home, everything is wonderful. Then they
start talking about the new girls coming in, how immature they
are and how they have so many problems. They wish that we had
never taken them. They have no clue that that is exactly how they
used to be. But it really depends on each girl. We try to look at
each girl and her individual needs, not just at the group as a
whole.

Mr. BARRETT. One-on-one and the follow-up again is one of the
keys. You mentioned, I think, aftercare, give me an example of
what you are talking about.

Ms. BURKE. We might have a girl who has graduated from our
program with her high school diploma and is enrolled in college.
Our follow-up person calls to make sure that she is still going to
school. Maybe she has hooked up with a guy who is not very appro-
priate. Perhaps she has dropped out of school. Our follow-up
person, just like those of us at the program, latches on and does
not let go- until she is back in school and gets things resolved.

It is really just to be there, like the one-on-one in our program. It
is to be there even after they have left the program. They come in
and find all of our structure and activity. We are so nosey, noting
every movement they make. We still cut them loose, but not com-
pletely loose.

If they need to be enrolled in school or drug counseling, our
follow-up person helps them. Whatever their needs are, financial
aid for college or whatever, our person is there for them.

Mr. BARRETT. Excellent. I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, that the
committee stay very close to this PACE program in Florida. I think
this is another example of a success story. And again, I appreciated
the full load of hay which I received earlier. Thank you very much.

Chairman MARTINEZ. I appreciate that, Mr. Barrett. As we reau-
thorize this bill, I now realize that there is going to need to be
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some language in it to stress the resources that are used for girls,
specific programs for girls.

As I work with Mr. Barrett and other members of the committee
to develop this language, we will be in touch with your groups and
get your input and just how you feel about the language and help
us provide something that all of our colleagues in Congress can
find acceptable and pass as we reauthorize this bill.

So, again, thank you very much for being here. It was very de-
lightful to talk to you two young women, especially because I have
a strong feeling that you are heading in a positive direction thanks
to the programs that you are involved with. And we need to thank
people like you, Ms. Burke, who founded this program. It is people
who care that make the difference, and you certainly are one of
those.

Thank you again. And thank you all for being here. We are now
adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 10:44 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
[Additional material submitted for the record follows:]



STATEMENT OF SUSAN MORRIS, CHAIR, AND FARRELL LINES, CHAIR ELECT, THE
NATIONAL COALITION OF STATE JUVENILE JUSTICE ADVISORY GROUPS

Congressman Martinez and members of the subcommittee:
This statement expresses the National Coalition's interest and concern about pro-

viding programs and services for at-risk and delinquent girls. As the only national
organization that focuses on the juvenile justice system and one mandated by sec-
tion 241(f(2) of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Act of 1974 to advise the Con-
gress ".. . with regard to State perspectives on ... Federal legislation pertaining to
juvenile justice and delinquency prevention," the NCSJJAG is uniquely interested
in this effort to begin, at a Federal level, to look at the inequity in services provided
to girls.

During this year in which the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act is
up for reauthorization, it is especially important to look closely at all aspects of de-
linquency prevention, at the juvenile justice system, and at all the children who
become involved in it. This hearing is a first, comprehensive look at the special
needs of young women and I would like to thank you for providing a forum in which
these needs can be explored.

As we move well into the 1990's, the problems faced by the youth of our country
increase in type and complexity. This is especially true of those children who are"at risk" for delinquent behavior or who already find themselves involved in the
juvenile justice system. The Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of
1974 has provided a means of helping the States and territories begin to address
many of the significant problems which were the impetus for enactment of the
JJDPA-problems such as incarceration of status offenders and putting children in
adult jails. Yet, as we have defined these problems, and taken steps to correct them,
we see many more which must be solved if we are to be able to say we are doing our
best for our children. One of these compelling problems is the lack of meaningful,
appropriate, adequate services for girls.

Those who have been intimately involved with the problems of delinquent and at-
risk children agree that the particular needs of girls have been overlooked. Most
juveniles arrested and referred to the juvenile courts are boys. Boys commit most of
the violent criminal acts. With the public attention being increasingly focused on
the problem of violent crime, the resources available to combat juvenile crime and
deal with the juveniles themselves are inevitably concentrated on boys. As pointed
out by Professor Ira Schwartz in his introduction to a booklet entitled "Program-
ming for Young Women in the Juvenile Justice System," the "needs and issues con-
fronting young females continue to be neglected by policymakers and juvenile jus-
tice professionals who, instead, address public concerns about violent juvenile crime,
primarily committed by male adolescents."

It seems ironic that because there are not nearly as many girls as boys becoming
involved with the juvenile justice system and because, when they do become in-
volved in the system, it is more often for reasons which attractlar less public atten-
tion and concern, or fear, little effort has been made to look at girls and their par-
ticular problems and needs. Yet, these girls and young women will bear and raise
the next generation of America's children. The lack of services and programs ad-
dressing the particular needs of adolescent, at-risk girls now will severely hamper
efforts to break the cycle of problems which lead these girls to become truant, to
run away from home, to become involved in drug and alcohol abuse, to become de-
linquent.

The result of this inattention to the needs of girls is twofold. There are very few
community-based programs geared towards meeting the particular needs of at-risk
and delinquent girls and, as a consequence of this lack of services, girls often end up
in training schools and detention centers for having committed only the most minor
of delinquent acts. This unnecessary and truly inappropriate way of dealing with
girls who become involved in the juvenile justice system is certainly contrary to the
spirit and intent of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act and its
whole thrust of emphasizing delinquency prevention and providing a fair and
humane juvenile justice system.

A major impetus for enactment of the JJDPA was to end the inappropriate,
unjust practice of incarcerating status offenders in secure facilities. In fact, since
the enactment of JJDPA there has been major progress in removing status offend-
ers from such facilities. Unfortunately, while there are more, though certainly not
enough, community-based facilities and programs in which boys can find treatment
and services to meet their needs there are very few such facilities and programs for
girls--not facilities and programs which can really address their special needs. "
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A comprehensive analysis of juvenile female offenders was recently published by
the Task Force on Juvenile Female Offenders of the Virginia Department of Youth
and Family Services. The report entitled "Young Women in Virginia's Juvenile Jus-
tice System: Where Do They Belong?" was published in December, 1991. It devel-
oped a profile of youthful female offenders, assessed the types and availability of
programs, analyzed the State's residential learning center's programs and services,
and analyzed public education/inforraation strategies to assist young women and
staff training needs to work with them. The report indicates that while females ac-
counted for 22 percent of delinquent complaints they constituted 51 percent of all
children in need of services complaints and one-quarter of all probation caseloads. It
found that the girls often "come from families in which they have received little or
no emotional support and in which abuse and/or neglect have occurred." It also
found that girls served longer periods of time in the State learning center for less
serious crimes than did boys. Overall, the findings in the report are consistent with
findings in other States in these respects. The report clearly supports what people
involved with juvenile and at-risk youth in other States have found-the special
needs of girls are not properly met either in the State training center nor in the
communities.

Girls need programs designed particularly for girls because they have particular
needs. Many who become enmeshed in the juvenile justice system do so because
they are runaways or truants. They very often commit these status offenses because
they are trying to escape sexual abuse at home. Many of these young women are
pregnant or are already parents. Due to these particular "conditions," there is a
special need for community-based services and programs to provide such things as
sexual abuse counseling, pregnancy counseling, training in parenting skills, and
child care. Very few such programs exist. Those that do exist have had remarkable
success in helping those girls fortunate enough to be able to participate in them.

This success is demonstrated by such programs as the PACE program about
which you will hear today and several others around the country. The common
basis of each such program is that each was developed in response to a perceived
need, backed by careful investigation of the problems of adolescent girls in the dif-
ferent States and communities. Several of these programs are featured in the book-
let previously cited, "Programming for Young Women in the Juvenile Justice
System" and clearly show, through their statistics about the girls who have partici-
pated in the programs, that the programs do help the girls to make remarkable
progress. They finish school, get jobs, learn to be independent, productive young
women.

These programs for girls have demonstrated their value, but there are only a few
of them. They must be replicated across the country as part of the continuing, over-
all goal of delinquency prevention and as a means to ensure that girls are nat incar-
cerated for acts which certainly should not merit commitment to detention centers
and training schools. The need is great, but private resources can certainly not
begin to meet the need. There must be a commitment of public moneys through the
JJDPA.

Where Federal funds have been available they have been put to very effective use
as indicated by a comprehensive report titled "Oregon Girls' Advocacy Project." The
report describes a project funded through a grant from the Oregon Commission on
Children and Youth Services. This grant provided for development of a statewide
planning process including gathering of information about at-risk girls in each
county, detailed information gathering about current services, research on model
projects serving girls in the State, and development of service-specific recommenda-
tions based on the findings. A newspaper, "Oregon Girls Advocate," attached as Ex-
hibit "A" describes some of the programs and activities serving young women which
now exist in Oregon as the result of the impetus provided by Federal "seed money."

On behalf of the National Coalition of State Juvenile Justice Advisory Groups,
and, indeed, on behalf of the young women whose interest and needs the Juvenile
Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act is intended to serve, I urge the Congress to
recognize the special and essentially unmet needs of at-risk and delinquent girls and
help to meet them through reauthorization of and increased funding for the JJDPA.

Thank you.



HEARING ON THE REAUTHORIZATION OF THE
JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PRE-
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MONDAY, MARCH 30, 1992

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES,
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The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:05 a.m., 3134
Highway 34, Central Community College, Grand Island, Nebraska,
Hon. Matthew G. Martinez, Chairman, presiding.

-Members present: Representatives Martinez and Barrett.
Staff present: Maxine Grant, chief of staff; Roger McClellan, leg-

islative assistant; Terry Deshler, legislative assistant; Lynn
Selmser, professional staff member; and Lee Cowen, professional
staff member.

Chairman MARTINEZ. It is a pleasure to be here today, and espe-
cially to be here in Grand Island, Nebraska.

I want to, first off, extend to Mr. Barrett my appreciation for his
invitation to hold a hearing here in Nebraska. I know he and I
both consider this matter to be of great importance, as do the mem-
bers of our subcommittee.

The reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Preven-
tion Act is very important and, as we go forward to do that, I think
that these hearings will help us considerably.

Many of my colleagues would probably wonder why we are in
Nebraska. Well, I think the testimony here will answer that ques-
tion, but there are two very simple reasons.

One is that it is the home of what I consider one of the premier
delinquency programs in America, the home of Boys Town.

The other is that rural America is no longer immune to the de-
structive behavior of delinquent juveniles, nor are they isolated
from the drugs, crime and violence by juveniles. If we are to reau-
thorize this Act to its greatest potential, I believe that we need to
know what exists in all parts of America.

In 1974, the Congress enacted the Juvenile Justice and Delin-
quency Prevention Act as a response to growing concerns through
the 1950's and 1960's regarding the lack of adequate services, tech-
nical expertise, and resources available to effectively provide jus-
tice, and to effectively provide the necessary help to delinquent and
at-risk youth.

(59)



More and more pressure was put on existing services for chil-
dren, youth and families as the very structure of the American
family was rapidly changing to accommodate an even more rapidly
changing workplace in society as a whole.

The original Act focused on the need for coordinated juvenile de-
linquency efforts on the Federal, State and local levels, and to in-
volve non-profit sector in these efforts with three major premises:
Juvenile crime must be reduced, the proportion of crimes commit-
ted by juveniles should be decreased, and methods of handling juve-
niles should be improved. The Act also did create the Office of Ju-
venile Justice and Delinquency Prevention to administer it.

Over the past 17 years since the implementation of the Act, it
has evolved to adjust the changing needs of both the system and
the youth that we serve. Provisions of service have gotten more so-
phisticated, but so have our youth.

The subcommittee has had hearings from the West Coast to the
East Coast looking at established programs in an effort to deter-
mine what works, and what doesn't, and at innovative new ideas
that offer other alternatives and hope for our youth.

Today, we will hear from Nebraskans who will talk about rural
issues, and the differences between the provisions of service for
rural and urban communities while still maintaining the concepts
of rehabilitation, education and motivation rather than incarcer-
ation.

In this time of being tough on crime, we have to be careful not to
lose sight of our mission to break the cycle of delinquency. We
want our streets and our homes and our families to be safe, but we
cannot keep building more prisons. We must divert our at-risk chil-
dren before they are irretrievable. We must provide alternatives to
the violent antisocial behavior, and this was once the original man-
date of the Act, and we have started in that direction, but the com-
mitment is waning.

In the past few years, Congress has reduced the funding to carry
out the Act, and it is time now for Congress to recommit and make
sure that they understand that saving our kids is one of the high-
est priorities we can have.

We have also seen that the Act has fallen short of its mission to
address the needs of our Nation's at-risk youth. This subcommittee
is today addressing today's rising issues concerning youth that will
make necessary structural changes to the JJDPA in the reauthor-
ization cycle, and to ensure that the future of our youth, and I ask
all of you in the heart of the Nation to help us in our quest.

We have traveled long and far to hold hearings, and we have
found that problems affecting our youth, such as chemical depend-
ency, drug abuse and mental illness, know no boundaries, and
living in a small town doesn't remove young adults from the corro-
sive elements that have rocked urban areas.

We also know that juveniles with an undiagnosed mental illness
often face a complex and frustrating road, and without the proper
services, they can experience the repetitious cycle through an unre-
sponsive system that doesn't meet their needs.,



Today, we will be hearing from some experts in the field of
mental health who will address some of the very important issues
relating to the needs of our youth, and the need for coordinating
comprehensive services for the mentally ill youth who have en-
tered the juvenile justice system.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Matthew G. Martinez follows:]

STATEMENT OF HON. MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM
THE STATE OF CAUFORNIA

Good morning: I am really pleased to be here this morning as part of a series of
hearings to consider the Reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act. The Act is scheduled to expire on September 30, 1992 and this sub-
committee will be looking at a number of issues between now and then, including
the original intent of the Act, its mandates, and the future of juvenile justice in
America.

In 1974, Congress enacted the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act
as a response to growing concerns through the 1950's and 1960's about the lack of
adequate services, technical expertise and resources available to effectively provide
justice and the necessary help to delinquent and at-risk juveniles. More and more
pressure was put on existing services for children, youth and families, as the very
structure of the American family was rapidly changing to accommodate an even
more rapidly changing workplace and society as a whole.

The original Act focused on the "need for coordinated juvenile delinquency efforts
on the Federal, State and local levels to involve the nonprofit sector in these ef-
forts," with three major premises: Juvenile crime must be reduced, the proportion
of crimes committed by juveniles should be decreased, and methods of handling ju-
veniles should be improved. The Act also created the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention to administer it.

Over the past 17 years since the implementation of the Act, it has evolved to
adjust the changing needs of both the system and to the youth that we serve. Provi-
sion of services has gotten more sophisticated, - t so have our youth.

The subcommittee has had hearings from the West Coast to the East Coast look-
ing at established programs in an effort to determine what works and what doesn't;
and at innovative new ideas that offer other alternatives and hope for our youth.

Today, we will hear from Nebraskans who will talk about rural issues and the
differences between the provision of services for rural and urban communities,
while still maintaining the concepts of rehabilitation, education and motivation
rather than incarceration.

In this time of being "tough on crime" we must be careful not to lose sight of our
mission to break the cycle of delinquency! We want our streets, our homes and our
families to be safe. But we cannot keep building more prisons. We must divert chil-
dren at-risk before they are irretrievable. We must provide alternatives to the vio-
lent antisocial behavior. This was the mandate of the original Act! We have started
in that direction, but the commitment is waning. Funding for this program has
dwindled from a high in 1978 of $100 million to the current appropriation of $76
million. What does that amount to in 1978 dollars? For the past 10 years the admin-
istration has virtually zeroed out OJJDP's budget only to have it restored by Con-
gress.

We also will be hearing from some experts in the field of mental health who will
address some very important issues relating to the need for coordinated comprehen-
sive services for mentally ill youth who have entered the juvenile justice system.

As we have traveled holding these hearings, we have found that the problems af-
fecting our youth, such as chemical dependency, drug abuse and mental illness
know no boundaries, and living in a small town doesn't remove young adults from
the corrosive elements that have rocked urban areas. We also know that juveniles
with an undiagnosed mental illness often face a complex and frustrating road-and
without the proper services can experience the repetitious cycle through an unre-
sponsive system that doesn't meet their needs.

We have also seen that the Act has fallen short in its mission to address the
needs of our Nation's at-risk youth. This subcommittee is committed to addressing
today's rising issues concerning youth and will make the necessary structural
changes to the JJDPA in this reauthorization cycle to ensure the future of our
youth and I ask you all, you the heart of the Nation, to help us in our quest. Thank
you.
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Chairman MARTINEZ. At this time, I would like to turn to my es-
teemed colleague, our host today, for any comments that he would
like to make.

Mr. Barrett.
Mr. BARRETt. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I want to take this opportunity to officially welcome you to the

Big Red State, and to thank you for bringing the Subcommittee on
Human Resources to Nebraska to discuss an issue which is very,
very important to all of us, and to listen to the needs of some of the
needs of some of the rural providers of care to troubled youth in
our district. As you and I have discussed already, this district is
quite expansive, it covers a lot of territory.

I believe that the Chairman arrived in Nebraska, specifically
Omaha, yesterday, and had an excellent tour of Boys Town. He and
his staff spent a considerable amount of time, not only walking
around but visiting, talking and listening to people at Boys Town.

Then, yesterday afternoon, he had the opportunity to take advan-
tage of such local items like Farner Park, and I think I will leave it
at that. If any of you are particularly interested in the outcome of
his wagering yesterday, please feel free to ask him. I won't go any
further at this point.

But at any rate, he has had a chance for hands-on. We had a de-
lightful steak last night at Dresbacks. We gave him the opportuni-
ty to share with us some -of the finest steaks in this part of the
world, I think.

When I first invited Chairman Martinez to Nebraska, I think I
dangled the carrot, which was, frankly, Boys Town. I shared with
him the fact that this is the 75th anniversary of Boys Town, and
that it might be good for this subcommittee to come to Nebraska,
at which time he told me that Spencer Tracy had always been one
of his favorite actors, and that he thought that this might be a
good idea. So Father Val Peter and others made those arrange-
ments as well.

In addition to thanking Chairman Martinez and his staff and, of
course, my staff as well, this is an opportunity for me to say thank
you to President Joe Krozier of Central Community College.

I guess Joe isn't here at this particular moment, but the Central
Community College did a good job of preparing for this hearing
this morning.

Also, Sharon Hepner, the secretary, who has done a lot of the
legwork here in preparation for this hearing, and Clark Keffer over
here handling our sound equipment for the day.

We thank you as well, Clark.
Now that you are here, Mr. Chairman, I know that Nebraskans,

and some of the other witnesses that have been assembled here,
and others who are interested in the subject will avail themselves
of the opportunity to share with us the difficulties in providing
help to youth who, in some case, in this area, are as many as 50,
75, 100 miles from any shelter, like we have just seen a few mo-
ments ago.

Let me hasten to add, we started the day early today, at Mid
Plains Shelter here in Grand Island. We had a delightful hour with
the residents out there, had breakfast with them, and listened to
them tell us some rather interesting things. It was a very filling



breakfast, not only in terms of the food that we ate, but certainly
in terms of the company that we kept.

I agree, Mr. Chairman, we have a good panel of witnesses today,
and I think this is going to be a very exciting hearing. What does
concern me so often are the silent voices of the kids in rural areas.
Too often, these children who are often physically and sexually and
mentally abused have no one to turn to in the small communities

-in which we are living, and that has always been troubling to me.
At that point, they often turn to running away, drugs, and crime,

and actually just withdrawing from society, I think, in so many
cases. That is a very unfortunate phenomenon that really doesn't
know any geographic boundaries. It doesn't know any population
boundaries, but in rural areas, we are particularly sensitive, I
think, to something like this.

So often our smaller communities have other priorities, economic
development, water systems, whatever it might be, and that is im-
portant, and understandably so, but too often the whispers of the
neglected and abused and troubled children sometimes go unheard.

Again, I think it is so important that we are here to listen to
rural Nebraska. We were in L.A. a week ago listening to urban
needs. Your subcommittee has been in Portland and other places,
but here we are in the breadbasket, in the heartland to listen to
the needs of these people as well.

I guess it would be easy for me, Mr. Chairman, to suggest some
changes that might be needed but, if I knew that, we wouldn't be
here, and I think you would agree.

So we do have an outstanding panel. I am looking forward to the
testimony, and I guess, at this point, for the children, the time has
come for us to listen.

Thank you very much.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Barrett.
I would like to explain one thing, however. I did go out to the

place where they were holding races, but I really went for the flea
market. I just happened to wander over where they were placing
bets, and had a terrific hunch. It didn't work out, though.

I felt that we were doing a service for Nebraska, we were helping
the economy here, spending a few dollars.

Mr. BARRETr. It is nice to have that dropped in this economy.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Our first panel, Ms. Ruth Vance, Father

Val Peter, and Ms. Peggy Adair, if you would come forward.
As they come forward, I will explain to the audience just who

they represent.
Ruth Vance is the Director of the Panhandle Community Service

of Gering, Nebraska.
Father Val Peter is the Director of Boys Town, Boys Town, Ne-

braska.
Let me just say right here and now, Father Peter, that I was not

only impressed with Boys Town as a whole, and especially im-
pressed with the home we visited and the people we talked to, but
impressed with the young people. These are such delightful, won-
derful young people. It is hard to imagine how kids that are so de-
lightful could get involved in situations they couldn't control, but
thank God that there was some place for them to go.



I was equally impressed with your sermon yesterday. I did attend
mass. I almost went to communion, except I figured that I would
need to go to Father Peter first and spend about 2 hours confess-
ing.

At any rate, we have with us also Ms. Peggy Adair who is the
Voices for Children, Omaha, Nebraska.

We will start with Ms. Vance.
Let me say, just before you start that any written testimony that

you have provided will be printed in its entirety in the record. We
would, therefore, ask you to summarize your testimony, hitting the
high points, those things that you think we really need to hear.
You may proceed any way you want.

STATEMENT OF RUTH VANCE, PROGRAM DIRECTOR, PANHANDLE
YOUTH SUPPORT SERVICES, PANHANDLE COMMUNITY SERV-
ICES; FATHER VAL PETER, DIRECTOR, BOYS TOWN; AND
PEGGY ADAIR, VOICES FOR CHILDREN
Ms. VANCE. Thank you.
This is my first time testifying at a hearing, so it may go any

way.
Congressmen, Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee

of Human Resources, thank you very much for this opportunity to
provide testimony on behalf of children and families in rural Ne-
braska.

My agency is a member of the National network for runaway
homeless youth. The grantee agency is Panhandle Community
Services, the community action agency under which we are um-
brellaed.

Our services that we provide are temporary shelter, crisis inter-
vention, individual and family counseling, mediation, referrals to
resources, transportation to school, if possible, if not we try to get
homework from the youth home, GED program, vocational educa-
tion, independent living skills, a hotline for parents and youth, a
non-crisis teen support line, and recreational and cultural activi-
ties.

We also sponsor an Ala-Teen group and an aftercare group, pro-
vide parenting classes, and, through reunification of families and
youth, support family preservation.

For homeless youth, we provide services to promote transition to
self-sufficient living to prevent long-term dependency on social
services.

I am here to talk about the urgent needs of high risk youth, and
the desperation they face in trying to get help for themselves and
their families. They are fleeing parental neglect, sexual abuse,
physical abuse, family violence, alcoholism and drug abuse.

These youth are sometimes forced from their homes by the par-
ents and step-parents because they find caring for their youth
beyond their capabilities. In some cases, parents push the teen-
agers out of the home to avoid their parental responsibilities.

These youths have few skills or life-experiences with which to
earn a living. There is a lack of access to schools, health care, coun-
seling services, and other community support systems. Many of
them are in need of mental health care due to life and family cir-



cumstances that put them at risk for substance abuse, early preg-
nancy, HIV infection (AIDS), status offenses and other crimes that
lead to delinquency and perpetuate the pattern of a life of crime.

A barrier to helping reunite families is funding. Increased fund-
ing is needed to provide continuation of present services and to pro-
vide program expansion in smaller rural towns which are not ade-
quately served. Our shelter serves the 11 panhandle counties at a
current Federal level funding of $40,050. The ability to expand is
severely hampered by inadequate funding from all sources: local,
State and Federal.

We realize that there are tight budgets and budget cuts at all
levels of government. However, these budget cuts affect the ability
of communities to provide an alternative to the more costly juve-
nile justice, child welfare and mental health services. For runaway
homeless youth programs, the budget cuts also mean discontinu-
ation of some services.

Additionally, there is a lack of funds to provide or develop the
needed intervention. We do not have foundations or corporations
with funds that can be tappedL In rural Nebraska, there is a lack of
programs to meet and serve youth and parents. This includes a
lack of foster homes, substance abuse, mental health and family
counseling, preventive education, and other services to youth,
family and community. We see a great need for more prevention
and early intervention services for youth and families.

Another severe problem is the lack of education. Many youths
drop out of school at 16. They have few jobs, low education, low
self-esteem, and often end up involved in substance abusing and
criminal activity. There is a strong need to promote parental re-
sponsibility and involvement with their youth.

In order for change to be successful and longlasting, parents
need to be involved. Parents frequently see the problem as being
the child's problem and don't see the part they play or have played
in the situation. This needs to be resolved. Intervention requiring
parental involvement needs to be mandatory, and sometimes may
need to be judiciously enforced.

Needs for the future: Reach out to _youth and families sooner,
prevention and intervention services for youth and families, public
awareness and prevention education, revision and/or enforcement
of laws, and mental health and preventive counseling services for
youth and families.

Recommendations: We strongly support the reauthorization of
the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act. The mini-
mum authorization levels should exceed $100 million.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Vance follows:]
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1. Congressmen, Mr. Chairman and Members of the
Subcommittee on Human Resources, thank you for the
opportunity to provide testimony on behalf of children and
families in rural Nebraska. My name is Ruth Vance. I am
Director df Panhandle Youth Support Services (Panhandle
Youth Shelter and Transitional Living Programs) in
Scottsbluff, NE. My agency is a member of the National
Network of Runaway and Youth Services (NNRYS). The National
Network brings together hundreds of community youth service
providers to share ideas and improve our individual
abilities to serve youth and families. (Our runaway
Homeless Youth Program stresses family reunification.) The
grantee agency is Panhandle Community Services, a Community
Action Agency.

2. Servicia. We provide temporary shelter, crisis
intervention, individual, group and family counseling and
mediation, referrals to other resources, transportation,
school attendance if possible in public schools through home
work from youth school, G.E.D., vocational education, and
independent living skills training. We operate a Hotline
for parents and youth, a non-crisis support Teen Line,
recreation and cultural experiences, an Ala-Teen group,
aftercare group and we provide parenting classes. Our goal
is family preservation through reunification of youth and
families. For homeless youth we provide support services to
promote a transition to self-sufficient living to prevent
long-term dipendency on Social Service.

I am here to talk about the urgent needs of high-risk
youth and the desperation they face in trying to get help
for themselves and their families. The youth we see are not
living on their own to realize dreams of personal autonomy
and adventure; they are leaving desperate situations. They
are fleeing parental neglect, both sexual and physical
abuse, family violence, alcoholism, and drug abuse. These
youth are sometimes forced from their homes by parents and
stepparents because the they find caring for their youth
beyond their capabilities, and in some cases, parents push
their teenager out of the home to avoid their parental
responsibilities.

These young people have few skills or life experiences
with which to earn a living. They appear invisible to many
because they are disconnected from community life. They
lack access to schools, health care, families, counseling
services, and other community support systems. Many of them
are in need of mental health care due to life/family
circumstances that put them at risk for substance abuse,
early pregnancy, HIV infection/AIDS, status offenses and
other crimes that lead to delinquency and which perpetuate a
pattern for a life of crime, because the initial problems
have not had intervention or been resolved.

We are aware of the seriousness of the budget deficit
facing Congress. However, we know that the youth are
struggling to survive while falling prey to a number of
other social problems.

Best Available Copy
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3. Barriers to helping youth reunite with families or
become self-sufficient.

A. Fund nj

Increased funding is needed to provide continuation of
present services and to provide program expansion in the
smaller rural towns which are not adequately served. Our
shelter serves the entire 11 county Panhandle and the
current federal funding is $40,050. The ability to expand
to meet the needs of youth in the smaller towns, in addition
to the current operation of the shelter is severely hampered
by inadequate funding from all sources (local, state and
federal.)

We realize that there are tight budgets and budget cuts
at all levels of government. However, these budget cuts
affect the ability of communities to provide-an alternative
to the more costly Juvenile Justice, child welfare and
mental health. For runaway and homeless youth programs, the
budget cuts also mean discontinuation of some services,
continued low wages for staff, loss of positions and
increased staff burnout, at a time when youth and families
need well-trained professionals.

Additionally, there is a lack of funds to provide or
develop needed intervention. We do not have foundations and
corporations that have funds which can be tapped.

B. Outreach Service and Sunnport Services

In rural Nebraska there is a lack of programs to meet
and serve youth and parents' needs or to provide
alternatives to Jail or other locked facilities for youth;
needs such as lack of foster homes, substance abuse, mental
health and family counseling, prevention education and
service to youth, family and community.

As mentioned earlier, parenting classes and support
groups are offered through the shelter. Although often
parents and youth are hesitant to become involved at the
beginning, by the end of the sessions, parents are wanting
more help and other opportunities for learning and support.
We see a great need for more outreach, prevention and early
intervention services provided to youth and families.

C. Lack of Education

In today's society, many youth drop out of school at
age 16 and get out of education. What happens to these
youth? They have few Job skills, low education, low self
esteem and often end up involved in substance abusing, crime
and in the legal system. Parents may have given up on the
youth, not knowing what to do or where to go for help.
Youth may have "run" from abusive situations. Society may
see these youth as throwaways.

There is strong need to promote parent responsibility
and involvement with their youth. Because of the problems
seen and de;,]t with when working with youth and families, it
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is important to involve families in the treatment of
problems experienced by youth. In order for change to be
successful and long-lasting, parents need to be involved and
need to attend counseling, support meetings, etc. Often
parents see the problem as being the child's problem and
don't see the part they play or have played in the
situation. This needs to be resolved.

Intervention requiring parent involvement needs to be
mandatory and sometimes may need to be Judicially enforced.
Youth need to be given the opportunity to find solutions to
their siuatLions, complete their education and learn skills
to unable them to be self-sufficient citizens in the
community

4. NedJ', or the Future.
* Outreach to youth and families sooner.

Prevuntion/intervention service to youth and
families.
Public awareness and prevention education.

*-Revi.aion and/or enforcement of laws.
Mental health and preventive counseling services to
youth and families.

5. Reconmindations. We strongly support the
reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act (JJDPA). The minimuiri authorization level for
JJDPA should exceed $100 million.
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Native American
Mexican American
White/Caucasian
African American/Black
Asian

Total:

Females
Males

Shelter
51
57

146
3
0

CLIRT iMu ICS

Transitional Living
7

Identified drug related problems of Shelter youth: 14

Identified drug related problems of Transitional Living youth: 15

Other problems related to Shelter and Transitional Living Youth:
-Sexual abuse by parent
-Physical abuse by parent
-Neglect by parent
*Parent's drug/alcohol problem
*Domestic violence
*Parents too strict

Outreach program:

Aftercare: 281 (some duplication with .Shelter and
Transitional Living youth)

AlaTeen: 154
Mediation: 48 (for a four month period)
Parent Classes: 26
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Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Vance.
We will come back to you for questions once we have heard the

entire panel.
Father Peter.
Father PETER. Thanks for the opportunity to talk.
You don't mind if I go over to the blackboard, do you?
I am an old professor.
My name is Father Peter, and I represent 15,000 kids across the

United States, and I appreciate the opportunity to talk to both Con-
gressmen and all the staff here.

What I would like to do today is, very briefly, put up this board
and tell a story. The story is about a girl named Martha, but she
could be any kid from central Nebraska, from the mid plains. This
is what Martha looks like She is over here.

When I met Martha, Martha was 11 years old and an alcoholic. I
said, "Martha, when do you remember the first time you started
drinkir?"

She said, "It was in the first grade. I remember my Dad trying to
gel me to drink so that he could do to me what he had been doing
zince I was v teeny little girl."

She said, "It was the first time in my life I said to myself, maybe
that is a good idea to drink, maybe it won't hurt so much."

This is what it looks like in Martha's world. On the one side,
Martha feels powerless. Who is in charge?

This man over here. If you tell anybody, first, they won't believe
you. Secondly, Mom will throw you out of the house. Thirdly, we
will never love you anymore. Martha is powerless, literally power-
less. This person over here isn't just powerful, he is all powerful.
He has taken the place of God.

Martha is convinced that it is her fault. Dad has told her over
and over again: "When you were a 3 year old, if you hadn't been
wearing that frilly little nightgown when you hopped on my lap,
this would have never started." "It is my fault."

With that goes an enormous amount of what?
Guilt that is coming up right next to that. "It is my fault. I am

angry, I am guilty. What is Dad saying? It is -not my fault, not my
fault."

This little girl had a secret. I cannot tell you how many kids
have terrible, horrible secrets.

Congressman, when you were beaten as a little boy, you had a
secret too. This could just as well be physical abuse as it is sexual
abuse.

"If I tell anybody, nobody will believe me. They will throw me
out."

By the way, they did throw her out when she- told.
Who is this person over here?
The keeper of the se'.ret.
Lastly, it might sound strange to all of you people in this room,

but she says: "I love my Dad. I love my Dad."
Dad says: "I love her, too."
This is the ideology of troubled children, the anatomy of what

they look like. What is the difference between Martha in central
Nebraska, and Martha in Brooklyn, or Orlando where we are, or
New Orleans, or Los Angeles, the large metropolitan areas?



It is really simple. They all feel powerless, but in a different way.
In Los Angeles, you can go for help. There are people who help

but access to the system is almost impossible. You wait in line. You
try to talk to somebody. It doesn't work. The system doesn't work
in Los Angeles.

In Central Nebraska tffe problem is that there isn't any system.
You know what I ar, 2ying, folks: there just isn't any system.

You can go to school. There are nice people in school, but they
don't know what to do. You have a nice doctor in town but he
doesn't know what to do. The powerlessness expresses itself differ-
ently, but it is still powerlessness.

So you get the same symptomology in all towns. You get drug
abuse, you get runaways, you get suicide, you get teenage pregnan-
cy. If you think your are going to solve your problem by giving ev-
erybody a condom and the pill, you are crazy. This little girl has
huge problems. You can give her every barrier method of contra-
ception known but she is still going to have problems.

I am just trying to say, there is symptomology and then there
are the problems. This is the way I see it, Martha engages in vic-
timizing behavior. She is a victim, so she engages in the kind of
behavior that is victim behavior.

What does she do?
She runs around. She gets herself into trouble. Maybe she gets

herself pregnant. If she is in L.A., she gets into gangs, she gets into
all the violence, all of that behavior, or she is suicidal. All of this is
the behavior of a victimized person. She doesn't have any other
way to do it. -

You saw this morning in our bit play that what we are trying to
do is say, "Yes, that is one way, it is a dead end. There is another
way to go. There are other kinds of behavior, but they have to be
taught, they have to be learned."

What does this have to do with the Juvenile Justice and Delin-
quency Prevention Act?

It is really quite simple and straightforward. There are three fac-
tors in my own mind that are going to make a difference in this
whole thing. The first is funding, the second is treatment systems,
and the third is people. Not one of those by itself is going to do a
heck of a lot of good.

You might have treatment systems and people who are really
caring. But the people are stilled and there isn't any funding, so it
-can't work. If you have funding, but you don't have good treatment
systems or people who know what they are doing, it won't work.
All three of them are necessary.

There is a PS to all of this. If you take all three of those and you
put them in, we will change the face of America's troubled chil-
dren. We will really change the faces of America's troubled chil-
dren.

That is why we are-pleased as punch that you would come to
listen to us. We are asking you for more funding. Boys Town has
treatment systems that really work, and we ought to spread that
across the United States. We need help. Our shelter here costs
$450,000 a year to run, and we are getting about that much help.
We are getting $450,000 to run the shelter, and $59,000 in help



from juvenile justice. We need a little more. We are never going to
have enough, but we need a little more.

There is a P.S. to all of this, and the P.S. is really simple. Some-
times when I read the papers and I see what you folks are doing in
Washington, and I hear the folks give good speeches, and I look at
the good stuff that is happening, I say to myself: "I wonder if any-
body really understands that to help these kids get better you
really need somebody day-after-day-after-day to take all those skills
and to love the kids. To help shape this little girl so that she goes
in the right direction."

This is not something that you do by passing an act. It is not
something that you do by giving a speech, or I do by giving this
little speech. What you are doing is vital, but when it has to be
done, it has to be done for the simple reason that Martha needs
help.

PP.S., and I am done. One of our kids had a dream the other
day. I have told this story often, I hope you take it back to Wash-
ington. He said that he was on Interstate 80, that is the great
interstate that goes across the prairie, the great plains of the
United States. This is what the anatomy of his disease looks like.
He is a physically abused kid. He is angry. He is hurt. He has a
secret. He is confused. He is engaging in destructive behavior. He
has stolen a car. He has done all kinds of things. He has done
drugs.

He said: "I had this dream." He said, "We were on the interstate
with four of my friends. We had a wreck, somehow or the other we
went off and were in the ditch."

He said, "First the State highway patrol came then they called
an ambulance. The ambulance came and took the four other kids."

"I was in the back seat of the car. I kept crying out, please help
me," he said, in his dream. "They could not hear me, and they
could not see me, so," he said, "after they left, I got out of the car,
and I walked down to the interchange and down the ramp. I went
to the restaurant that was there, and I walked into the restau-
rant."

He said, "It was crowded with people. I cried out in my dream at
the top of my voice." He said, "I was bleeding, I was hurt, wouldn't
somebody please help me?"

He said, "Nobody heard me, and nobody saw me."
We ask you, listen to that boy. Listen to the boys and girls in the

shelter. I am not a witness at this hearing. The kids are the wit-
nesses at this hearing.

Thank you.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Father Peter.
[The prepared statement of Father Val Peter follows:]
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Testimony before the House Subcomittee on Numan Resources
Field earning, March 30, 1992, In Grand Island, Nebraska

Regarding reauthorization of the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act (JJDPA)

Congressman Martinez, Congressman Barrett:

name is- Father Val Peter and I am Executive Director of Boys Town. In
1991 we took care of 15,000 children in 9 States of the Union. We are in large
urban areas, small urban areas, and rural areas, such as the Boys Town
Mid-Plains Shelter here in Central Nebraska. We are in Rhode Island, Brooklyn,
Orlando, Tallahassee, South Florida, New Orleans, San Antonio, Las Vegas,
Southern California, Southwest Iowa, and Omaha, Lincoln, and Grand Island,
Nebraska.

We are fortunate to be able to see children in all of these different
settings. We see differing ethnic groups, cultural groups, and family
:,ackgrounds. It gives us the opportunity to realize and understand both the
differences between these populations of children and the similarities as well.

A. WHAT DO ABUSED CHILDREN AND YOUTH LOOK LIKE?

There is a common structure to the feelings, the problems, and the
behaviors of abused children and youth in America. Let me illustrate it by the
story of Martha-. She comes from a small town on the Great Plains, but she
could just as easy come from any town or large city in America.

Martha, age 14, told me: "I remember the first time I got drunk on
purpose. I was in the first grade. My dad wanted me to get drunk so he could
do those terrible things to me again. And it was the first time in my life I
said to myself, maybe it is a good idea to get drunk because then the pain
won't hurt so much anymore."

Martha is a 14-year-old alcoholic who is already sexually acting out with
older boys. If you look at the structure of her pathetic life, you will see
the following:

MIARTHA

1, Powerlessness 1. All Powerful

Martha feels totally powerless in the face of her father's
sexual aggression. He has told her over and over again: "You will
do what I tell you to. You know that nobody will believe you if
you tell them."

Martha stands powerless before a man who cannot control his own
sexual drives. She feels no way in control. She feels there is no
way she can change what is going on.

This all began when she was 3 years old. Her father told her:
"If you tell anyone, I will kill Fluffy our dog."
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MARh DaD

2. My Fault Guilty/Angry 2. Not My Fault

Martha feels terribly guilty for what has been going on in her
life for these 9 years. Her father has told her repeatedly: "You
like it. You know you like it." And she has even begun to have
orgasms and her father says: "See, I told you you liked it."

Her father also says: "This would have never started if you had
not been wearing that frilly little nightgown and hopping on my lap
when you were 3 years old.

Martha believes that the cause of all her troubles can be found
within herself. At the core of her being, she finds herself filled
with shame.

AHADAD

3. Secret 3. Keeper of the Secret

Martha and her dad have a secret. She cannot tell anyone.

If she told her mother, she is convinced her mom wouldn't
believe her anyway. Her dad told her if she tells someone, she
will be thrown out of the house. Well, she did tell someone, a
counselor in school. And when the counsellor talked to her mother,
guess what? She was thrown out of the house. And that is what
brought her to our Boys Town Shelter.

HART DAD

4. Love 4. Love

As strange as this may seem, Martha who is powerless, who is
guilty, and who has a terrible secret, still loves her father in
some fundamental way that a child would love a parent, no matter
how abusive that parent might be. And the father still loves the
daughter in some fragmentary and remote fashion as a father would
love his daughter.

Martha demonstrates the typical characteristics of an abused child and
youth. If Martha had been physically abused, instead of sexually abused, the
same characteristics
would be present.

And the important fact that I would like to underline for this
Subcommittee, is that these same characteristics are found for abused children
in large urban areas, small urban areas, and rural areas. This is the anatomy
and physiology of abuse. It is universal.
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B. HEAT BEHAVIORS DO ABUSED CHILDREN ENGAGE IN?

Martha, to no one's surprise, is out of control at home. She has been
skipping school. She has done drugs. She is already a full-blown alcoholic.
She has attempted suicide twice. She has been caught shoplifting 3 times.

All of these behaviors are symptomatic of an abused youngster. I call them
revictimizing behaviors. Why revictimizing? Because what Martha is doing over
and over again is she is revictimizing herself.

She is repeating her experience of being victimized by her father in a
variety of way, all of which are harmful to her.

Angry, helpless, troubled children and youth engage in these behaviors.
They come from every geographic location whether rural, urban, or from the
north, south, east, or west across our great nation.

And Just as the original sexual abuse destroyed Martha's childhood and made
it impossible for her to grow and develop normally, so these revictimizing
behaviors are making it impossible for Martha to have a normal adolescence and
to grow into a happy, productive adult.

C. HOW DOES MAR1'HA GET BETTER?

The answer is: teaching. Martha has learned antisocial and
self-destructive behaviors. Martha has learned how to revictimize herself over
and over again. Utilizing the denial process, Martha has become an active
participant in making it more and more impossible to get better. Martha's
victim behaviors are learned. Martha now needs to learn survivor behaviors.
She needs to learn healthy behaviors in 4 areas:

She needs to learn behaviors that show her she is in charge of her
life. These are behaviors that show she is powerful and not powerless.

I She needs to learn behaviors that do not reinforce guilt. She needs to
learn behaviors that make her feel good inside and outside, up and down.

" She needs to learn behaviors that are not hidden, that are not secret,
that are not whispered. She needs to learn behaviors that are
productive, constructive, and self-affirming.

" Finally, she needs to learn behaviors that are appropriate, loving
behaviors. Behaviors that are noneroticized. Behaviors that are caring
and sharing. These are, at heart, friendship behaviors.

In other words, there are options to drug behaviors. There are options to
suicide behaviors. There are options to family-crisis behaviors.

Learning how to talk with people, communicate with people, share with
people is one of those behaviors. Learning how to problem solve is a facet of
communication behaviors.

. --'. j .1 _.
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D. WHAT IS THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN SERVICES FOR MARHA IN THE RURAL AREA AND
URBAN SERVICES?

If Martha lived in East Los Angeles, and wanted to do something about her
problem, she may not know how or where to look for those services. If she
looked, she would find all kinds of organizations listed in the phone book
ready and willing to help her.

But when she tried to access those services, she would find herself, over
and over again, repeatedly frustrated by long lines, overworked staff,
underpaid agencies, and bureaucratic morass. In addition, she would not have
access to some services because she could not pay for them or might need
parental consent to get the services.

But Martha doesn't live in Brooklyn. She lives in Central Nebraska. What
does she find there? The problem is not access to services. The problem is
sirply no services at all are available.

Her school counselor, a good person at heart, is unequipped to deal with
these problems. Her rural physician is overworked and not the kind of person
you could talk to. She feels he is too exalted in the community and wouldn't
believe her anyway. As for the police, they have no means of helping. There
are no services, no programs, and not even any reporting guidelines if a school
counselor wanted to do something about it. Her minister or priest wouldn't
have a clue what to do.

If Martha would be in Brooklyn, it would be scary for her just to walk down
the street. And she would soon be gang related either as a victim or a
victimizer or probably both. That is the deceptive thing about rural America,
Congressman Martinez. You are from South Los Angeles and when you drive
through rural America, it looks so peaceful and you see the spires of little
country churches and everything seems well-ordered, just as the good Lord
intended.

But when Martha walks down the country road, she does not see the gravity
and the gang violence of Brooklyn, she simply sees: that no one cares. That
is right, no one cares.

E. THREE FACTORS INVOLVED IN HELPING MARTHA

There are three vitally-important factors that must coalesce together if
Martha and others like her in rural and urban areas are to be helped to find,
once again, healing and hope:

P funding

m effective treatment systems

I skilled workers
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Congressman Barrett and Congressman Martinez, I ask you to please realize
that when we ask for further funding, it is not because we believe that is the
solution to our problems. It is a major factor, but without effective treatment
systems and without skilled service providers, it will simply not work.

We do need increased funding in the resurhorized Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act. Why can't we -- in an age when the Cold War has
been won -- at least raise the budget to $100 million.

We at Boys Town know that there must be a public/private partnership.
Corporations, individuals, and all people who care about children need to join
hands with us and with the government in bringing this healing and hope. Our
Grand Island Mid-Plains Shelter budget is $434,000 and of that only $59,000
comes from this Federal Act. That means that less than 15% of the monies that
-are spent on our troubled children comes through this federal funding mechanism.

We are not asking for 100%, but 15% just doesn't make sense in the post Cold
War era. Sometimes folks in Washington give the impression that legislation
will "fix" America's problems. This Act, as important as it is, will not fix
the problems of America's troubled children. But it will help.

Please write into your bill funds for:

" In-Home Intervention Services

If family intervention in the home had been possible for Martha, she
would not be at the desperate stage of her life she has found herself in
now.

" Parent Training

More and more American parents are becoming more and more frustrated
because of behavior problems of their children. More often than not,
parents are not taught how to deal with their child's behavior and,
therefore, never learned how to effectively teach the correct discipline
and teach children appropriate ways to behave.

" Effective Treatment Programs

Martha will not be restored to health by legislative enactments. Martha
will not be restored to health by kindly, loving people who do not have
the skills necessary to teach Martha new behaviors. Martha will not get
better simply by giving her an ample supply of birth control pills and
devices. Martha will not get better simply by giving her a roof over her
head and good, warm meals.

Please make provisions in the Act for awarding effective treatment
programs. Effective means outcome-based programs. Programs where kids
actually get better. Avoid taking a systems-outcome approach. Too often
people count as a success family reunification, without realizing that if
Martha is simply reunified with her father, the abuse will continue.
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F. A CONCLU'DING STORY

A boy told me a story sometime ago -- I have retold it over and over again
-- of a dream that he had. He was driving down Interstate 80 with 4 of his
friends. Interstate 80 is that great ribbon of highway that runs across the
entire United States from East to West. For some reason or other the car went
out of control and ended up in a ditch with all 5 boys hurt. In the dream, the

Nebraska State Highway Patrol came and promptly dispatched an ambulance which
carried the other four boys to the hospital.

This boy said: "Father, I was in the back of the car. I was badly hurt. I
cried out to the State Trooper and the ambulance people, 'please help me,' but
none of them could hear me and none of them could see-me."

So, he said, they left and he painfully got out of the wreck and forced
himself to walk down the highway to an interchange. He walked down the ramp and
there was a restaurant there. He struggled mightily and opened the door of the
restaurant. In the dream, he called out to all the people who were eating
there: "Would somebody please help me." He said: "Father, nobody heard me and
nobody saw me.*

His -- and Martha's -- is the real testimony you need to respond to, not
mine.

Thank you very much.



Chairman MAR rINEZ. Ms. Adair.
Ms. ADAIR. I kind of feel like the collection plate being passed

around after the sermon. It is hard to follow Father Peter. This girl
from Oklahoma will do her best.

I will keep my remarks brief. In addition to my written testimo-
ny, there is a blue sheet called "The State of the Child in Nebras-
ka" that each of you should have. If you don't, there are some out
in the hallway.

As you are probably aware, Nebraska is a fiscally and politically
conservative State as well as a rural State. We tend to wait and see
what the attitude is when any changes in procedure are proposed.
We certainly did that with the JJDP Act.

As you know, it started in 1974. Nebraska didn't enter into the
Act until 1981. We really didn't take any substantial movement
until 1988. Here it is 1992, and the State of Nebraska still has no
State law saying that children will not be locked in adult jails,
period.

We still have no State law saying that status offender children
will not be locked in adult jails or secure juvenile detention. In
fact, we have no State law that even defines secure juvenile deten-
tion.

We have no State law that requires the implementation and
monitoring of minimum safety procedural or program standards in
secure juvenile facilities.

We are working on a piece of legislation this year. We are hope-
ful that it will pass, but as of today we have no minimum stand-
ards protecting either the children or the staff in secure juvenile
detention facilities.

We have no State law saying that children won't be detained for
pre-trial purposes in State training schools. We have no State law
saying that children who are victims of abuse, neglect, or other-
wise, who are before the court through no fault of their own, will
not be locked up in a State training school for 30-day periods before
disposition, and they are.

We have no State funding to provide social services for kids once
they are labelled delinquent. These are all sins of omission as we
wait and see, but the overriding sin of omission in the State is that
there is no State agency whose sole purpose is to serve the needs of
children in Nebraska. We have a State agency for roads, for busi-
nesses, for elderly, but we have no State agency whose sole func-
tion is to care for our State's children. Another piece of legislation
hopefully will remedy that, but there are no guarantees that it will
,go through.

What this means is that children are an afterthought in Nebras-
ka. We provide services for adults, and then if any crumbs are left,
we provide the leftovers for kids.

An example of this is, therd was an old county jail in Douglas
County that was determined to be too old, too much in disrepair,
too dangerous for the adult prisoners there. They closed this facili-
ty and built a brand new Douglas County Corrections Facility for
the adults. Three months after that old dilapidated jail was closed,
a fresh coat of paint was put on the bars, and it was reopened. Now
it houses children. The children get the crumbs.



To give you an idea of where children are in Nebraska, I think it
is helpful to have some demographic information. There are only
about 1.6 million people in the State of Nebraska. We are largely
rural, 50 percent of the population is in three eastern counties, the
other 50 percent is in rural areas and small towns. The State
stretches 470 miles from east to west.

A child from Omaha who may be sent to the State training
school is 200 miles away from his friends, from his family, from his
school, from his community. There are 429,000 children ages 0
through 17 in Nebraska. That is 18,698 fewer children than 10
years ago.

At the same time, our elderly population has increased by 17,384.
We are a graying State in a graying Nation.

Children in Nebraska are twice as likely to be victims of murder
as the elderly, and 34 percent of the victims of forcible rape in Ne-
braska are children ages 17 and under. Only 36 percent of all Ne-
braskan households have children under age 18 living in them, and
20 percent of all Nebraska children live in poverty.

Half of the kids in Nebraska live outside the metropolitan areas.
Kids in rural areas have only limited access to preventive services
such as recreation and employment opportunities. They have limit-
ed access to low-end intervention such as family mediation, shelter
care and crisis counseling.

The only service that is State-funded and readily available to
rural children- in Nebraska is incarceration in the State's two
training schools.

Nebraska has traditionally provided dollars for youth services in
direct proportion to how far away from home the kids are. The
maximum AFDC payment for a mom and two teenagers in Nebras-
ka is $364 a month. If you take those two kids out of the mom's
home and put them in foster care, the maximum payment for those
two kids is $1,152 a month, almost three times as much to take
them out of their home.

If you decide that you're going to move them further away from
their home and place them in a State training school for a 30-day
evaluation, that 30-day evaluation costs $3,009 each. For the two
boys, it would be $6,198. They are further away from home, charg-
ing more money.

If you then decide that you want to get them even further away
from home and place them in cut-of-state care, it would be $6,000 a
month, $12,000 for these two boys. Right now, we have 67 children
in Nebraska who are in out-of-state institutions.

This payment process is one reason why we have 1,300 more chil-
dren in out-of-home care in Nebraska than we did 10 years ago
even though we have almost 19,000 fewer children in the State.

What we need in Nebraska, in this rural State, is a case manage-
ment system where we can bring the services to the child in the
rural areas rather than taking the child away from the family and
placing that child into services 200 miles away fiom home. We also
need a funding process that places priority on children rather than
on bricks and mortar.

In 1990, 79 Nebraskan children were locked in adult prisons;
1,124 children were locked in adult jails, the youngest of whom
were 9 years old; 4,954 children were held in locked facilities in Ne-



braska; and the total incidents of child involvement with the
courts, from probation to parole, 12,372.-And we only have 133,000
kids 12 through 18 in Nebraska; 12,372 incidents of court involve-
ment.

Nebraska ranks ninth highest in the Nation for incarceration of
children in State training schools and, not surprisingly, ranks 12th
highest in the Nation in the number of per capita training school
beds.

One study, which is in your blue packet, shows that almost two-
thirds of the boys in the training schools and almost 90 percent of
the girls in the State training schools could be served in their own
communities if those services were provided for them. But we con-
tinue to throw our kids away.

We are making some progress, but the wheels turn incredibly
slow as we wait and see. We do have a law now providing grant
funding for community-based services. We have a few temporary
holdover facilities to guard against misuse of adult jails. We are
going into communities and providing information and training on
alternative programs. We are looking toward implementation of de-
tention standards, and we are at least thinking-about providing for
a juvenile services agency.

But we are still a very needy State. We need both the guidance
and the funding provided by the JJDP Act. We need the guidance
because our State laws do not protect our kids well enough, be-
cause our State's juvenile code is antiquated, does not protect
youth from systemic abuse, nor does it protect those people who
are trying to follow the JJDP guidelines with legal standing.

We need the JJDP funding because we are a rural State, and
overcoming the barriers to adequate youth service delivery in rural
areas is very expensive. We do not have a big bucket of money to
change from a punitive, bed-driven, institutional system to an ef-
fective program-driven community-based system.

The biggest excuse I've heard so far to do nothing is lack of fund-
ing. Without that excuse, there is no excuse.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Peggy Adair follows:]



83

STATE OF THE CHILD IN NEBRASKA

.rns .t I'1
I lgu.h,. 1I1 11.

Board of Directors

Roger Lotl

joAnLeBaron
ofat

P 0

Dr. Ann Coyne

Toni Sonniag

Salty Hurt
Kale DoneKay Lynn-Goldner
Kalhy Korl(f
Tom Mlicki
Philip Martin
JuAnn Ma.iey
Kevii Monroe
Ruxa.tne O'(Cara
Rhonda Seacres
Bart Qualselt!
Dr. James Wax

Sally Kaplan

Kathy I iwi iy Nixin

Omaha office
(402) 896-4536

Lincoln office
(402) 474-2690

1,578,385
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133,812

Total households with children under age 181
Total households with children under age 18,

headed by single parents: 20%

CHILDREN AND THE COURTS

Children in adult prisons: 79
Children in adult Jailss 1124
Children in all locked facilities: 4954
Total incidents of child involvement with the courts,

from probation to adult prisons 12,372

CHILDREN OF COLOR

Children of color as percentage of total youth population: 8.5/
Children of color involved in Juvenile arrests: 16%
Children of color as percentage of incarcerated youth in

Douglas County Corrections and state prison system: 55/.

DEO8MPHICS

1990 Nebraska population:
Children, 0 - 171
Children, 12 - 171



NEBRASKA YOUTH SERVICES

0 - juvenile detention
S - shelter care
T - state training school
/,- counties with greatest population *scheduled to close 6/92



From: JUVENILE SERVICES PLN*ING CMITTEI
FINAL REPORT APRIL 1991

aER4 FM21SM Pv OF YOUH SERVICES
AND AVAIIA~lfY IN NEBRAS2k

*Available in Nebraska "Partially Available ***Not Available

School dropout prevention
In-school child care
Shelter care
In-school health care
Crisis intervention services
Employment opportunities

Accessible transportation
Social Services available

without court involvement
Comprehensive juvenile justice

training for judges,
attorneys, probation, staff

Juvenile intake services

Diversion can encoveass any
prevention and/or noninvasive
dispositional alternatives.
Availablity 6eperds upon service
needed. Availability of diver-
sion itself is limited to certain

-counties and to certain judges
within certain counties

---------- r-RIPJAL fLT3AIVS---------------- -

Secure detention
Adult jails/lockups

Holdovers
Thergency foster care
Shelter care
Electronic mndtoring
Intensive supervision

Comprehensive juvenile
intake services

In-hame detention

--------- DSPOSIIQ4ALALTSRATIVES, s 4ElCfl~----

Probation, no services Probation, with services
Comziity service
Restitution
Drug/aloohol education
Life-skills training
Athletic programs -
Outpatient drug/alcohol

treatment
Group therapy
Individual/family therapy
Psychological/psychiatric

evaluations

Literacy programs
Pre-eployment training
Mentoring
After school care
EDperiential education
Intensive supervision
Sex offender treatment

- DISPOSITINL ALTEATIVES, MSIhDfl'TAL, CPEN EIVkCNNqT------ 

FOster care
Therapeutic/specialized

foster care
Group hames
Specialized group homes
Irug/alcohol treatment

Proctoring
Sex offender treatment
Assessnents and evaluations
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Geneva evaluations Attention Center treatment Serious youthful offender
Youth Dev. Centers program facility
Lincoln Regional Cntr.
Psychiatric hospital units

Foster care Case advocacy
Family reunification

counseling
D5catIonal/vocational

programs
Support groups
Transitional proctoring
Trained foster care
Transitional group hores

t
Available in Nebraska: Accessible to youth in every jurisdiction with no waiting list,

funding delays, or other exclusive features. Availability does not inply quality.

"Partially Available: Available to sore youth in some jurisdictions only; way have
waiting lists, lack of trained personnel in the commnLity, or other exclusive features.

***Not Available: WAttainable by the majority of Nebraska youth due to procedural
barriers, lack of trained personnel, lack of funding, lack of transportation, or
nonexistent resource. There may be isolated exceptions.
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JUVENILE JUSTICE FACT SHEET
Spring, 1991

Voices for Children is committed to improving Juvenile Services in Nebraska
and is pleased to have the opportunity ,o work with each of you in the
interest of children. In developing a comprehensive plan for services it is
important to look at what exists in order to identify needed change. Following
is a fact sheet setting forth the present situation in Nebraska's juvenile
justice system, developed from studies commissioned in Nebraska over the last
20 years. A list of studies and other sources can be found on the last page.
The first Juvenile Justice Fact Sheet was published in the fall of 1990. No
major change in the status of Nebraska's juvenile justice system has occurred
since that time.

JUVE41LE OODE/JUVENILF WOURTS/JUVEN I LE JUSTICE SYSTEM

* Portions of Nebraska's Juvenile Code are in conflict with federal mandates.

* The Juvenile Code does not include a clear statement of philosophy.
* The role and function of various agencies and agents operating within the

juvenile justice system are not clearly defined.
* Juvenile court judges, county attorneys, public defenders, police, youth

staff, are not required to have any specialized training in juvenile justice,
adolescent development, crisis intervention, or effective treatment.
* Juveniles can be moved to a more restrictive placement without a court
hearing to justify such placement.
* Juveniles spend inordinate amounts of idle time in secure facilities

awaiting placement, court hearings and transportation.

PREVENTIOC, INTERVNTICtO, TREATME T

* There is an overreliance upon expensive out-of-hone treatment, and a lack

of incentive to use ccmunity-based treatment.
* Juveniles cannot receive state-funded social services without court
intervention.
* Juveniles adjudicated solely as delinquents do not receive state-funded
social services.
* Less than 10% of the juveniles who need multiple services receive the

services they need.
* Caseloads for juvenile probation, juvenile public defenders, juvenile

parole, exceed national standards and are too high to provide effective
intervention services.
* Nebraska relies heavily upon inpatient adolescent evaluation and treatment
for low risk youth rather than devoting energy and dollars toward prevention
program r, connunity-based program, crisis intervention programs, and support
groups for youth.
*ccess to program for high risk youth with special needs is limited.
*There are no standards requiring minimum quality for treatment program.
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PRETRIAL DETENTION

* There are no state safety standards or program standards for juvenile
detention facilities resulting in inconsistencies across the state. (Being
drafted by the Jail Standards Board of the Nebraska Cctmission Law Enforcement
and Criminal Justice.)
* Staff training is inconsistent, insufficient, and in some locations
nonexistent.
* There are no clear, written, substantive criteria for deciding which youth

will be placed in secure detention, which youth will be placed in shelter care
and which youth will not be confined.
* While state law forbids children under age 12 from being committed to state

training schools, 8 and 9 year old children are held in detention facilities.
* Youth detention is a traditional function of counties and state funding for
building, program, or staff training is not consistently available.
* In the Douglas County Youth Detention Center isolation is used excessively
and indiscriminately as a method of control.
* Community resources (volunteers, service organizations, educational
enhancenrent) are not being utilized in the Douglas County Youth Center.
* Detention is defined by some officals as the mere warehousing of youth,
rather than a time to begin positive growth.
* Minority youth are more likely to be detained than white youth who have
omitted similar acts.

CXORTHOUSE JAIL-HAHA, NE

* Douglas County holds misdemeanor juvenile offenders in jail on the 6th floor

of the Courthouse, separated from adult offenders but guarded by adult
corrections officers and subject to adult corrections rules and consequences.
* The juveniles in the Courthouse Jail may remain there for up to one year and
are never allowed outside for exercise.
* The staff has no adolescent-oriented training.
* There are few adolescent-oriented programs or services available to
juveniles held in the Douglas County Correction System.
* Youth awaiting transfer to less restrictive facilities, youth accused of

alcohol offenses, and other unsophisticated youth are comningled with violent
offenders in 16-'person cells.
* Isolation is used as the primary method of control.
* Minority youth are more likely to be held in the Courthouse Jail than white

youth who have committed similar acts.

EVALUATIONS

* Dependent, neglected, status offender, and delinquent youth are all

comringled at the Geneva Evaluation facility in violation of federal law.
* Evaluators are held in a more restrictive setting than ccomdtted youth at
Geneva.
* Evaluators do not receive equal educational services as ccxrrdtted gi-rls and
continuity with community schools is frequently lost.
* Over 52% of evaluators come from Douglas, Sarpy, and Lancaster counties. In
each of these counties, a full range of evaluation services is available.
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YOUTH DEvMDH4W CNTRS (YDC)

* There are no clear, written, substantive criteria defining which juveniles
should be caymitted to a state training school, and which should not.
* 75% of the boys At Kearney and 90% of the girls at Geneva could be treated
in their own ccmnuz.3 with no loss of public safety and resulting in relief
of overcrowding conditik-s at both Youth Development Centers.
* Learning disabled boys and girls are not capable of comprehending the
Positive Peer Culture method used at the YDcs .
* Positive Peer Culture has been found to be an inappropriate treatment method
for gang-oriented youth.
* The PPC method used exclusively at Kearney does not provide individual
counseling, individualized treatment, treatment for sex offenders, treatment
for abused children, or certified drug/alcohol treatment. The program at
Geneva is somewhat ir)re individualized but still lacks intensive treatment.
* Families are not included in the treatment programs at Kearney or Geneva,
nor are they consistently kept informed of the progress of their children.
* There are no state standards requiring mimimn appropriate, juvenile-
specific training for YDC staff.
* Boys at Kearney are housed in 35-bed dorrxitory style room with no privacy
and no place to express individuality.
* After discharge from the YDCs youth receive few, if any, aftercare services.

SERIOUS JUVENILE OFFENDERS

* Nebraska's juvenile justice system has not developed the capability to
deal with serious or violent juvenile offenders.
* At any given time, approximately 200 juveniles are in adult corrections
facilities across the state. These juveniles have no access to juvenile-
specific services, and are under the authority of staff who have no training
in dealing with adolescents.

JUV ILE ISRRECTIONS

* Juvenile corrections is a branch of adult corrections, and does not
have political or fiscal equality with adult corrections.
* Juvenile corrections functions under the adult corrections philosophy of
punishment and deterrence, rather than the accepted juvenile justice
philosophy of individualized justice, rehabilitation, and protection of the
child.
* Juvenile corrections is underfunded and consists only of probation,
institutionalization, and parole. A range of comrunity-based juvenile
services is not provided to youth by the juvenile corrections system.
* Corrections alternatives are developed, funded, and administered at the
local level allowing for a wide variance in the quality, effectiveness, and
availability of program.

TRANSFER

* There is no statutory process for transfer from juvenile court to adult
court.
* Juveniles do not have the right to exclusive original jurisdiction in
juvenile court if they have ccmnitted a felony or if they are over age 15 and
have committed a mrisdemeanor.
* In the transfer process, the practical burden rests upor. the immature
JiviI e to prove his or her own i....turity.
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IMPLICATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS

The risk assessment of !he Geneva and Kearney Y"Cs indicates that Nebraska

could reduce its reliance on these Institutions and shift resources to less expensive,

community-based care without great risk to the public safety. Thirty-five percent of the

youths at Kearney and sixfy-four percent of those at the Geneva YDC scored as *low"

risks in this study (i.e., six points or less). These youths should be supervised in non-

institutional programs. (See descriptions of a few such programs in Appendix IV.)

Combining low-risk youths with those scoring in the medium category, the study

results suggest that -- based upon their risk proFile -- nearly three-quarters of the youths

committed to the Kearney YDC, and almost 90 percent of those at Geneva could be

appropriate for comffunity-based programs provided such programs were adequately

supported and managed. Whether the percentages are 35 or 75, 64 or 90, the risk

assessment profile demonstrates that secure confinement may be unnecessary for a

large number of Nebraska youths currently being committed to the YDCs. Nebraska

policy makers should support community-based alternatives for these low- and medium-

risk youths. The state should actively explore ways of reducing the utilization of YDC

beds in order to free resources for the development of alternatives to training school

commitment.

Detention

In the opinion of the authors, it is likely that the same will hold true for Nebraska's

detention centers. Due to a lack of consensus from the legislative subcommittee with

respect to CSYP's role during the early part of this study, the authors did not proceed

with an analysis of detention centers. During an early visit to Omaha, however, the

- page 10-
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authors visited the Douglas County Youth Home. Its generally poor appearance, lack of

programming, and apparent overcrowding raise concerns for the residents here as well

as the State and its possible liability if conditions are not improved. On the other hand,

the authors also visited the Attention Center in Uncoln which, in contrast to Douglas

County, was one of the better detention facilities CSYP staff have visited nationally.

The authors have visited detention centers and training schools all across the

country and the Douglas County visit was the first time a detention administrator refused

to allow a cursory review of records, any discussion with placed youths, or explanations

of the budget. There was also no attempt to even defend questionable practices such

as denying residents outside activity, educational classes, and interaction with adult staff.

The generally defensive and guarded nature of the staff and the very archaic approach

to detention practice was most troublesome to the authors. Since the visit, Douglas

County has apparently begun to review the facility and to offer improvements in its-

operation. This is a noteworthy and welcome change. There is much to be done before

the facility is up to minimal standards *of care.

There are youth advocacy groups within Nebraska that could be helpful in

planning for needed changes in detention and training school programs. The authors

strongly recommend that the legislature work cooperatively with these organizations and

encourage counties that have juvenile facilities to do the same.

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974

The federal JJDP Act provides guidelines as well as financial incentives for states

to imiiprove their juvenile justice systems. States should follow the Act's guidelines

because they are based upon the best current information about effective juvenile justice

-page I1 -
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practices. Policy makers in other states have sometimes shared the perceptions of

Nebraska officials who see the JJDP Act as an Intrusion in state affairs. Rather than

focusing on issues of autonomy and administrative control, the authors would

encourage Nebraska decision makers to view the provisions of the JJDP Act as policy

goals which are in the best long-term interests of both the state and its youth.

Status Offenders. In following the JJDP Act, the legislature should make careful

study of both its intent and its language. For example. Nebraska currently allows local

jurisdictions to hold status offenders in detention for up to 24 hours because it has

interpreted the JJDP Act as permitting such a practice. The Act, however, allows holding

such youths for 24 hours 2!2j there is no one to whom the youth can be released, and

there are no other placements available such as home detention, shelter care, or foster

care. It has never been the intent of the JJDP Act to allow routine placement of status

offenders in detention. The state of Utah has completely removed status offenders from

detention by creating Youth Service Centers that the police can use in lieu of detention.

Nebraska should explore such detention diversion programs for its status offender

population, not merely because the Act demands it, but because it is good policy from

both a public-safety and a family-support perspective.

6th Floor Jail. This facility was also developed supposedly in response to the

JJDP Act. Youths who are tried as adults (through direct file provisions under

prosecutorial discretion) need someplace to be held since the JJDP Act prohibits mixing

of adult and juvenile offenders. The problem with this policy is that youths are

indiscriminately being waived through the adult courts and then placed in the 6th Floor

Jail. This allows youths who commit serious felonies and those with minor infractions to

be housed together in a jail facility simply due to the circumstance of their arrest, not due

to a careful process of waiver to the adult court. What is to prevent these same youths

- page 12-
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from being arrested and sentenced to the Douglas County Youth Home on subsequent

violations? Has this already occurred? How often? Is this not a violation of the intent o

the JJDP Act? Instead of creating a jail facility (manned by adult jail personnel) Nebraska

would be better served by reviewing its charging and waiver practices so that youths are

processed properly into the adult system and not moved from one system to the other

indiscriminately as now appears to be the accepted practice.

Monitoring, Ucenslng, and Setting Standards

Nebraska does not appear to have an agency whose responsibility is monitoring,

licensing, setting standards for, and evaluating youth facilities. Such a function is

invaluable if the state is to operate a system that serves the best interest of the state's

youth. Current legislative efforts to address this issue should be pursued. An office of

youths services monitoring attached to a similar component within the corrections

department would be a possible resoonse to this glaring deficiency of the Nebraska

system.

Staff-Training: Liability

Concerns were expressed at the Douglas County Youth Home, and the Geneva

and Kearney YDCs that staff training was insufficient. Staff have the right to be trained to

respond properly to the population they supervise. The state's failure to provide such

training not only endangers staff and youths, but presents a major liability issue for the

state itself.

- page 13-
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RACE AND JUVENILE COURT DECISION MAKING REVISITED

(ABSTRACT)

Unfortunately, racism, perpetrated by virtually all of America's. governmental

Institutions, has long been a fact and problem of American life. Prior research

suggests that America's juvenile justice systems have not been void of the negative

effects of racism; thus, racial equity in dispositional decisions is a major issue

in dispensing juvenile justice. The study presented in this research examined

Nebraska Crime Commission data over a consecutive six year period and found, all

else being equal, that black youths are usually more likely to receive harsher

treatment than are whites in terms of: (1)experiencin pre-hearin# detention, (2)

bein_forsally prosecuted by petition, and (3) receiving a harsher final penalty.

With regard to judging an accused youth to be delinquent, the analysis reveals a

reversal of the foregoing relationship between race and harshness of the decision.

The research concludes with some policy recommendations to remove racial biases from

juvenile justice processing.

noI- O*
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'Taxes Wasted on Youth Service,
Could Be Used More Effectively':

The writer, of Omaha, Is a juvenile
t ,lce Rpclailqt on the inff of Volces I
for Children In Nebraska, a statewide V
child-advocacy firm. Xi

By Peggy Adair \T
'Fhe hand wi Inplng, "ain't-t -wful" tnedlia re-

,')ns' ion , meot Juvenile arrest ("Police Sny
:I:Year-Ohl Trents )rug Arrest as Joke."

World Ilertul, Die. 2l. 1991) fails to look heyotid
te sensaitlonal moment to ask the critical
tiles ion: "Whnt will uippen fo this kkl?"

It Is nn Important question to ask for two
;enw,,s. One, tiir Inx dollars fre Rnliig to be
used in the "iehnbliltation" of this youig mnn.
lit Ihese tdp.e-cnnching limex, tnxpayers
hove a right to lie Asstred their tax doilnis are
twing spent wisely. Two, whether this youth
ranis how to x a productive citizen or leans

how to ie a belter criminal affects everyone In
tr cominuilly.

"rypicnlly, what happens to a kid In such
clrcuristnotes is this, lie Is handcuffed and
take t0 Ite 1PIMl detention center, a 40year-old
fnilllty where lie will receive no therapy or
idIllvIldul ectimteling; where lie fnces the very
real possibility of becoming the sexual victim of
nler, stronger boys. lie will slay there ally.
where from I wr to 270days.

lie will tneet with a public defender five
mInules before he goes to court. It only takes
five tintities boxcuse there are few options for a
hoy like this. lie will either be placed on
probrillon, or he will go to the state training
school for boys. There could he other options; If
the city. county or state governments were
willing to pay for them. But they are not willing,
nd n tioy like ftLs, poor and black. Is not able.
On probation, hock in the questionable en.

viinntnent he carne from, he receives no drug
r4hirntiloo. m) family therapy, no "Jucatio tal
nsisaotire, no psychologIcn counseling. No one
Is willing to pay. Without a positive support
system, lie quickly falls back Into the comrfort-
able routine of the only family life he knows. lie
sells drugs. The judge has only one option left:
the slte triningschool.

The Kenney Youth Development Center,
Nelbrnska's training school for boys, hu-s no
certified drug counseling program, even th Jugh
mnny of the boys there are at high risk for drug
and alcohol use. The center offers no routine
Individual counseling. no mental health program
and no therapy for sexual-abuse syndrome, even
thoo ih more than 75 percent of the boys have
been vlctits of sexual abuse.

Almost hilf of the "stude tls" at Keae *rt
minority youths, vet the youth-care MAff Is.
entirely Caucasian. The only "treatment" at the
center I.cralled "positive peer Culture" (PPC), A
25year old systern of group control, where the
boys (nll from d,3fufcllciokAl backgrounds. none,
with a college degre# in human services, many

leae niitg-dlsaId or mentally low-funcilonIng)
provide their own grotp therapy.

It's cheap. It gets the administration off the
hook. And It Is a great mangement tool. It is
also grossly Inadequate. It does not get to the
underlying Iks;ues And unreel needs that lead a
boy Into a t r(ubled adolescence.

Alter anywhere from 3 to 12 months at the
Youth Development Center. a boy 1% p'wroled
and evenlunfly end. tp, you guessed It. right
back In the lysfunclional environment tie came
from. Before Iobg he falls back again Into the
family routine. The county attorney. irrilatMd
that tie txy filledd.'" sends him through adult
court. aid the Judge sentence. him to adult
prism. Whnt we have unwittingly created, in
this entire pr oces. IsA criminal.

And the cost to inaxpayers? To send A boy to
Keaney costs axbut S22,00 year. On the oiher
haid, to provide alt the appropriate intensive,
cotnmunity.1,sed services he needs, hichdlog
therapeutic foster cnre, educational services.
one-on-one counseling nd family InterventciA,
costs $12,.(EK.

Comniuity-hased youth services have
proved to be ns effective or more effective In
reducing juvenile crime than traditional Institu-
tionalltition. at les cost to taxpayers. Yet oAir
slate, and In parIlcuilar our county. Is unwilling
to pay for the more effective approach.

(Aur governor, our legislators, our state agen-
cies, our local government, our elected officials.
our Judges are responsible for carryitig out tile
Nebraska statute thn reads: "To assure the
lights of all juveniles to care and protecti ,i and
n stable living environment and to development
of their capacities for a healthy persunality,
physical well-being, and useful citirensilp And to
protect the public Interest." (Nebraska Revised
Statutes 43-246 (1)).

Taxpayers should be outraged at the abysmal
waste of their hard-earned dollars on an outdat-
ed youth service system that neither meets the
heed. of the youth nor serves the public interest.

Because our officials have historically failed
to pay for effective services for children. Our
Sate now will place an $85 million prison-
expanSlon burden upon the taxpnyers. Our
prisofs are bulging at the seams with all (hi
boys now grown up. We refused to pay for theih
when they were children, so now we must face
the consequences of paying for them as adults.

"Ain't It awful?" Yes, It Is. And It Is time to do
soinethlng about It.

Best Available Copy
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DID YOU KNOW TiAT..

Federal law protects abused and neglected
children from being locked in confinement with
lawbreakers, but Nebraska law does not?

* Nebraska has the 5th highest rate in the
nation for the incarceration of status
offenders?

I Runaways are the most likely status offenders

to be held in jail or secure juvenile detention,
set they are the least likely to receive services
upon release?

* Adolescents ire I0 times inore likely to te
sittiis or crime than the elderly?

* The Kearney Youth l)evelopment ('enter,
which is supposed to be the "last resort" for
itivenile court, is ithe first dispositional

placement for ut to one-third of the boys
coininitted there?

* 311%" uf the htoys etimitted to Kearney YI)('
;kl frer roster children'?

* Adoleseents are locked in Douglas County's
('riUrthouse ,Jail for up to one year, during
which time they have no physical exercise and

lew relabililative services.

* In Nebruska, juvenile court judges, probation
oficers, police office.e;, sheriffs, are required to

have miniral or no) training in adolescent
dlevelopitent, child abuse, or working with

t IIubled youl h?

" Young persons who are labelled "delinquent"

do not have access to state-funded social

services designed to prevent further delinquent

behavior?

* Nebraska has statewide adult jail standards,

but has no minimum standards for juvenile

detention centers?

cotuit and Iteen told tt tin,'v will n-ccvc /rto-tirtt

wihtet in reallyy tltcy ic tire itt ctit d roly punitive:
cust,)1lrat act'tcuts. If t' ht/' to tr Icth u/tldicn to
respect our /t'grl systemm, i4i' iUV 6i O/W tS' chllden

hat t/c s.s'tttm is jU.st ur prtvs;i ,tyslt'n is nut

- Susan Ldi't t orC idt-nr. A Yolthd
Advocwates for C/tten And Yost/i

7 lie paomnitit I c ut-vc i u, ii wIli tvitiiciibs
ouf co /dr Id P l .i ttr'd top 1 o4 t. w, (I get
b cIe, c hmli'cgd by itW OtCcu Mtt Itt Ih 10114 tI f

tItCtUt F1ft'd si'l Mt ONlt totit llr? , N it/il 1t1, $( 1, i/ it r If U
a tti!rtqpo/jgro



Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Adair.
I have to be very careful here. It surprises me, the number of

items you've stated that there were no laws. The Federal mandate
especially intended to make sure that youths would be incarcerated
in a safe way.

Ms. ADAIR. Yes.
Chairman MARTINEZ. A big thrust of the original Act was to de-

institutionalize young people and especially to get them out of
adult lockups.

The reason I want to be very careful here is because Mr. Barrett,
my colleague, was Speaker of the House here in the State, and so
my question actually would be more properly addressed to him.
How is it that none of your State laws cover the things that most
States do have laws to cover?

Mr. BARRETT. I cannot give you a good answer, Mr. Chairman.
447-is that the current bill that is under consideration?

Ms. ADAIR. That would separate the agencies, yes.
Mr. BARRETr. Put them into the Corrections-get them out of

Corrections.
Ms. ADAIR. Yes. Right now, the Corrections Department, a piece

of that is Juvenile Corrections, it's a division of Juvenile Correc-
tions.

Mr. BARRETT. Yes.
Ms. ADAIR. And we're hoping to separate that, too, because one

of the problems, of course, is the adult correction is always over-
crowded, always in crisis, and so they can't provide funding for the
kids in juvenile corrections, and so-and the philosophies are en-
tirely different as well.

The other piece of legislation is L.B. 1046. That's the detention
piece that would provide for implementation of State standards for
detention facilities. We do have standards, but we do not have au-
thorization to implement them.

Mr. BARRETT. If I might ask a question, what is the current
status right now? I'm obviously very far removed from it now.
What's the status of the bill?

Ms. ADAIR. L.B. 447, I believe, is at final reading, and L.B. 1046, I
think, is on select file.

Mr. BARRETT. Okay.
Ms. ADAIR. L.B. 447 is a priority bill. We're hopeful that that

might pass, L.B. 1046 is, also.
Mr. BARRETT. They are both priorities? Good. They will probably,

then, pass this session.
Chairman MARTINEZ. You know, there are two things in your tes-

timony that strike me. One is that, somehow or another, in even
some statistics we saw this morning, national statistics, in particu-
lar averages across the Nation, child abuse, sexual abuse percent-
ages are higher here than they are nationwide.

I know the funding formulas generally go by population of juve-
niles in the State. Somehow, there needs to be a formula estab-
lished-I'm not exactly sure how we would do it-to target &I, the
greatest need, because there might be a greater need here than
there is in a more populated State.

Are there discretionar, programs here in Nebraska.
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Father PETER. Yes. Most of the money goes to the State formula
grants; there's about $20 million in there that's discretionary.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Well, you know, in 1978 we had $100 mil-
lion for JJDPA. Today, we only have $76 million. There have been
higher priorities determined by Congress for moneys, I guess.

I think it's incumbent on both of us, myself, being a Democrat,
and Mr. Barrett, being a Republican, for him to work on the ad-
ministration on that side to get more funding for this Act, to work
on the Democratic side to get it more funding, because it's obvious
that there's more funding needed.

As you said, Father Peter, you've got to put all three elements
together. If you don't, we're not going anywhere. It's obvious from
what I've seen here that many of the programs here in the State
are run by community-based organizations. I think you can almost
say that Boys Town is a community-based organization. The exten-
sions that you provide, like the one we visited this morning, are
community-based organizations. They are in the community right
there.

The other thing that you mentioned is that you don't get any
foundation or corporation help. You know, I think big business has
an obligation and a responsibility, and there has to be something in
the bill that says, "We'll give so much money if they'll give so
much money" to encourage them to contribute and to somehow
provide incentive for them to match public funds.

Often, Federal laws mandate something to a State and State
funding is contingent on the State complying with the mandate. In
this particular case, that doesn't seem to have been a factor.

Ms. ADAIR. Yes. And I don't work for the Crime Commission and
Jean has just been on there a very short time, and she might not
be able to answer even how it has occurred.

I agree with you, I think it's dangerous to say, "Okay. You
haven't done what we want, folks, and so we're going to stop the
funds." We desperately need the money, obviously. We desperately
need that money. We have a long way to go and we need a lot of
help. Without that help, we're simply going to go back to where we
were before.

As I say, we have made some progress, but it is very slow. This is
a very conservative State, and our State motto is "the good life."
Because of that, I think we try to deny a lot of things that are
going on in the State and gloss over the sexual abuse, the run-
aways and the problems that we're suffering. We don't want to say
that we're not the good life for everybody. But we desperately do
need the funding.

Chairman MARTINEZ. I agree. Let met explain something. I am
adamantly opposed to that concept of withholding funds even if the
States have proven that they are unable to comply. I do believe in
home rule and States' rights. But the thing is, too, that there are
ways to encourage States to comply. There are a lot of reasons why
States won't do it. Maybe they don t have the funding.

In a lot of cases, some States are very depressed and they don't
have reasonable budgets where they can afford to do these things. I
think it's incumbent on the Federal Government to step in and
help them in those areas.

MS. VANCE. May I say something?
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Chairman MARTINEZ. Yes.
Ms. VANCE. I think some of the problems I experienced when

they were trying to make the transition is that there are no other
services in rural Nebraska for kids. I had a shelter facility, and we
lost some of our group homes. Foster homes are not that easy to
find anymore, either.

But what happened in Scottsbluff, in trying to deinstitutionalize
to catch up with some of the things, is that the sheriff announced
that they were no longer holding juveniles in the adult facility.
They closed the door without making any alternative plans of what
they were going to do and how they were going to work with what
was in the community.

So what began happening was at the shelter, instead of servicing
basically runaway homeless youth, everybody was inundating us
with delinquent kids, probation kids, kids that maybe should have
been locked up instead of in our facility.

We became a program caught between social services and law
enforcement during the struggle to figure out something.

I mean, you know, he just made this announcement. Well, if you
made the announcement in your community that you were locking
all adult facilities and they would be no more, can you guess the
chaos that you would have with the adult population? Well, the
same thing was happening with kids.

For a period of 6, 8 months, it was really chaotic because there
were no other places to keep the kids and nothing to set in place to
handle those. So to the kids, it gave them a license to go out and do
whatever they wanted to. They knew law enforcement couldn't do
anything, we couldn't do anything, and social services was power-
less, too, in their eyes. So when they got picked up, you know, they
went to court and then straight to Geneva or Kearney regardless of
what the situation was.

So I think one of the things that created a lot of problems for
Nebraska was that there was not money for alternatives to be able
to deinstitutionalize the kids fast enough to meet some of the re-
quirements. That's because there was no money.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Father?
Father PETER. Way back in 1974 when this Act was first passed

and signed, "deinstitutionalization" was the word of the hour. If
you study long periods of time when new ideas-and it is a good
idea, but when new ideas are implemented, what usually happens
is what happened in this instance.

They took a great idea, deinstitutionalization, but didn't plan for
the kids after deinstitutionalization. There wasn't really anything
there, and so you took a good idea and crashed it.

But you saw the same thing with mental health, didn't you? You
deinstitutionalized the elderly who were mentally ill; they ended
up as the bag ladies on our streets.

I do think, and I think, Peggy, you would agree with me, when
you deinstitutionalize, you can t just say, "We'll let them out and
that's all there is to it." There has to be further ways in which
those kids can be helped.

What happens, and you mentioned it quite well, is a State bu-
reaucrat will then say to a shelter, "Well, you're getting our
money; you'll take who we tell you to take."

60-786 0 - 92 - 5
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Chairman MARTINEZ. Yes.
Father PETER. And see, that destroys the system.
Let me give you one more example that is commonplace. We see

it across the whole United States. After deinstitutionalization, it is
commonplace when you are a border community, whether Omaha,
Covington, Kentucky, Cincinnati, or wherever it might be, for the
police to simply escort the adolescent to the bridge and say, "See
ya. Go into the next State."

Chairman MARTINEZ. No, that's not the way to deal with the
problem.

Father PETER. That's commonplace. Commonplace.
Chairman MARTINEZ. You know, one of the things that I find is

that if you've got a large advocacy group behind something, Con-
gress will usually do something about it. We have seen a growing
number of advocacy groups for youth because young people are
facing increasing numbers of problems. Many communities and
civil servants are now saying to the Federal Government, "Hey, we
need help because we don't have the resources."

The original reason the bill was passed was because we recog-
nized they didn't have the resources. What we haven't recognized
is that we haven't provided those resources, and we're saying it,
but we still have not done it.

Nebraska, for example-I think you get the minimum grant pos-
sible. It might be that we need to do something so that States like
Nebraska are eligible for more money. If a State is working to-
wards accomplishing the goals of the Act, we should provide them
dollars in support of those goals.

Father PETER. Let met just give you three examples that I think
are positive. If you're going to do deinstitutionalization, then I
really think, I hope, I pray, that the Act will say, "Hey, we really
have to say there are moneys available for in-home services, there
are moneys available for parent training, in-home services." We go
into the homes before they fall apart, or we go into the homes
when they are falling apart. That's kind of a treatment thing that
is both preventive and also helps the kids themselves to learn. If
they've been in a shelter, I think we have to do in-home services. I
certainly think we have to do parent training.

Thirdly, if you can, someway or another tie some of this money
into outcome effective programs. What kind of outcome do you
have in your programs? I mean, let me just give you one little ex-
ample of what I'm talking about: outcome effective programs. Do
you really help these kids? And I'll give you an example.

Some States count returning the kid to the home as an automat-
ic success, all right? And that s what I call a systems outcome. The
system is happy that that kid is back in his house.

Chairman MARTINEZ. But also back in the same problem situa-
tion.

Father PETER. Yes. That's what I'm saying, Congressman. How
would you like to have been pushed back in and they said they
counted the Congressman as a success? Do you know what I'm
saying, Peggy?

That doesn't necessarily count as a success. They have to count
individual outcomes. Did this kid get better when he went home or
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did you just send him back into the same old mess he was in
before?

Ms. ADAIR. Well, one of the things that bothers me about the
runaway homeless piece of the JJDP Act is that whenever Federal
funds are provided to these homeless runaway shelters, the role of
the shelter has to be reunification with the parent. That's part of
the Act; they have to work to reunify this family even though
study after study has shown that between 65 and 85 percent of the
kids in these shelters have been sexually or physically abused in
their homes. What we're doing is forcing the kids back to their
abuser, and that is one piece of this Act that really bothers me.

One of the stated purposes of the Act is to provide preventive
and treatment programs and provide a good comprehensive juve-
nile justice system. I certainly think the funding needs to be made
available to do that, to carry it out.

Ms. VANCE. Well, for some of the kids, it is possible for family
reunification.

Father PETER. Oh, for a lot of kids.
Ms. VANCE. But there is a lack of parental involvement because

the parent sees the kid as the problem instead of taking some re-
sponsibility for their part in it.

In my parenting classes, most of which have been court-ordered
because of abuse, neglect, et cetera, the parents, for the first two
classes, come in really negative about being there and being forced
to come to the classes. But by the end of the class, they want more
information and want to be able to do better parenting.

I feel that maybe that's the way to go, to mandate from courts
that parents who have troubled kids be involved in counseling and
parenting education to help change their parent system; otherwise,
the kids go back to the home and the parents have done nothing to
change.

Father PETER. The purpose of this legislation, in my mind, has to
be that in the end. I, as a young boy who was thrown out of my
home, have learned new skills to deal with my life. My mom or my
dad, or whoever it is, has learned new skills; they will not continue
the abuse or whatever it is.

The purpose of the Act, I think, is teaching in that powerful
sense of the term. If we can do that-

Chairman MARTINEZ. There are two things that have been been
reaffirmed for me in these hearings: somehow, we have to make
sure that moneys that we put out there hinge on some kind of
parent responsibility. In some places and in some cases, people
have passed laws that say, "Hey, if a kid destroys something or
vandalizes something, the parents are responsible and they have to
pay." Boy, that makes those parents shape up and find out what
that kid is doing.

If you carry that same principle out to a greater extent, then you
require that, if the kids have problems in that home and are run-
ning away, the parent be involved because that parent is a part of
the problem, and therefore needs to be part of the solution. We
have to provide some kind of a system where we-I hate to use the
word "force," but almost force the parents to get involved in those
classes whether they like it or not, because once they do, I think
they'll discover they needed it.
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Father PETER. Court mandated.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Court mandated.
Father PETER. You bet.
Chairman MARTINEZ. The other thing is that I really feel we

need to do something to make sure the money gets to the places in
the greatest need. I really do. Don't you feel that?

Father PETER. Yes.
Mr. BARRETT. And that creates another problem, maybe.
Ms. VANCE. I find, too, that sometimes when they do per popula-

tion-I've worked with Head Start for many years and some of
their grants would come divvied out based on population rather
than services.

But when you look at rural Nebraska, maybe the population is
less, but it also costs us more to provide services because of the dis-
tance to and from the smaller community.

I know you are probably not that aware of Nebraska, but in the
panhandle area where our shelter is, about one-fourth of the kids
whom we serve are Native American and one-fourth are Mexican
American, and the others are Anglo. Once in a while, we have a
black youth or an Asian youth.

So we do have a Native American population, and they have
some really strong needs. But it's really hard to provide those serv-
ices because you don't have the money, and it costs to run vehicles
and staff time to all these little communities to provide some" of
those services. In the bigger towns, it's closer and, yes, you do have
more population. But nevertheless, the need and the expense is
about the same, as I see it.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Yes. We need to use the money in the best
way.

Mr. Barrett?
Mr. BARRETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ruth, you've just, I guess, touched on something that has been of

concern to me, and that is the distances that you have to travel,
and you mentioned the expense involved and, of course, the Native
Americans, which are a problem in your area although to a lesser
extent in other places.

What about the possibility of mobile services to some of our out-
lying, more remote districts? Has this ever occurred to anyone,
taking some of these services in a van, a mobile service of some
kind? Is this an idea that should be explored, or is this something
that people would be afraid of being stigmatized by going to the
van? Just give me an off-the-top-of-your-head reaction.

Ms. VANCE. Well, I think it would be very possible, and I don't
see it being too difficult to bring on. But you also need the staff to
be able to do it and you need finances for the van, because a lot of
the smaller areas are serviced by satellite centers. Mental health
centers, for example, might have two or three satellite programs.

But sometimes the people are not always helped, are not always
ready to go for the help there, because they get to know only the
one person, who maybe is not family and youth oriented, may be
more treatment and preventive oriented.

But I do see that it would be of some value to have extra funding
to be able to do that because it is difficult to drive 100 miles or 180
miles to provide services to these little communities. You're going
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to be gone from six in the morning until 12 at night just trying to
get back, to go again. So yes, that would be of help. And it would
work. They are trying a rural health grant out in our area by
using a mobile van as a way of providing health services.

Mr. BARRETT. There is a rather, I think, dramatic lack of transi-
tional living in rural areas. Yor identified one and, of course, we
have one here.

What's the average length of time out there for your people?
Ms. VANCE. On the transitional living program?
Mr. BARRETT. Yes.
Ms. VANCE. Right now, we're averaging about 8 months.
Mr. BARRETT. About eight.
Ms. VANCE. And we can go up to 3 years in helping these youth.
And transitional living youth, for those who aren't aware, are

homeless youth. We've seen about 115 homeless youth that have
not been to the doctor in the last year. We have 15 of them that we
work with on full-service programs, some kind of moderate. They
come and go to some of our classes; and others just kind of touch
base once in a while when they may have a need.

But you have to understand that when kids get to the point of
homelessness, they, too, are at the end of their rope. They are not
going to believe any agency person or adult because most of their
experiences with us adults have been very negative and they have
lost every time. So it takes a while for them to get the trust and
things built up to start asking or even trusting that an adult is
going to tell them the truth.

So we do service about 115 homeless kids in that program alone.
Mr. BARRETT. In your opinion, should there be more of this, these

types of facilities across western Nebraska?
Ms. VANCE. I think there probably needs to be until we can get

things turned around with parents and children to where they are
not leaving home as much.

Otherwise, what happens in rural Nebraska is that when the
kids are homeless, and they've been used to some luxuries in their
home but now are kicked out of their home and struggling, they
find an apartment and then go out into the farmlands to rob
houses of all their furnishings to furnish their apartment in the
same style that they had while they lived at home.

Mr. BARRETT. Is that right?
Ms. VANCE. And also, there are not a whole lot of jobs in Scottsb-

luff for adults, let alone youth. So, yes, that's true. It's sad, but
they see that as one way of living in the same style as they were
accustomed to.

Mr. BARRETT. Your average length of time, Father, is 14 days
over here?

Father PETER. Yes. I think probably the most. For me, the
bottom line of all of this is to strengthen the funding portion of the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, if you can. But
more than anything else, the bottom line for me is that hopefully
Congress can come to the realization that the Nation needs a re-
commitment to our families. These folks are hurting. Those kids,
you put them out on independent living, listen to what Ruth says.
They haven't got any relatives.

Ms. VANCE. No connections.
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Father PETER. There are no connections. I mean, you can give
them whatever those things are; that's not going to solve their
problem. They need to be reconnected or to be newly connected to
somebody who cares and shares. The institutions in this country
which reinforce family life need to be strengthened. Whatever
these are, whether they are schools, whether they are churches,
whatever they are, they need to be strengthened.

And I'm not talking about through this Act. I'm talking about
through other things that you folks do, acts that you pass, whether
it is financial aid to families or through deductions for kids. I don't
know what those things are; you people know a lot better than I
do. But we need to recommit ourselves to our families. This is one
little piece of it, this Juvenile Justice Act, but I think there's a lot
more than that.

MS. VANCE. I think, too, maybe you ought to consider looking at
some child development program specialists as a source of help in
developing some of the programs. I see a real need, even with
social workers. They do not understand good child development or
matching kids with needs and making sure the services are provid-
ed to the youth based on their needs.

I think it would behoove us all to use some of the expertise of
some of those people in making sure that we're providing and
doing the right things for the youth.

Mr. BARRETT. An aside, I guess: How many of the kids in your
system go on to get a high school diploma or a GED? Have you any
idea?

Ms. VANCE. I don't have any idea.
Mr. BARRETT. Okay.
Ms. VANCE. This year, our stats for the kids that were attending

school show only about half of the kids out of 267 were still in
school. The others were working on obtaining GED's, but either
dropped out or were kicked out of school for some reason.

Mr. BARRETT. Are there any numbers out here, Father, that
you're aware of now at this early stage?

Father PETER. I can't say at all.
Mr. BARRETT. Okay. That was kind of an aside.
Ms. VANCE. One of the things I keep seeing is that parents don't

try to encourage their kids to stay in school. If you're 16, that's
fine, drop out. I really would like for somebody to look at the laws
on Nebraska records of allowing kids to drop out at age 16.

I think that's an antiquated law. I think it was developed at the
time when kids were needed to be home to help the family on the
farm, when things were harder.

I think right now, it's used as a tool or a scapegoat to get kicked
out of school or to allow kids to drop out of school. Most kids who
are kicked out, suspended or drop out of school end up sleeping all
day. At night, they are out carousing and getting into trouble.

Myself, I feel like it should be the age of maturity that they can
drop out of school. But anyway-

Mr. BARREr. Well, that leads me into perhaps something else
here. You talk in your testimony here, your written testimony,
about the few skills or lack of skills with which to earn a living.
That's where I was trying to go with that question.
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You go on to say that many of them are in need of mental health
care due to life and family circumstances that put them at risk for
substance abuse, early pregnancy, HIV infection, AIDS, et cetera,
et cetera.

Ms. VANCE. Right.
Mr. BARRETT. This is, I think, the first time, at least that I am

aware of, that we have touched on AIDS. What percentage-can
you give me any kind of a percentage of the kids that you're in-
volved with that be infected?

Ms. VANCE. I would say at least a fourth of the kids that we are
involved with.

Mr. BARRETT. How many?
Ms. VANCE. At least a fourth of them.
Mr. BARRETT. A fourth?
Ms. VANCE. Yes, because they have at-risk behavior. They have

sex with whoever, whenever. We have kids in our shelter who have
been prostitutes. You'll see many of the kids out having sex for a
place to stay, or living with an older guy and having sex.

Mr. BARRETT. How do you meet these needs in your facility?
What can you do? How do you approach this? How do you handle
it?

Ms. VANCE. When they come in, we do a health assessment and
then take a history of what's been going on in their life. We refer
them to family planning. Several of the kids have shown venereal
diseases, which is VD and sometimes syphilis.

We have taken some kids for AIDS tests. Of course, we never
know the results. But that is a concern with many of these youth.

Father PETER. That was the point I was making up here.
Ms. VANCE. Yes.
Father PETER. You have to teach kids. Those are all victimized

behaviors and victimizing behaviors, that sexual acting up. That's
all that is, on a grand scale. You have to teach them different be-
havior. They are destroying themselves and they are destroying
other people. You have to teach them proactive and pro-social be-
havior. That's what we do, and it works.

They have to discover through the consequences of their behav-
ior that this is better than the other. They have to discover that.

Ms. VANCE. All those problems, the anger, follow them into
adulthood unless it's dealt with. Many times, it's not even dealt
with.

Mr. BARRETT. I'm just a little bit surprised at that high percent-
age, I guess, of the younger people.

Ms. VANCE. For example, Scottsbluff County last year was
number one in teenage pregnancy.

Mr. BARRETT. Number one.
Ms. VANCE. Yes.
Mr. BARRETT. Father, your outcome effective program sounds in-

teresting, rather solid, kind of a logical idea.
Father PETER. It's kind of back to basics.
Mr. BARRETT . Specifically, how do you measure it? How would we

measure it? How do you measure it, whether it's a success or not?
Father PETER. Okay. Here's how you measure successes. Number

one, is the kid staying in school or is he going back to school?
Number two, is he having any more connection with the law? In
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other words, is he getting himself into further instances where he's
interacting negatively with the law? Number three, are there any
more instances of abuse or are there no more instances of abuse?
To be honest, if you ask him after you've gone through all of this,
he'll tell you. The fourth one is, is he engaging in stealing behav-
ior, drugs, alcohol or any of those sorts of things.

Those are all outcomes. What I call the great scourges of adoles-
cence, drugs, alcohol, suicide, sexual acting up, are enormous
scourges. These are outcomes that you can measure. You can meas-
ure them simply and you can count them.

We work on, at Boys Town, what we call approximations. I try to
get them to the point where they are becoming less aggressive. We
have a boy right now who has gone for 30 days without having one
school suspension, all right? When he came, he would have three
office referrals every day. He's gone for 30 days without an office
referral. Now, I'd say that's miraculous. Now, he isn't close to
being what you'd call in the normal range, but I'd say, Mr. Con-
gressman, that's going in the right direction. That's what I mean
by outcomes.

Mr. BARRETT. Thank you. I think you indicated earlier that you
do track them?

Father PETER. Oh, we sure do track them. We do. We're
counters; we count everything.

Ms. ADAIR. One thing that Boys Town does that I Lhink is very
important is they ask the kids how they are doing, they ask the
kids to evaluate the program.

In so many of these programs, we adults decide whether or not
we think things are okay instead of asking the kids. The best judge
of a meal is not the chef, it's the guest. You need to ask the kids
how their lives are going, do they feel like things are working
better, how is the outcome for chem. I think that's very important,
and that's one of the things that Boys Town does in their evalua-
tion.

Mr. BARRETT. That's a good point. Thank you.
Father PETER. Thanks. I appreciate it.
Let me give you a little example. At the shelter you are at, you

should be able to ask every one of those boys and girls who is
there, "Do you know what your troubles are? Do you know what's
wrong with you? And do you know what to do about it?" Because
what if I don't even have a clue as to what's wrong with me or I
don't know how to get better? How am I going to get better? You
adults are going to be running around doing things that I don't un-
derstand, and I wonder why you're doing them. I really do have to
know what's wrong with me. I do have to know how to get better,
because if I don't, I just think I'm never going to make it.

For us, that's incredibly important, that the youth, the boy, the
girl, say, "I want to get better and I have some idea as to how to do
it now. I can't do it by myself. I need you to help me."

Mr. BARRETT. Thank you very much. Thank you, all three of you.
I think this has been exceptional testimony, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Absolutely. You know, we've only had

short visits with people, but those people have obviously been
helped. Several told me exactly what had been wrong and how they
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were now different. One said, "I used to get mad at everything my
parent told me. I don't get mad at everything my parent tells me
now."

Father PETER. That's very good.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Yes. He said, "And it was iitore me than it

was them." Now, that's doing something.
Father PETER. That's very good.
Chairman MARTINEZ. And so I understand what you're saying,

because I have seen people who have changed and who understand
now their problems. If you're going to get better about something,
you've got to know what's causing you to have that problem.

Mr. Barrett has said it, as well as much as the testimony. And
the people that we visited with and the places we have seen have
proven it. The fact is that the law is lacking, and we are not en-
forcing things that were mandated in the Federal law. I under-
stand there are a lot of reasons why, but we've got to create an in-
centive for people to carry out the mandate of the law. They do it
in a much better way if they're doing it because they want to, be-
cause they see the need to.

So we'll work on those things from our angle, and then we'll con-
tinue to hope for your support from your side. What we need is a
groundswell advocacy across the whole Nation on these things, and
that'll help us get passed what we need to get passed. So thank you
again.

Father PETER. Thank you very much, Congressman.
Ms. VANCE. Thank you.
Ms. ADAIR. Thanks.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Our next panel consists of Carolyn Stitt,

who is Director of Foster Care Review Board, Lincoln, Nebraska.
Ms. Stitt, you can continue any way you like.

STATEMENT OF CAROLYN STITT, DIRECTOR, FOSTER CARE
REVIEW BOARD

Ms. STITT. Good morning, Chairman Martinez, Congressman Bar-
rett. I certainly appreciate the opportunity to speak with you
today.

I will be talking a little about what the Foster Care Review
Board does, some of the issues that we see, and the links between
the child abuse system and the juvenile justice system.

The Foster Care Review Board was formed in 1982 with very
active backing by Congressman Barrett, then our State legislator.
There were some very main concerns that still touch on juvenile
justice regarding why we needed a Foster Care Review Board.

First, there were children in the system who did not have plans.
We had no idea what we were going to do with them. Much of
what Father Peter talked about today I think is essential to a solid
case plan: What's happened with the child and what are we going
to do about it?

Secondly, believe it or not, and unfortunately, in many States in
the country, no one knew how many children were in out-of-home
care in Nebraska. Therefore there was a tracking system created in
this legislation to track children in all of our systems: public sys-
tems, private systems, or juvenile justice systems.
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Also, court reviews had not taken place for some of these chil-
dren for as long as 10 years. Without court reviews, many of the
court mandated services that have been discussed with you today,
and the importance of those services were never addressed.

Time and time again, we had children coming into our system
badly abused, were placed back home, and came in again badly
abused. There was no physical evidence of what those children suf-
fered.

A group of foster parents, really working with the legislature,
formed and sat down to look at how other States were addressing
these issues. They came up with the Foster Care Review Board.
Each one of these issues I talked about was addressed in the legis-
lation.

But a very interesting component is that not only are there man-
dated plans for children in Nebraska, but there are citizen reviews
of those plans, external citizen reviews. They are in no way related
to the agency or to the court. They sit down and take a look at
what is happening with this individual child.

In doing that, they also look at their area, problems and needs in
their areas, and-we have some boards who specialize in certain
areas.

Our Hastings Board, for example, has been the board that's
really focused on the problems with the YDCs, Youth Development
Centers, which I will talk about in a minute.

The other piece of this advocacy, that I don't think any of us
quite thought would happen to the extent that it's happened, is the
individual case advocacy where the boards really try to identify
what has broken down for children and communicate to each
person in the system what needs to happen to improve the plight of
this child.

Now, I think one of the things that needs to be made very clear
to you is that in the child welfare system, no one takes responsibil-
ity. I'm sure many of you have seen the film "Who killed Adam
Mann?" and that's supposedly being shown on the Hill. You know
of horror cases in your own system, where you try to figure out
what happened with the system. It's kind of a glob, where it's not
quite clear who is supposed to do what.

One of the things our boards try to do is define the county attor-
ney's role, the Department of Social Services' role, the judge's role,
and push them on to what has and has not happened for the chil-
dren.

We've been involved, as I said, in system advocacy. That's really
how I became acquainted with Congressman Barrett. We have
worked on a number of issues. Some of the very fundamental
things we've had to do in Nebraska are to go back and educate the
people in our system about things like child development; talk to
our judges about what children could actually testify to, what could
they be expected to say on the stand, so we could get some of these
court-ordered issues that you talked about earlier.

We've also done training for the county attorneys for the guard-
ians ad litem. We've worked hard in trying to get a special unit in
the attorney general's office.
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An enormous problem that we've identified in the system is the
lack of active prosecution of child abuse cases by our local county
attorneys. This happens for a number of reasons.

Many of those county attorneys are part-time county attorneys.
When you talk about rural areas, the investigators may not have
the components they need to move forward to investigate. They
themselves may not know how to interview a child. Or if we have a
county attorney who's very knowledgeable, we have an investiga-
tive piece that isn't. So we've worked to improve the prosecution of
these child abuse cases.

Our system, as was talked about here before, is backwards. We
actually had to mandate foster parent training. Now, you came
face to face with our children, and I think that's one of the most
important things you could have done, probably even more impor-
tant than anything any of us can say today.

These kids bring enormous issues with them. You saw the skills
that people have at Boys Town to work with these kids. There is
not much difference, if any, between children who are in foster
care, in group homes, and in our Youth Development Centers. You
can't think of these systems as a system.

You know, when you talked about what Father Peter said, it's
difficult to access a system in California. In many parts of our
rural Nebraska, there is no system. The system is so erratic. Some-
one will call me and say, "This is the case scenario. What's going
to happen?" And I say, "Who knows?" It depends on the judge, it
depends on who investigates the case, it depends on the county at-
torney, and it depends on that particular office of the Department
of Social Services.

So that's an issue, I think, that Congress has to grapple with.
The systems that we talk about are really a fallacy. I invite you
and your staff to attend the review board, to sit on review boards
and look at these cases. Look at what happens to children, and see
what rhyme or reason there happens to be for what they get or
what they don't get in the system. I think that's critically impor-
tant.

The other thing I think that we have to discuss is the link be-
tween foster care, or our child abuse system, and the juvenile jus-
tice system.

I think the people before me articulated it very clearly. There
are children who exist in both of our systems. Right now, 17 of the
girls who are in the Youth Development Center, that's over half,
came from the child abuse system, all right? We also know, as Ms.
Adair testified, between 80 and 90 percent of those girls have been
victims of sexual abuse.

I have worked on individual cases with judges in rural Nebraska
where they cannot access a safe placement for girls. The girls run
out the back door of their homes and are placed in the Youth De-
velopment Centers. This happens in some of the cases because
there are not facilities in rural Nebraska to treat these youth.

I think when you look at some of the problems that we have in
our juvenile justice system, you have to grapple with the larger
child welfare system and what youths and families do not receive
in that child abuse system.
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I have a list of concerns that the boards who review these cases
asked me to bring to you today. I'll run through these quickly; they
are on page six of my prepared testimony. First is the inappropri-
ate placements at the Youth Development Centers. This occurs be-
cause of the lack of appropriate facilities in the State for abused
and neglected children.

I brought for you today our total list of the State of facilities for
youth in out-of-home care. This is not just delinquent youth. I
think what you're going to see here is an amazing deficit. This is
from Kearney, just a little bit west of where we are, all the way
across the State. A few of these places may actually take delin-
quent kids, but most of them do not.

This is, in a nutshell, what we talk about when we talk about
our system. In the panhandle area alone, there are over 300 youth.
This is what we have in terms of group homes or detention centers,
to give you an idea of the problem we have. We're losing monthly
more foster parents than we can recruit. Part of that is because of
the lack of support they're receiving, the lack of a clear indication
of what their role is, the lack of someone to answer their phone
calls. That's what I'm talking about when I talk about lack of sup-
port. This is an enormous problem in our State.

Another concern we have is the type of counseling that's used in
the Youth Development Centers. Currently, positive peer culture is
used at both Youth Development Centers. This is a technique that
uses group dynamics to influence the behavior of the individual.
The behavior of the individual is discussed by the group and the
group determines the punishment for misbehaving.

We're very concerned about this type of counseling because there
are low-functioning youth that we have sat in on who seem bewil-
dered by the whole process. Secondly, for sexually abused youth,
this is not the kind of environment in which they can bring up the
kind of powerlessness, the guilt and the fear that they have. They
themselves may not even understand it.

One of the groups that I personally sat in on functioned very
well. One was quite hostile to the youth who had been abused and
tried to make the youth take responsibility for what happened. It's
a concern we have.

The third area that we have concerns about is the other services
that are needed at the Geneva YDC. We see a fairly high number
of pregnant teenagers.

Now, I agree with what Father Peter was saying about birth con-
trol. Our problems go back beyond just this component. But for
now, these kids are not getting the prenatal care, ongoing adoption
relinquishment counseling and parenting classes, that we believe
they need.

The facilities who have these youth should have these services
built in. They shouldn't have to go borrow, beg and steal to have
Lutheran Family Services come in every other week when they
have a person available, if they have a person available. This is a
critical issue.

Next: Interim and post services are needed for juvenile offenders
and their families. Many of these youth are from very troubled
families. As we talked about today, we need services for those fami-
lies.
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An issue that we are seeing, and I've been around about 10 years
now, is the kids that were first coming into the system that were
early teens are now having their own kids who repeat the cycle.

You know, I think that's one of the fundamental issues around
intervention if you talk about cost savings. What is it costing the
State of Nebraska to have 5,000 kids that are so troubled they can't
live with their families? What is that costing our school systems?
What is that costing our correctional systems? We just keep grow-
ing.

Then there are transitional foster and group homes. This map
shows clearly the lack of those serices. We're in dialogue right
now with the Department of Corrections, asking that this be put in
their plan. They are planning to do that, and the Foster Care
Review Board intends on supporting them.

The Youth Development Centers need to be providing services to
our youth, and I think Congressman Barrett was trying to get at
this very appropriately, to help them learn skills to become func-
tional members of our society.

Many of these kids are leaving our system, the child welfare
system, the juvenile justice system, functioning at about a 12-, 13-,
14-year-old level. They don't have a clue and they don't have a sup-
port system. It's the support system that helped all of us get here
today: functioning the way we function, getting through college,
creating our first resumes, taking our drivers' test. These kids
don't have that. As a result, we believe there is a direct correla-
tion. In fact, we did a study on this.

In 1984, the Foster Care Review Board looked at the people who
were incarcerated and determined how many of them actually
came from the system. Fifty-nine percent of the males and 40 per-
cent of the females had spent 3 or more years in court-ordered out-
of-home placements. Legal offenders also reported multiple moves,
ranging from one to 15 moves among the males and one to four
moves among the females.

That sort of goes to the heart of the problems that our boards see
over and over. Because a separate agency tracks children in out-of-
home care, we're able to report that 20 percent of the kids-20 per-
cent-have had six or more placements. We have 1,300 children
who have been in our system 2 years or longer. Because of this
data, we have been able to move some of these agendas in our leg-
islature.

Certainly, the juvenile justice area is a tough area. You know,
the only remark that I would add, I guess, td Peggy Adair, is that
there's much more empathy and sympathy for abused and neglect-
ed kids than delinquent kids.

It's very hard for people to see the connection between abuse and
neglect and some of that obnoxious behavior. I think we need to
have Father Peter give more of his speeches around our States so
people see that correlation.

We see our girls as tramps and our boys as hoods. That's the way
we like to categorize them. Our solution is locking them up, throw-
ing away the key and getting them out of those local communities.
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Somehow, I think with your guidance, we need to turn that
around a little bit and we need to understand where these kids are
coming from. We need to understand how our systems do and don't
function.

That's my testimony. Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Carolyn Stitt follows:]
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THE FOSTER CARE REVIEW BOARD

The Foster Care Review Act

The Nebraska Foster Care Review Act (LB. 714) was passed by the Nebraska
State Legislature in 1982. The Act was passed in response o P.L. 96-272. Federal
legislation which mandated the development of permanency planning and periodic review
of children in foster care, and other problems in the Nebraska foster care system. Actively
supported and lobbied by the Nebraska Foster and Adoptive Parents Association and other
child advocates, the Act established the State Foster Care Review Board and mandated
periodic court reviews of children in foster care.

The Foster Care Review Board is an independent state agency not directly affiliated
with the Court or the Department of Social Services. The agency consists of a State Board
which oversees the agency, staff who facilitate local Foster Care Review Boards in
communities across the State, and a tracking system that tracks all children in out-of-home
care.

The State Board

The State Foster Care Review Board is responsible for governing the agency and
setting policy. The State Board consists of nine members selected by the Governor and
approved by the Legislature. Two members are chosen from each of the three
Congressional Districts. These members serve three-year t,.,ns and are selected on a
staggered basis. Three additional Board members are appoL-ted from the Local Review
Board chairpersons, one from each Congressional District. These members serve two-year
terms.

The responsibilities of the State Board include: the creation and revision of Rules &
Regulations and Policies & Procedures; oversight of the budget, expenses, and agency
requests, the selection, training, and supervision of Local Foster Care Review Boards;
developing and maintaining a tracking system of all children in out-of-home care; and
general oversight of the agency. State Board members also make policy decisions and
approve Annual Report recommendations.
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The State Board meets approximately every other month, usually in Lincoln.
Meetings are open to the public.

The Local Foster Care Review Boards

The local Foster Care Review Boards are composed of citizens from the community
who have completed required training and who volunteer their time each month to serve on
the boards. The boards are responsible for reviewing cases of children placed in out-of-
home care. Specifically, they are required to ascertain whether the children have a
permanency plan and make advisory recommendations to the Court and the agency having
custody of the child.

Local boards are located in Omaha, Bellevue, Lincoln, Tecumseh, Columbus,
Norfolk, Fremont, Grand Island, Hastings, Kearney, North Platte. Scottsbluff, and
Chadron. Because of the number of children in out-of-home care in the community, there
are 12 Local Boards in Omaha and four in Lincoln. During 1990, four additional Local
Boards were activated, bringing the total to 26.

Each Local Board consists of five or more community volunteers who meet
monthly to review cases of children who have been placed in out-of-home care. The
reviews focus on the child's permanency plan, the services being provided to the child
and/or family, and timelines for accomplishment of the plan. The 1990 Legislature
increased the Review Board's responsibilities to include determining if the child's
placement is appropriate and if there is a continued need for the out-of-home placement.

Prior to 1990, a child must have been in out-of-home care 6 months or longer in
order to receive a review by the Foster Care Review Board. In 1990, the Foster Care
Review Act was amended to remove that limitation. As a result, 4 Local Boards. located in
Omaha (2 boards), Lincoln (1 board) and Fremont (I board), were developed to focus on
early reviews.

Once the Board begins reviewing a child's case, e~ery attempt is made to continue
approximately every six months until the child leaves care. The Board also attempts to
review brothers and sisters together.

Recommendations are sent to the court that placed the child in care, the child's
guardian ad litem (attorney), the agency responsible for the child, and the county attorney.
When applicable, recommendations are also sent to the Tribal Court. the child's parole
officer, the probation officer and/or the parents' attorney.

In order to provide maximum input on a child's case, an attempt is made to select
board members from a variety of different occupations and viewpoints. A typical board
might include an educator, a medical professional, an attorney, a mental health person, and
a foster parent Each board meets monthly for approximately 3-4 hours.

Three training sessions are required before a person can be placed on a Local
Board. The training includes (a) the history and role of the Foster Care Review Board, (b)
information on the need for permanency planning, (c) the importance of bonding and
attachment, (d) the ,'fect of separation and loss on children at various ages, (e) how a child
enters the legal system, (f) the roles of the judge, county attorney, guardian ad litem, child-
caring agency, and foster parent. (g) reviewing a case and comparing thereview conducted
by the new board with the recommendation of an existing board, (h) the importance of
confidentiality, and (i) observation of a Local Board meeting.
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During 1990, the Review Board received funding to send notices of board meetings
to interested parties. Procedures were developed to receive input on children's cases
through questionnaires and/or party participation. Local Board members were trained in
conducting reviews with interested parties in attendance during late 1990 and early 1991.

During 1991, 1,642 children were reviewed by the local Foster Care Review
Boards.

The Tracking System

The Foster Care Review Board maintains a computerized tracking system in its
main office in Lincoln. Since it began tracking children in 1983. over 25.000 children have
been reported to the tracking system.

Nebraska's tracking system is the only tracking system in the country that tracks all
children placed in out-of-home care. The Nebraska Foster Care Review Board receives
reports from the Juvenile and County Courts, the Department of Social Services. the
Department of Corrections, the Department of Public Institutions, and private agencies
throughout the State. Nebraska remains the only state that can give a comprehensive
picture of the status of all children in out-of-home care.

Up to 82 pieces of information are kept on children once they come into out-of-
home care. An additional 93 pieces of data is added once the child has been reviewed by
the Review Board. Information on the Review Board's tracking system includes why and
when the child entered care, court dates and results, sibling information, adoption data, and
barriers to the permanency plan. Information on the children is continually updated as
changes occur.

According to the Foster Care Review Act, all courts, child-caring agencies, and
child-placing agencies are to report whenever a child enters foster care. Later, additional
information on the child must be reported, including the reason the child entered care, dates
of court hearings, and the child's permanency plan. The Board is, also notified when the
child leaves the foster care system.

When the Foster Care Review Board reviews a child's case. information from the
review is also entered into the cracking system. Findings are made regarding the following:

a. If there is a permanency plan with services, timeframes, and tasks.
b. If services are in motion.
c. If people responsible for tasks have been identified.
d. If timeframes have been established to accomplish the services.
e. If visitation is occurring.
f. If the Board feels there is a continued need for out-of-home placement.
g. If the current placement is appropriate.
h. If the Board agrees with the plan.

Additional information reported to the tracking system includes the number of
placements the child has experienced, the percent of life the child has spent in out-of-home
care, court dates, the number of caseworkers, types of services being offered to the child
and family, and adoption information.
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As of December 31. 1991, over 29.000 children had been reported to the tracking
system. 5.057 children were active on thatdate.

Data from the tracking system is published annually, along with recommendations
for improvement of the child welfare system, in the Foster Care Review Board's Annual
Report. A 1990 Annual Report is included as pan of this testimony.

The Early Review Project

In 1990. LB 1222 was passed which expanded the duties of the Foster Care
Review Board. In addition to providing Limited legal standing to the Review Board whic4
will be discussed later, this law allowed the Boards to review cases immediately after a
child has been removed from the home rather than after 6 months. It expanded the Board's
access to information which permitted and funded participant reviews rather than paper
reviews. Finally the law mandated that the Boards make a finding on both the
appropriateness of the child's current placement as well as the continued need for
plirn t.

Nebraska was one of five states selected in 1990 to participate in a nationwide Early
Review Project, sponsored by the National Association of Foster Care Reviewers and
funded through the Edna McConnell Clark Foundation. Omaha, Lincoln, and Fremont
were selected as pilot sites.

Early Review Task Forces were formed in each pilot community. A Juvenile or
County Court judge served on each Task Force along with representatives from the
Department of Social Services and the County Attorney's office. Attorneys who serve as
guardians ad litem for foster children and attorneys who represent parents were also on the
Task Forces, as were others who have specific interests in children and children's issues.

The Task Forces were responsible for developing case selection criteria, submitting
names of potential recruits to serve on the Early Review Boards, and for developing a
reasonable efforts criteria to be used during the reviews. Rather than focusing on a
permanency plan, the Early Review Boards focus on reasonable efforts before and since
removal, services in motion, and visitati in.

Three Early Review Boards were established in Omaha, one in Lincoln, and one in
Fremont Board members completed two full days of training in August, 1990 followed
by additional training in October and November. The Omaha and Fremont boards began
conducting reviews in November, the Lincoln board began in December.

Using the training established for the Early Review Boards, the existing Local
Review Boards received training on conducting early reviews and reviews with participants
attending. All boards currently invite participants to attend for at least two of the seven
reviews conducted at the meeting.

Legal Standing

LB. 1222 was passed by the 1990 Legislature and granted the Review Board legal
standing. This allowed the Board's recommendations to be admissible in Juvenile Court
proceedings.
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During 1990. the State Board developed Rules and Regulations governing how and
when legal actions should be considered. A public hearing was held and the revised Rules
and Regulations were submitted for approval.

The Local Boards identify problem cases which might be eligible for legal actions
and bring these cases to the attention of the State Board. The identified cases are then
submitted to the Executive Board of the State Board for review. In most cases, a Local
Board review including participation by interested parties is held, followed by a mediation
session with representatives from the agency responsible for the child and/or the county
attorney's office. This process has proven very successful in moving the cases in the
appropriate direction.

Since legal standing was authorized, the local boards have referred 69 cases to the
State Board for consideration. The Review Board has retained attorneys to represent the
Board in 14 of these cases. The majority of the remaining cases were resolved without
retaining attorneys.

Court Reviews

The Foster Care Review Act requires courts to review the case of a child placed in
foster care after the child has been in care for a year. Subsequent reviews must be held
every six months thereafter until the child leaves care.

Not all children in foster care have court involvement. Many children voluntarily
placed in care by their parent(s) and some children who are free for adoption are in this
category. Many of these children have been placed with private agencies.

Volunteer Hours

The Foster Care Review Board in Nebraska exists due to the time and efforts of its
volunteers. State and Local Board members are unpaid volunteers. State Board
members may receive reimbursement for mileage. Local Board members, many of whom
drive up to 60 miles (one way) to attend meetings, do not receive any compensation.

In addition to attending their regular meetings, State and Local Foster Care Review
Board members attend initial and ongoing training sessions, tour foster care facilities
including group homes and institutions, increase their knowledge at seminars and
conferences, visit with Legislators, and volunteer in the Review Board's office.

The National Association of Foster Care Reviewers

Nebraska is a member of the National Association of Foster Care Reviewers
(NAFCR). The NAFCR was established in 1985 to promote permanent families for
children by assuring that every child in foster care receives independent, timely, and quality
external citizen review.

Carol Stitt, Executive Director of Nebraska's Foster Care Review Board, is a past
president of the National Association.

The National Association is currently involved in an Early Review grant project
sponsored by the Edna McConneli Clark Foundation. This project has been put in place to
review children's cases as soon as possible after they come into care to determine if
reasonable efforts were made to keep the child from coming into care and to assess the
services being provided by the family to have the child returned home. Nebraska was
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selected to join California, Kansas. Michigan, and Florvia in pilot Early Review projects
for 1990.

The National Association hosts an annual conference to assist states in developing
Foster Care Review Boards, to educate judges and agency personnel on the value of
external citizen review, and to help reviewers increase their knowledge of child welfare
issues. Carol Stit has served on the training committees for the past five conferences and
has trained volunteers for Early Review Projects in Kansas, Washington, Florida, and
Alaska.

Additional Review Board Activities

In addition to advocating for children on an individual basis, the Foster Care
Review Board has worked actively for systemic improvements in the child welfare system
through educational and legislative activities.

As a member of the Permanency Planning Task Force, Executive Director Carol
Stitt has served as program chair for guardian ad litem training throughout the state. This
training has included workshos on permanency planning, bonding and attachment, and
child sexual abuse. Ms. Stitt has also been active in bringing training to county attorneys,
county and district court judges, and state senators. A listing of the Foster Care Review
Board's training history is attached.

As a representative of the State Board, Ms. Stitt lobbies and testifies for legislation
affecting children and the foster care system. The Review Board was instrumental in the
passage of bills to obtain funding for additional caseworkers, required training for foster
parents, a special unit in the Attorney General's office to prosecute child abuse cases, and
training for county attorneys. In the 1992 session, the Review Board is supporting
legislation to begin addressing problems in the Youth Development Ceotters (LB 447), to
have county attorneys review cases of children who have been in care 18 months or longer
to determine if termination of parental rights is appropriate (LB 1062), and to create and
provide training for child abuse investigation and treatment teams (LB 1184). The Board is
also supporting pending legislation to provide for an open adoption contract enforceable by
law if all parties agree and to consider a statewide district attorney system

Juvenile Justice Concerns

The Foster Care Review Board reviews youth at the Kearney Youth Development
Center (boys' facilitiy), the Geneva Youth Development Center (girls' facility), and
Juvenile Parole. Based on the reviews, the Review Board has the following juvenile
justice concerns:

I. Inappropriate placements at the Youth Development Centers occur because
of the lack of appropriate facilities in the state for abused and neglected children. A listing
of facilities in Nebraska by county and type is attached.

2. Positive peer culture is used at both Youth Development Centers. This is a
technique that uses group dynamics to influence the behavior of the individual. The
behavior of the individual is discussed by the group and the group determines the
punishment for misbehaving. The Board feels that positive peer culture is inappropriate for
low functioning youth. Many of these youth are learning disabled. These groups also do
not have the background and knowledge to address sexual abuse or drug and alcohol abuse
issues.
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3. Services are needed at the Geneva YDC for pregnant teens. This should
include pre-natal care. adoption/relinquishment counseling, and parenting classes.

4. Interim and post services are n,.eded for juvenile offenders and their
families. Many of thesc youth are from dysfunctional families. Services for the family
should be court-ordered. Family visitation needs to be encourange and supported.

5. Transitional foster and group omes and aftercare services should be
established to assist troubled youth in their return to the home and community.

6. The YDCs need to be providing services to youth to help them learn skills to
become functional members of our socier.
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FCRB Training History

For Guardians ad Litem - through the Permanency Planning Task Force Training
Committee

8/16/85 Guardian ad Litem Training (repeated at several locations)
Bonding and Attachment -Dr. Ann Coyne
Separation and Loss - Dr. Ann Coyne

Adoption Assistance and Child Welfare Act - Linda Lewis

11/14/86 Guardian ad Litem Training
Bonding and Attatchment - Dr. Ann Coyne
Adoption Assistance & Child Welfare Act - Judge Gerald

Rouse
The Role of the Guardian ad Litem -Pamela Govier
Services for Developmentally Disabled Childrea - Eric

Evans
Preparation of Cases - Urban - Roger Lou
Preparation of Cases - Rural - Thomas Sonntag
Preparation of a Child for Court - Regina Makaitis

7/8/88 Guardian ad Litem Training
Dynamics of Incestuous Families - Dr. Robert ten Bensel
Reliability of a Child's Testimony - Dr. Patricia Sullivan
Expert Evidence -Dr. Robert ten Bensel
How to work with Sexually Abusive Families - Child

Guidance
Role of the Guardian ad Litem - Don Bross
Preparing the Child to be a Witness - Don Bross
Lack of Physical Evidence - Don Brass

8/25/89 Guardian ad Litem Training
Overview of Judicial Determination of Reasonable Efforts -

Mark Hardin
Reasonable Efforts Panel
Services to Prevent Foster Placement - Margaret Bitz

8/24/90 Advanced GAL Training
Child Development Issues - Dr. Patricia Sullivan
Legislative Issues Affecting Children - Judge John Icenogle
How Guardians ad Litem can access Services - legal panel

For County Attorneys

1/19/89 County Attorneys Spring Training Seminar
Dynamics of Sexual Abuse - Steve Skulsky
Investigative Stage with the Child - panel
Medical Evidence -Dr. Carolyn Levitt
Child Development Issues - Dr. Patricia Sullivan
Prosecution State -panel

6/6/90 Nebraska Law Enforcement Conference
Child Sexual Abuse -Brian Killacky
Physical Evidence - Dr. Mary Case
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Training History - Page 2

For Judges - through the County Judges Association

10/26/88 Child Sexual Abuse Workshop for Judges
Judicial Overview - Judge Dana Wakefield
Meaning of Physical Evidence - Dr. Donna Rosenberg
The Judicial Challenge in Child Sexual Abuse Cases
Difference between Perpetrators - Child Guidance
Child Development Issues - Dr. Patricia Sullivan
The Reliability of the Child Witness
Expert Witnesses - Judge Dana Wakefield, Dr. Rosenberg

10/16/91 County Judges Fall Meeting
Bonding and Attachment - Dr. Ann Coyne
Foster Care Youth Advisory Board
Children in Need of Special Services - Roberta Stick
Termination of Parental Rights - Roberta Stick & Catherine

Brooks
Psychological Evaluations as part of Predispositional

Investigations - Dr. Patricia Sullivan

For Combined Groups

2/1/90 Symposium on Child Sexual Abuse at Boys Town - judges,
senators, agency personnel, FCRB, and others

Child Development Issues in Court - Dr. Patricia Sullivan
Myths, Realities & Hidden Agendas in Sexual Abuse -

Judge Sol Gothard
The Meaning of Physical Evidence - Dr. Carolyn Levitt

3/21/91 Symposium at State Capitol - judges, senators, staff, FCRB
National Overview of Child Welfare Legislation - Joyce

Strom, Child Welfare League
Legislative Agenda for Children -Dr. Patricia Sullivan
Legislative Panel

7/11/91 How to Recognize, Interview, and Treat Children who have
been Sexually Abused - Chadron and surrounding communities
including court and agency personnel, attorneys, FCRB, and others

Child Development Issues for Sexually Abused Children -
Dr. Patricia Sullivan

Investigating and Interviewing Children in Child Sexual
Abuse cases - Dr. Sullivan

What a Psychological Evaluation should include - Dr.
Sullivan

Special Issues regarding the Handicapped Child - Dr.
Sullivan
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FACILITIES BY COUNTY

Adams County

Emergency Protective Services Shelter
Mid-Nebraska Individual Services

Box Butte County

Nebraska Boys Ranch

Buffalo County

Buffalo County Attention Center
Campus House, Inc.
Richard H. Young Hospital
Youth Development Center--Kearney

Dodge County

Masonic Eastern Star Home for Children

Douglas County

ARCH
Christus House
Douglas County Courthouse Facility
Douglas County Youth Center
ENCOHM
ENCOR
Father Flanagan's Boys Home (Boys Town)
Hyland Group Home
Immanuel Mental Health Center
Methodist Richard Young
Nebraska Children's Home Society
NOVA
Omaha Home for Boys
Saint Joseph's Mental Health Center
Salvation Army Renaissance Center
Uta Halee Girls Village
Youth Emergency Services

Fillmore County

Youth Development Center--Geneva

Gage County

Beatrice State Development Center
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Hamilton County

Boys Town Shelter--Mid Plains

Harlan County

New View School Residence

Hitchcock County

Cornhusker Christian Children's Home
Johnny Walker's Boys Ranch

Holt County

Valley Hospital

Lancaster County

Attention Center for Youth
Auryn House
Cedars Home for Children
Freeway Station
Lincoln Lancaster Dr-ug Projects, Inc.
Lincoln General Hospitals Youth Treatment Services
Lincoln Regional Center
Nebraska Center for Children and Youth (NCCY)
Villa Marie Home and School for Exceptional Children
Women in Community Service Residence (WICS)
Youth Service System Group Homes (YSS)

Boys Group Home
Girls Group Home
Teaching & Learning with Children Program (TLC)

Lincoln County

Lincoln County Juvenile Support Services
Wilcox House

Platte County

Transitional Living Center, Inc.

Scottsbluff County

Eppley Addiction Treatment Center at Regional West
Panhandle Juvenile Detention Center
Panhandle Youth Shelter
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Seward County

Rivendell Psychiatric Center

Wayne County

Wayne County Juvenile Center

York County

Epworth Village
Grace Children's Home
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Facility by type

Acute Psychiatric Facility

Methodist Richard Young
Richard H. Young Hospital
Rivendell Psychiatric Center
Saint Joseph Center for Mental Health

Chemical Dependency

A.R.C.H., Inc.
Christus House
Eppley Addiction Treatment Center at Regional West
Immanuel Mental Health and Addictions Recovery Center
Lincoln General Hosp-Ital (Independence Center)
Lincoln Lancaster Drug Projects
Methodist Richard Young (Dual Diagnostic)
Mid-Nebraska Individual Services
Transitional Living Center, Inc
Valley Hope

Detention Facility

Attention Center for Youth
Buffalo County Attention Center
Douglas County Youth Center
Douglas County Youth Detention Center
Lincoln County Juvenile Support Services
Panhandle Juvenile Detention Center
Wayne County Juvenile Detention Center
Youth Development Center--Geneva
Youth Development Center--Kearney

Emergency Shelter

Boys Town Mid-Plains Shelter
Emergency Protective Services Shelter
Panhandle Youth Shelter
Youth Emergency Services

Group Home--Females

Auryn House
Campus House
Salvation Army Renaissance Center
Uta Halee Girl's Village
Women in Community Service Residence
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Group Home--Females cont.

Youth Service System Girls Group Home
Youth Service System Teaching and Learning with Children

Group Home--Males

Johnny Walker's Boys Ranch
Nebraska Boys Ranch
Omaha Home for Boys
Youth Service System Boys Group Home

Group Home--Males and Females

Cedars Home for Children
Christian Heritage
Cornhusker Christian Children's Home
Father Flanagan's Boys Home
Freeway Station
Grace Children's Home
Hyland Group Home
Masonic Eastern Star Home for Children
Nebraska Center for Children and Youth
Nebraska Children's Home Society
Wilcox House

Mentally and/or Emotionally Handicapped

Beatrice State Development Center
ENCOHM
ENCOR
Epworth Village
Lincoln Regional Center
New View School Residence
Villa Marie Home and School for Exceptional Children
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Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you very much. One of the things
that I've found from the first hearing on and what has given me
concern is that in some places there is no real assessment of what
causes a child to be a runaway and no real look into that child's
home. The judge can simply say that a child must go back to his or
her home and if that child violates that court order then that child
gets put in a lockup someplace. No one wonders why the child
won't stay home.

There are some places that do look into it, but that's the excep-
tion not the rule. What I'd like to see nationally-you mentioned it
here in one of your recommendations--court-ordered family serv-
ices, which would gel the families involved and even in the train-
ing. You do foster parent training.

That is another thing I believe that should be mandated.
Have you carried a law in this State to mandate foster family

and foster parent training?
Mr. BARRETr. No, not to a great extent.
Ms. STIrr. Yes. That bill was passed in 1990 but Congressman

Barrett supported the Foster Care Review Act to have citizen re-
views look at these systems.

There is one other thing that I would like to mention. There's
not only a lack of good assessments of why children run away but
also a lack of good assessments of some of the foster families we
use.

We have some excellent, committed foster families but we also
need to assess who these youth are being placed with.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Well, that is what I am concerned with be-
cause it's become apparent from everything I have heard lately
that there are so many children coming out of foster homes that
are really messed up because the abuse has been worse in the
foster home than it would have been in their own home. We must
do something to make sure that we place these kids in safe,
healthy environments.

There are a lot of dedicated foster parents
Ms. STITr. Yes.
Chairman MARTINEZ. But others do it just for the dollars.
Ms. STI-r. Yes.
Chairman MARTINEZ. And we have no way of evaluating why

someone becomes a foster parent. I don't think we should be put-
ting foster kids in homes where the foster parent is in it only for
the money because there are several things that might result.

One is that if they have any real kids, that foster kid can be
made to feel that they are different and that they are less and that
is obviously going to do something to that foster child's self-worth.
That kind of mental abuse is sometimes worse than physical abuse.

Ms. STIrr. Right.
Chairman MARTINEZ. I think we really have to start thinking.

That's why I was very interested in the idea of mandating foster
parent training because through a training process you can find
out if the parent is going to be able to do a good job as a foster
parent.

Ms. STiTr. People are screened and they also come to understand
the commitment they are taking on, what this may mean for their
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bringing to their family.

I think it is a fair balance.
Chairman MARTINEZ. The problem I have is that foster care is a

State-run, State-controlled situation and it's almost impossible to
pass a national law mandating that every State have foster parent
training. But we must find some incentive to get most or all States
to do this training.

Ms. STrrr. Yes.
Chairman MARTINEZ. So that a State would get extra dollars for

programs if it provided mandated parent training.
Ms. STITr. There is some reimbursement that our State is getting

but one of the critical points I want to make is that it was based on
the data from cases we documented, that we took to the legislature.
It was not the initiative of the Department of Social Services.

That is a real concern that I have. Because these are politically-
driven systems and these kids and families don't have a lot of
clout, oftentimes these kids end up at the bottom of the heap. It is
a matter of priorities and we all know how the system works. That
is why I think it is so important that people like yourselves are ac-
tually seeing the kids, visiting with the kids, and grappling with
this is an enormous problem. It's not a small problem.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Congressman Barrett.
Mr. BARREr. Thank you. I'm a little more familiar with this be-

cause Ms. Stitt and I did do a lot of work early on when I was a
member of the. State legislature, and, Carolyn, I continue to be
amazed at the tracking system that you set up and you now, ac-
cording to your testimony, are tracking over 25,000 kids in the
system?

Ms. STITT. Yes. Since we have started tracking in 1982, over
29,000 children have been tracked.

Mr. BARRETT. Estimate of how many are still falling through the
cracks? Any idea?

Ms. STITr. Well, I think one thing the Act did was tighten that
up by looking at court review, we know where kids are but they
are not getting what they need. I guess that's the best way to
answer that question.

Mr. BARRETT. But you have got them located physically?
Ms. STIr. That's right, and that took some doing. But it is possi-

ble for States who haven't done it, it is possible.
Mr. BARRETT. I notice that you mentioned in your verbal testimo-

ny the lack of prosecution by the local attorneys and you went on
to say that the systems are a fallacy in that line, in that regard.
You had that same problem 2 years ago.

Has any progress at all been made?
Ms. STITT. Well, we did get the mandatory training in the past

for the county attorneys and the one thing again that the Boards
have been able to do is talk about these problems. We are able to
document them and identify them. It's not just a couple hysterical
foster parents, I mean what the system labels hysterical, they
weren't hysterical. The best way to contend with these people is to
say that this is an isolated problem, it's not really an issue.

What we are saying is that it's a statewide problem. Therefore
we have statewide mandatory training. We had a special unit in
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the AG's office. We still believe that it's critical to go to a State DA
system where we have full-time attorneys who have expertise in
this area, know how to and do prosecute these cases, and do pros-
ecute these cases and put our perpetrators in the State on notice.
That is our goal.

Mr. BARRETT. Will that have to be done by statute?
Ms. STITT. Yes.
Mr. BARRETT. Okay, all right. You indicated also that you have

82 pieces of information kept on these kids when they come into
your system and an additional 92 pieces of data is added once the
child has been reviewed?

Ms. STrrr. By a Board, right.
Mr. BARRETT. And so on. You also indicated some concern about

losing foster parents. In testimony in Los Angeles a week or 10
days ago, 2 weeks ago, we had a child say that they would prefer to
be on the street, living on the street, rather than being in a foster
home, and that kid had been kicked around to several foster
homes.

What are we doing here, now to train parents, if anything? Why
are we losing them? What are we doing to continue their services?
What are we doing to weed out the bad apples?

Ms. STITT. Well, this is my opinion, as part of the agency that
oversees the agency that's supposed to be doing these things. That's
why we were put in place.

As I said, we now have mandatory foster parent training. It was
recently reported to me that this, in some areas, consists of people
signing up and then leaving; that is counted as their training. We
are trying to apply some pressure to tighten that up.

Screening of foster parents is very inadequate. We do nothing
like what was testified here today, the matching of a youth's needs
with a family that can address those needs.

Usually what we are doing is looking for beds. Probably the most
fortunate kids in our system end up in the Boys Town treatment,
foster care program or in their group home programs that you vis-
ited; we're not meeting the youth's needs. I don't know how many
times foster parents have called me and said, "I said that I only
wanted a child under five and they brought me a sexually acting-
out 14-year-old girl who smokes, does drugs, is drinking and is sex-
ually active." These people haven't parented kids that age. They
don't have the support system. They don't know how to proceed.

When they call for help they are not getting their calls returned.
They are not getting expense vouchers returned. Some people take
on four or five children. We know that people who come forward to
be foster parents aren't much like any of us sitting around here
today. There are a lot of blue collar people who are trying to reach
out and give something back. Therefore, they need some of that re-
imbursement. Tha;. is not their sole income, don't get me wrong,
but it is hard to take on four kids, even with transportation costs
alone. Many of them don't even come with a sack of clothes, so
that is a main issue. They are not getting timely reimbursements.

Most of all, they are not treated as a part of the team. For exam-
ple, when a child is going home and coming back appearing to be
abused with everything from cigarette burns, cuts, and abrasions,
and they try to call their worker to tell them that, they are seen as
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overly-involved. They are too attached. They are not following their
role of trying to work towards family reunification. Sometimes
people are put in impossible situations.

I worked on a very gruesome case where I had to personally in-
tervene with the Governor. A 21/2-year-old girl was raped. She had
three reconstructive surgeries and the plan for that child was re-
unification.

This is a case where we are burning out foster parents. They look
at an absurd system and Public Law 96-272. When the Congress
said we should look at family preservation, they weren't talking
about mutilating children for life. Foster parents get caught in this
system that doesn't make sense to them. They have these children
around the clock and people don't listen to them. That's the biggest
complaint that I hear from foster parents.

Mr. BARRETT. We are talking about social services as well as-
Ms. STIrr. Right.
Mr. BARRETT. Okay.
Ms. STITT. That is what I am responding to now. This is a social

service abuse/neglect case.
Mr. BARRETT. Yes, okay.
Ms. STITr. And that is where many of our foster parents are. We

don't have funding in our State for many foster parents in our cor-
rectional, juvenile justice system.

Mr. BARRETT. Thank you, Carol.
Ms. STITT. Yes.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you. I think you have probably out-

lined my concerns better than any other witness to this point has.
In many cases they give me a general sense of what's happening
but you have really put it in a nutshell.

I think it is very valuable testimony to us because I think that
somehow through the reauthorization of juvenile justice we have
got to tie in some more mandates to the States in order to ensure
quality services, including the support systems to the foster parents
that you mentioned. One of the things that works at Boys Town is
the crisis intervention team there that responds right away to
problems in the homes and comes over and tries to handle the situ-
ation and cool it down right away. That's support.

Evidently what you are saying is that foster parents, if they
called about even getting reimbursed for something, are not getting
much response or support.

Part of that has to do with the State agency itself, who has the
responsibility, not having the funds.

Ms. STITT. Right. Exactly.
Chairman MAflTINEZ. But we have got to somehow find a way to

provide those funds. I think that is imperative and Father Peter
agreed. You know, you can have all of these great plans in the
world but if you don't have the funding, you might as well forget
them.

Ms. STITT. I think child welfare is an area and that's why I
brought up our prison study; you pay now or you pay later, and I
think all of you understand that very clearly.

I think we just need to explain that to more people.
Chairman MARTINEZ. More people, right.
I appreciate your being here today. Are those for us?

60-786 0 - 92 - 6
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Ms. STIrr. Yes. This is the map that you can have and this is a
copy of our annual report, for each one of your offices, so if there is
any other data you would like to respond to.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Yes. If you are not going to rush off too
quickly, one of my staff members would like to talk to you.

Ms. Srrr. Okay. No, I am not going to rush off.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you.
Our next panel consists of Ms. Jean Lovell and Ms. Susan Roten-

burg.
Let me explain for the audience that Ms. Lovell is from the Ne-

braska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice
from Lincoln, Nebraska, and Ms. Rotenburg is National Coalition
for the Mentally Ill in the Criminal Justice System.

We'll start with you Ms. Lovell.

STATEMENT OF JEAN LOVELL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NEBRAS-
KA COMMISSION ON LAW ENFORCEMENT, LINCOLN, NE; AND
SUSAN ROTENBURG, NATIONAL COALITION FOR THE MENTAL-
LY ILL IN THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM, SEATTLE, WA
Ms. LOVELL. We really appreciate the subcommittee being in Ne-

braska and, as you noted, I am the Executive Director of the Ne-
braska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice,
better known as the Crime Commission in Nebraska. It is the De-
partment of Nebraska's government that is responsible for the ad-
ministration of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Act.

I am here to testify today in favor of the reauthorization of that
Act and to point out the need for mental health services in Nebras-
ka's juvenile justice system.

I am not a mental health professional. I have been director of
the crime commission since July of 1991. Before I was appointed to
that position, I worked for 15 years as a prosecutor in Scottsbluff,
Nebraska, which is in the far western part of the State where Ruth
is from.

I also served for 2 years in that county as a court-appointed at-
torney. It was a public defender's position where my case load was
entirely juveniles.

During the time I was in Scottsbluff County practicing law I was
also a school board member on the Gering, Nebraska school board
for 8 years. I taught elementary school for 3 years in Omaha before
I attended law school so my testimony doesn't come from the basis
of having a lot of knowledge as a mental health professional. It is
based on my experiences as an attorney involved in juvenile issues,
on my experiences as a school board member and on my experi-
ences as a teacher.

Nebraska's participation in the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act, as Ms. Adair told you, began in 1981. At that time
juvenile justice services in Nebraska were very fragmented. Since
Nebraska's participation in the Act, there has been some signifi-
cant legislation that has been passed by the Nebraska unicameral.

The Family Policy Act that was passed in 1987 includes the prin-
ciple that families, especially parents, have the primary responsi-
bility for the care of their children. The Act emphasizes that sys-
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teams serving children have a responsibility to support, not sup-
plant, families in meeting the needs of Nebraska's youth.

In 1989 Congressman Barrett, who was then a member of Ne-
braska's legislature, was one of the sponsors of the Juvenile Serv-
ices Act. That Act appropriated money for the use of local commu-
nities to address the lack of alternatives to the incarceration of ju-
veniles. That Act is intended to work hand in hand with the man-
dates of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act.

Last week the legislature passed a final reading, L.B. 447. This
legislation, sponsored by Senator David Bernard-Stevens, will
create a Youth Services Planning Commission whose function will
be to provide a State juvenile services implementation plan for the
delivery of comprehensive programs for juveniles.

Governor Nelson has supported this legislation as a way to carry
out his directive to State agencies to cooperate and collaborate, to
seek ways to help the State meet its needs through community-
based solutions.

In many parts of Nebraska an array of services for youth are not
available and that is one of our biggest problems. It often would be
better if they could stay in their homes or their home communities,
but in most cases it's necessary to remove youth from their homes
in order to give them access to appropriate mental health services.

I have attached to my written testimony a copy of the executive
summary of a recent Adolescent and Mental Health Services
System Plan that was developed by the Nebraska Department of
Public Institutions.

This plan indicates that Nebraska should have a comprehensive
array of mental health services to youth. It should include outpa-
tient treatment, day treatment, home based services, therapeutic
foster care, therapeutic group homes, residential treatment, and in-
patient hospitalization. This same report indicates that home based
services, day treatment and therapeutic foster care, along with
therapeutic 6-roup homes, are lacking in most parts of the State.

Nebraska is divided into six mental health regions. I have at-
tached a map of Nebraska showing these regions and a chart that
shows the availability of each of the services that I have outlined
in each region. If you look at that chart and map, you can tell, for
example, that there is only one region in the State that has thera-
peutic foster care or therapeutic group home services.

Nebraska has a critical need for services to youth with severe
mental disorders. The Department of Social Services and the De-
artment of Public Institutions are right now evaluating the feasi-
ility of merging their services to high risk, severely emotionally

disturbed children. In many cases we have to send these children
outside of the State to find proper treatment or appropriate treat-
ment.

Senator Jessie Rasmussen from Omaha sponsored a legislative
bill last year that established a task force to develop a State plan
to address the needs of children with disabilities. That task force is
presently meeting and developing recommendations.

You asked how Nebraska could continue to participate in the Ju-
venile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act when we don't have
laws, for instance, that prohibit the incarceration of children under
18. I have attached to my written testimony, the last two pages, a
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history of the progress that we have made in Nebraska in remov-
ing children from jail. We are actually in compliance with that Act
for the first time since our participation.

Although we don't have laws that address all of the mandates of
the Act, we have been able to, through education of sheriffs and
working with our judges, achieve voluntary compliance. Without
that Act, I can assure you that we wouldn't be there. The Act is
necessary not only for the money that is appropriated but because
of the mandates. Although we haven't addressed all of the man-
dates of that Act through legislation, we have reached compliance
with the Act.

Last year we were still not in compliance with the jail removal
initiatives and we had to devote all of the money that came into
the State through the Act to jail removal initiatives. We recently
completed a report indicating that we are in full compliance and
now we'll be able to use that funding in different areas.

You pointed out that we're one of the States that received the
minimum amount of funding. I can assure you that a little over
$300,000 doesn't go very far to meet the needs of a State like this,
especially the geographic area that we are talking about. But the
mandates of the Act are really important and even that small
amount of money is enough to, in some cases, give people the in-
centive to come up with a community-based solution and to help
them develop solutions that are going to approach or begin to ad-
dress some of the needs of the youth in Nebraska.

[The prepared statement of Jean Lovell follows:]
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HEARING ON REAUTHORIZATION OF THE /
JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION ACT

Grand Island, Nebraska
Monday, March 30, 1992

Members of the Committee, my name is Jean Lovell and I am the Executive
Director of the Nebraska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice.
That agency, better known as the Crime Commission, is the department of
Nebraska state government that is responsible for the administration of the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act (JJDP). I am here to testify
today in favor of the reauthorization of that Act and to point out the need
for mental health services in Nebraska's Juvenile justice system.

I am not a mental health professional. I have been serving as the
Executive Director of the Crime Commission since July of 1991. Before I was
appointed to that position, I worked for .lfteen years as a prosecutor in
Scotts Bluff County Nebraska in the far western part of the state. I also
served for approximately two years as a court appointed attorney in Scotts
Bluff County with a case load that was exclusively made up of juveniles.
During the time I practiced law in Scotts Bluff County, I served for eight
years as a member of the Gering, Nebraska School Board. I also taught -

elementary school for three years in Omaha before attending law school. My
comments today on the mental health needs of rural youth are based on my
experiences as an attorney involved in juvenile issues, as a teacher, and as a
school board member.

Nebraska's participation in the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act began in 1981. At that time, services in the juvenile justice
area in Nebraska were fragmented. Since Nebraska's participation in the Act,
some significant legislation has been passed by the Nebraska Unicameral. The
Family Policy Act passed in 1987 includes the principle that families,
specially parents, have the primary responsibility for the care of their
children. That Act emphasizes that systems serving children have a
responsibility to support not supplant families in meeting needs of Nebraska's
youth. In 1989, Congressman Barrett, who was then a member of Nebraska's
Legislature, was one of the sponsors of Juvenile Services Act, an Act that
appropriated money for the use of local communities to address the lack of
available alternatives to the incarceration of juveniles. Last week the -
Legislature passed to final readin 9 LB 447, legislation sponsored by Senator
David Bernard-Stevens which will create a youth services planning commission
whose function will be to provide a state juvenile services implementation
plan for the delivery of comprehensive programs for juveniles. Governor
Nelson has supported this legislation as a way to carry out his directive to
state agencies to cooperate and collaborate in seeking ways to meet the
state's needs through community based solutions.

In many parts of the state, an array of services for youth is not
available. It is often the case that youth would be better served in their
communities, but it is frequently necessary for youth to leave their home in
order to access appropriate mental health services. I have attached the
Executive Summary of a recent Adolescent and Mental Health Services System
Plan developed by the Nebraska Department of Public Institutions (Attachment
#1). The plan indicates that there should be a comprehensive array of mental
health services for youth that includes out-patient treatment, day treatment,
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home-based services, therapeutic foster care, therapeutic group homes,
residential treatment, and in-patient hospitalization. That same report shows
that home-based services, day treatment, therapeutic foster care and
therapeutic group homes are lacking in most parts of the state. Nebraska is
divided into six mental health regions. I have attached a map showing those
regions and charts showing the availability of these services in each region
(Attachment #2). For example, only one region in the state has therapeutic
foster care or therapeutic group home services. Nebraska also has a critical
need for services to yojth with severe emotional disorders. The Department of
Social Services and the Department of Public Institutions are now evaluating
the feasibility of merging their services to the high risk severely
emotionally disturbed population. Senator Jessie Rasmussen sponsored a
legislative bill in 1991 that established a task force to develop a state plan
to address the needs of children with disabilities.

Because of the JJDP Act, Nebraska has made substantial progress in
removing children from jail and in the deinstitutionalization of status
offenders. I have also attached a history of Nebraska's jail removal
initiatives (Attachment #3). The state has not however been able to
adequately address the needs of these youth and to provide appropriate
alternative placements and/or treatment to them. The reauthorization of the
Act is essential if the issues facing our youth are to be kept in the
forefront.
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Child and Adolescent Mental HpAlth
Services System Plan

Executive Summary

The policy direction of the Department is guided by the principle that
families, specifically parents, have the primary responsibility for the care
of their children with emotional disturb#nces. The mental health and other
child serving systems have a responsibility to support not supplant families
in seating their own needs and involve youth and their families In treatment
decision-making. The preferred mental health responses are interventions
that take place within a family context. It is also the Department's -
position that youth have interests and rights separate from their parents and
families and that the "best interest of the child" Is paramount in
determining appropriate Interventions. The mental hAalth system has a
responsibility to safeguard these rights arid to ensure that the safety of a
youth Is never compromised

Prevention is of critical importance in the system of care for Nebraska's
youth. Prevention services are particularly attractive for their potential
to reduce (1) the pain and suffering associated with emotional disturbance,
(2) the resources required to treat emotional disturbance, and (3) the social
costs of mental disorders. Furthermore, ther* is a growing body of research
showing the efficacy of prevention in school, family, and medical settings.
Prevention of emotional disturbance should he provided as part of a broader
public health/public education prevention effort. In regard to both preven-
tion and early Identification and intervention, the preferred option is
generic services (i.e., services other than ipecialized mental health
services) where the needs of youth with emotional disturbances can be
addressed in their natural environments (e.&., schools, churches, medical
facilities) and Integrated with structures and approaches designed to meet
their other needs.

For youth who require more Intensive services than generic programs can
provide, there should be a comprehensive array of mental health treatment
services. At a minimum this service array Shnild include the following types
of services:

- Outpatient Treatment
- Day Treatment
- Home-Dased Services
- Therapeutic Foster Care

Residential Treatment
Inpatient Hospitalization

Of these services, home-based services, day treatment, and therapeutic foster
care are the most lacking and the most needed in the State and are a priority
for service development. The most appropriate model for these services Is an
integrated model where the mental health, educational, and social service
needs of youth are addressed simultaneously in a comprehensive manner. The
Department will seek to increase the capacity of these services and to ensure
that the mental health system has the necessary expertise to deliver quality
services.
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Whenever possible, services in the array should be provided at the community
level and reflect local circumstances. It should ho the responsibility of
regional governing boards and advisory committees to work vith local service
agencies in other systems to implement the Family Policy AcC and its mental
health Implications at the local level. To assist In these responsibilities,
the Department Is committed to developing mental health expertise In each
region in order to provide technical assistance to other-systems, coordinate
services among systems, and plan for the needs of each region's children. It
is also important that youth with emotionsi disturbances have access to case
management services to ensure an appropriate and coordinated response.

The roles and responsibilities Issues surrounding youth emotional
disturbances (e.g., Who should ensure thnt the mental health needs of youth
are met? Who should pay for these services? Who should coordinrAt,
regulate, and plan?) are difficult and complex, and there appears to be
little consensus shout how these Issues should be resolved. Tho Department
believes it is ultimately in the best interest of Nebraska's children and
families to have these roles and responsibilities Issues resolved for all
child-serving systems, not just mental health. The Department proposes to
work with other agencies to develop a system that cart best address the needs
of Nebraska's youth.

To assist in the process of designing a workehle structure that erasures
accountability, responsiveness, continuity, and irpArtiality, tine Department
proposes a number of system specifications to help in the design of a
workable structure. Vhile these specifications do not identify who should
have the responsibilities for funding, case management, service provision,
planning, and quality assurance, they do provide Sidelines for deternining
the functions and relationships among these system components.

1. The system should have a fixed point of authority and responsibility for
ensuring service accessibility.

A. This entity should have the authority and responsibility for
managing all relevant financial resources.

B. This entity should have the authority and responsibility for
planning for the use of publ!c resources.

C. This entity should have the authority and responsibility for
ensuring that youth receive appropriate services and facilitating
effective linkages among service systems.

This specification seeks to establish clear accountability in the system
to prevent children and families from falling through the cracks between
services and systems. It is also impor ant to give the responsible
entity the authority and means of fulfilling its responsibilities.

2. The system should contain a flexible funding mechanism such that, to the
greatest extent possible, dollars follow clients across services end
service providers. This specification recognizes that clients should be
able to obtain and change services in accordance with their needs. This
facilitates continuity of service delivery.
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S. There should be a single access point into the more comprehensive and
intensive services in the system that applies uniform eligibility
criteria. This specification recognizes the importance for youth and
their families to know where to go to get services.

4- Case management services should ensure family participation In decision
making. Case management is designed to ei1euro that client needs are
appropriately assessed, that resources or* obtained to address those
needs, and that clients do not become lost in the service delivery
system. It is important that case mensgement smipport, not supplant the
responsibilities of the family.

S. The system should be administratively structureA to eliminAte inherent
conflicts of interest.

A. The funding and case management functions should be separate from
service provision.

2. The quality accountability function should be separate from the
funding function.

C. The quality accountability function should be separate from service
provision.

These checks and balances are designed to ensure that the system is
responsive primarily to youth and family needs.

In summary, the Plan briefly examines the nature of emotional disturbance in
youth and proposes three broad-based Initiatives to improve tho way in which
the State responds to youth with emotional disturbances. First, the mental
health response will be based on the Family Policy Act and adopt the princi-
ple that families, particularly parents, have the primary responsibility for
the care of their children with emotional disturbances. What is meant by
primary responsibility is that parents should retain custody of their
children unless the physical safety of the child is threatened and that
parents should maintain financial responsibility for services Sn accordance
with their ability to pty. Families are also expected to participate in the
treatment planning and treatment of children with emotional disturbances..

Second, the Department will promote the availability of a complete array of
mental health services and develop mental health expertise in each mental
health region. Targeted services include home-based services, day treatment,
and therapeutic foster care. As part of the service development process,
there will be a monitoring and evaluation component that provides information
on the efficacy of these services. This ongoing evaluation will provide a
data bass that will help the system make more Informed decisions about the
types of services needed in the future. The Department will work with the
mental health regions to develop mental health expertise in each region to
provide technical assistance to other service systems, to coordinate services
amons systems, and to assist in planning for the mental health needs of each
region's children. The Department will also support the development of child
and adolescent mental health human resources. Priority would be given to
developing in-service education/training programs designed to increase the
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expertise of the public mental health wnrkforce in the area of child and
adolescent mental health assessment and treatment.

Third, the Department will work through the Interagency Collaboration/
Coordination Team to resolve the major roles Ard responsibilIties issues and
design a system that will best address the needs of Nebraska's youth and
their families. These Issues include who should be responsible for case
management, funding, planning, quality accountability, and service
provision. The Department proposes development of a system that ensures
accountability, responsiveness, continuity, end impartiality.

The following oails #re sat forth for all thoxv in Nebraska concerned about
the esmotional well being of children, adolescents, and their families. Other
relevant state and local agencies and organInntlons as well as private sector
providers are encouraeSd to adopt these geals and develop their own specific
objectives for implementation. The objectives included under eah of thsea
goals reflect the step the Department of Public Institutions' intends to
take in addressing the mental health needs of Nebraska children, adolescents,
and their families. The Department believes these actions will significantly
strengthen the mental health system's CpACity to respond to children with
severe emotional disturbances and their families.

In a number of coses where interagency collaboration is required to address a
particular goal, objectives are written which reflect the Department's role
as a member of the Intsragency Collaboration/Coordinntion Team (ICCT). This
team is composed of representatives of the Department of Public Institutions,
Department of Education, Department of Health, Department of Correctional
services, Department of Social Services, mnd the Court Administrators Office
and is charged with developing approech'a to interagency coordination and
collaboration.

GOAL I! Thle sirylcts provIded through th1_p1Lbkt mental health syst 11
be suidad by the Nebraska Family Policy A;; jnd oprstelyreUA? L.o9
youth fad their families.

Objective 1.1. The Department of Public Institutions, in collaboration with
the Interagency Collaboration/Coordination Team, will develop and implement a
bill of rights regarding the unique mental health treatment of youths and
their families.

Objective 1.2. All mental health programs funded by the Department of Public
Institutions that serve children end adolescets will have policies and
procedures to ensure that families of youth with emotional disturbances are
actively involved in treatment planning and have the qkllls necessary to
support and maintain treatment goals.

Objective 1.3. The Department of Public institutions will propose to the
Interagency Collaboration/Coordination Team that it conduct a study regarding
geographic, financial, and social accessibility and acceptability of services
for all Nebraska families (natural, adoptive, and potential adoptive) and
youths.

GOAL II: Nebraska will have a comprehensive Mid coordinated prray. n
uorviggs and appropriate expertise to meet the me.L.l health ne.g L.df
children and adolescents with emotional disturbanc.s and.their..famlies.
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Objective 2.1. The Department of Public Instltutionn will make available
community mental health grants for the development of the following
integrated program%: home-based services, dmy treatment, and therapeutic
foster care.

Objective 2.2. The Department of Public Institutions' Management of federal
and State mental health prevention and treatment resources/services for
children snd adolescents will be gialded by the target population priorities
listed in Appendix D.

Objective 2.3. The Department of Public Tnstitutions will develop standards
for program evaluation to be included in all new program development
proposals for youth mental health services.

Objective 2.4. The Department of Public InstJtutions will complete a study
of the mission, role, and operation of the Lincoln Regional Center Adolescent
Care Unit and issue recommendations for 4ny necessary changes In laws.
procedures, or functions.

Objective 2.5. The Department of Public Institutions will develop a plan for
preservice and In-service educatIon/training programs designed to increase
the expertise of. the public mental health workforce Jn the areAs of child and
adolescent mental health assessment and treatment.

Objective 2.6. Each mental health region will have the equivalent of one
full-time youth mental health specialist to plan for the mentAl health needs
of the region's youth, coordinate services among systems, develop service
capacity, and provide program consultation, technical assistance, and
training to other systems and agencies.

Objective 2.7. Each mental health region's advisory committee (as mandated
by LB 433, 1986; codified in eb. Rev. Stat. 71-5001 et seq.) will
assume responsibility for working with local, private, and public entities to
develop strategies for meeting the needs of the region's youths with
emotional disturbances, and these strategies will be submitted to the
Department of Public Institutions as part ef a separate youth section in the
region's planning documents.

Objective 2.8. The Department of Public Institutions will develop policies
and procedures that require local mental health service providers to
collaborate with other local agencies as a condition for funding integrated
service programs.

GOAL III: The State response to youth and families j.ll be determined by
clearly defined toleo gnd responsibilities amo chil. 4.. erv nM entities.

Objective 3.1. The Department of Public Institutions will propose to the
Interagency Collaboration/Coordination Team that it develop a plan for
resolving the roles and responsibilities issues by using the system
specifications set forth in Chapter 5 of this Plan as guidelines.

Objective 3.2. The Department of Public Institutions will propose to the
Interagency Collaboration/Coordination Team a proposal for developing
mechanisms and structures to facilitate Communty-hAeed service development.
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Objective 3.3. The Department of Public Inxtititios will prop(,- to the
Interagency Collaboration/Coordtnatton Tiam thnt it develop a nub .-system
ease management mechanism.

Objective 3.4. The Department of Public IrnstiLutions will propose to the
Interagency Collaboration/Coordination Team a plan for integrating mental
health expertise into a-broader training progrs for youth and family
professionals.

Objective 3.5. The Department of Public Institutions will propose that the
Interagency Collaboration/Coordinatton Team develop a statewide generic
approach to prevention and early intervention service- for youth and their
families.
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ThJIZ 13
TAuLE iREION I

Caopalsoa of Existia
Youth Mental Health Capacity
To Model Balanced Capacity

Current Current
Public Total

Capecitw C66citWin4 of Shrvic2

Inpatient/Residential
Treataent Center

Therapeutic Foter Cars/
Therapeutic Group Home

Total Residential

Home-Baed, Services

Day Treatment

Outpatient

Differences
Between Current

model and
CapacitT Model Capacit-T

0 beds 0 beds 6 beds

0 beds

0 bAs

4 slots

7 slots

124 slots

0 beds

0 beds

10 slots

7 slots

258 slots

24 beds

30 beds

60 slots

60 slots

240 slots

-6 beds

-24 beds

-30 beds

-50 slots

-33 slots

+18 slots

TALE 16
X&GION I I

Comparison of Existins
Youth Mentel Health Capacity
To Model balanced Capacity

lnpatient/Residentlal
Treatment Center

Therapeutic Foster Cars/
Therapeutic Group Home

Total Residential

Home-Based Services

Day Tratment

Outpatient

Differences
Current Current Between Current Percent
Public Total odal and of Need
Cascity tascity Capacite Nod*l Caocitv "

0 beds 0 beds 6 beds -6 bode 01

0 beds

0 beds

4 slot.

0 slots

31 slots

0 beds

0 beds

17 slots

0 slots

106 slots

24 beds

30 beds

60 slots

60 a lots

240 slots

-24 beds

-30 bes

-43 slots

-60 slots

-134 slots

Percent
of Need

01

0%

0

171

2%

108%



148

TABLE 17
2=G0K III

Comparison of Existing
Youth Mental Health Capacity
To Model Balanced Capacity

Current Current
Public Total

CaoacAtw Canscit,Twe of Servi¢c

Inpatient/Residential
Treatment Center

Therapeutic Foster Cars/
Therapeutic Group Home

Total Residential

Rome-Darned Services

Day Treatment

Outpatient

Differences
Between Current

model and
Capacity Maol Capacity

0 beds 18 beds 12 beds

beds

beds

slots

slots

slots

6 beds

24 beds

11 slots

0 slots

415 slots

45 beds

60 beds

120 slots

120 slots

480 slots

-42

-36

"109

-120

-65

beds

beds

slots

slots

slots

TABLE 1e
REGION IV

Comparison of Existing
Youth Mental Health Capacity
To Model Balanced Capacity

Type of Service

- Inpatient/Residential
Treatment Center

Therapeutic Foster Care/
Therapeutic Group Home

Total Residential

Rose-Based Services

Day Treatment

Outpatient

Current Current
Public Total

Capacity Capacity

Differences
Between Current

Model and
Capacity Model Capacity

0 beds 0 beds 13 beds

0 beds

0 beds

4 slots

0 slots

)31 slots

0 beds

0 beds

4 slots

0 slots

273 sloLs

52 beds

65 beds

130 slots

130 slots

520 slots

-13 beds

-52 beds

-65 4eds

-1a6 slots

-13n. slots

-247 slots

+6 beds

Percent
of Need
11P-I

! 50%

1 3%

9%

0%

94%

Percent
of Need

Met

0%

0%

3%

0%

S3%



Type of Servic

.Inpatient/Residential
Treatment Center

Therapeutic Foster Care/
Therapeutic Group Home

Total Residential

Home-Based Services

Da? Treatent

Outpatient

149

TABLE 19
2GI6N V

Comparison of existing
Touth Mental Health Capacity
To Model Balanced Capacity

Differences
Current Current Betweem Current Percent
Public Total Model and of Need

Capacity Capacity Capacity Model Caopcity Net

106 beds 205 beds 18 beds +187 beds 1,.139%

beds

beds

slots

slots

slots

64 beds

269 beds

35 slots

17 slots

671 slots

beds

beds

slots

slots

slots

-8 beds

+179 beds

-145 slots

-163 slots

-49 slots

89%

299%

19%

9%

93%

TABLI 20
2E0ION VI

Comparison of ExistinS
Youth Mental Health Capacity
To Model Balanced Capacity

TTye of Service

Inpatient/Residential
Treatment Center

Therapeutic Foster Care/
Therapeutic Group Home

Total Residential

Rome-Based Services

Day Treatment

Outpatient

Current Current
Public Total

Capacity Capacity

Differences
Between Current
Modoeel and

Capacity Model Capacity

0 beds 408 beds 33 beds +375 beds 1,236%

26 beds

26 beds

16 slots

65 slots

155 slots

34 beds

442 beds

29 slots

96 slots

323 slots

132 beds

165 beds

330 slots

330 slots

1,320 slots

-98 beds

+277 beds

-301 slots

-234 slots

-997 slots

Percent
of Need

Met

26%

268%

9%

29%

24%
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A7IAENT #3

Nebraska's Compllance Efforts
with Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act's

Jail Removal Provisions

The State of Nebraska has participated in the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention (JJDP) Act since 1981. The JJDP Act provides that
juveniles not be confined in jails and lock-ups with incarcerated adults and
requires that states participating in the formula grant program to take steps
to ensure the removal of Juveniles from such facilities. The following table
shows the number of violations of the Jail removal provision reported by
Nebraska in each of its monitoring reports* submitted to the Office of
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (OJJDP) since 1982.

Reported Jail Removal Violations

1982 3566 - baseline
1983 2807
1984 2006
1985 2106
1986 1126
1987 825
1988 556 - Jail Removal Initiative
1989 296
1990 242
1991 38 - Full Compliance with

De Minimis Exception

Although approximately $1.5 million of formula grant funds had been
expended through 1987 for a variety of grant projects including those
providing alternatives to confinement, little progress was made in reducing
the number of juvenile jail removal violations.

In 1988. Nebraska was one of twenty-one states receiving special
emphasis funds to support a jail removal initiative. This initiative was a
concerted effort to bring Nebraska into compliance with the Jail Removal
'ovision of the JJDP Act. Some of the key efforts involved:

o Providing information to jail officials, other criminal justice
officials, county boards, executive and legislative branches of state
government, and the public regarding the requirements of the Act, its
purpose, and available alternatives.

o Establishment of an executive order signed by the Governor providing for
the state's "unequivocal commitment to jail removal compliance" (signed
by Governor Orr in July, 1988 and reaffirmed by Governor Nelson in
1991). The order also called upon state agency cooperation in
compliance efforts.

*The monitoring reports are submitted annually. Some of the reports are based
upon a six month sampling of Juvenile admissions. These were doubled to
provide a full year projection.
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o Development of legislation to bring about changes In state law to make
it consistent with JJDP Act requirements.

o Hiring a Jail Removal Coordinator to coordinate all Jail removal
Initiative activities and to specifically work with local officials in
establishing Jail removal policies within their respective
jurisdictions.

o Targeting of formula grant funds for projects having the most impact on
Jail removal within the state. Subgrantees agreed to comply with Jail
removal provisions as a condition of receiving the federal funds.

The figures In the table show substantial progress since the 1988 Jail
removal Initiative. Although several key changes in state law have not yet
been enacted, local officials have altered their policies and practices to
such an extent as to finally bring Nebraska into full compliance based upon
its 1991 monitoring report. A change in the handling of juveniles at the
Omaha Police lock-up in 1991 resulted In a substantial reduction in the number
of violations in that year.

Nebraska's involvement in the JJDP Act and the changes which have come
about despite the lack of changes in state law clearly shows an interest on
the part of local officials about the treatment of troubled youth and the
recognition that fundamental changes In policy and practices were/are required
to better address their needs.

The JJDP Act has been the catalyst for change in Nebraska. Although not
all have agreed with some of its provisions over the years, it has stimulated
the kind of discussions and actions needed to call attention to the plight of
our youth. Its reauthorization is essential if the issues facing our youth
are to be kept in the forefront.
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Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you. I am glad you pointed that out
because that was a mystery to me but I do remember too that in
the Act it allowed for good faith effort towards those compliances.

Ms. LOVELL. Right, and we are in full compliance right now, as of
just about a week ago. We got notification of that but it's been a
long haul.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you. Ms. Rotenburg.
Ms. ROTENBURG. Thank you. Mr. Chairman and members of the

committee, I would like to introduce myself to you. I am Susan Ro-
tenburg, president of the National Coalition for the Mentally Ill in
the Criminal Just. -e System. Currently, the Coalition is involved in
a national project focused on the mental health needs of youth in
the juvenile justice system. I would like to add that we are develop-
ing a monograph right now that will be available in May and is
addressing the mental health needs of this group.

Out of the many national associations that are involved with the
National Coalition, I think that it's really important for me to
mention here today that our largest constituency groups are made
up of parents. For example, the National Alliance for the Mentally
Ill, which I know, Congressman Martinez is very active in Califor-
nia, and also the National Federation of Families.

I am very glad to be here as a specialist on these issues concern-
ing youth offenders. I would like to mention my background. I have
been a CPS worker. I have been a guard in the Atlydum. I have
been an adult probation officer. I have run a mental health treat-
ment program in a prison in Washington state and, of course, cur-
rently very active with the National Ccalition. I also have a Wash-
ington State organization, Community Action for the Mentally Ill
Offender, with which I am involved.

However, my greatest experience is from my child, who was men-
tally ill at the age of eight but is not a mentally ill adult. The most
important thing I can say here is that, like cancer, you cannot wait
or search for a single cure or treatment, or this population group is
likewise doomed. We cannot approach the problems of youth who
are seriously emotionally disturbed and mentally ill by asking
someone in a lobby of a general hospital, "What would cure all
these patients?"

In approaching the reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Act, I encourage you to consider that there needs to
be a proposition with a clear directive amendment ir, the Act for
discarded children, the seriously emotionally disturbeci and mental-
ly ill.

These children cross over systems and are included with children
in the Juvenile Justice and Prevention Act who are delinquent,
runaways, homeless, missing children, victims of child abuse and
alcohol and drug users. Fundamental to creating a proposition with
a clear directive amendment to the Juvenile Justice and Preven-
tion Act must be a shared goal to give these youth the treatment
that is so important.

There are youth in the juvenile justice system who require
mental health services. The existing State studies for this group
show that mental disorders are much higher for them in compari-
son to the general population of youth. National data suggests that
a significant portion of those residing in juvenile justice facilities,



153

100,000 youth, and more than one million youths involved in the
juvenile justice system through contact with probation or juvenile
courts, may require mental health services. Research findings sug-
gest that half of the youth identified as mentally ill are also sub-
stance abusers and the rate of drug use amongst youth placed in
juvenile facilities may be three times higher than in the general
population group.

Between seven and nine million children in the general popula-
tion group have serious emotional problems. Seventy to 80 percent
of these receive no appropriate mental health services. It has been
suggested and it is suggested for many youths in the juvenile jus-
tice system. This has become the treatment center of last resort.
Research has also indicated that minorities have different, some-
times ambiguous, cultural expectations.

As a Nation we need to talk about the issues concerning the seri-
ously emotionally disturbed and mentally ill youth. Delinquency is
an issue of public concern. This issue needs to become an issue of
public interest. Youth who are seriously and emotionally disturbed
in the juvenile justice system are children -who receive massive
amounts of public sector resources and are among the severely dis-
turbed members of the community.

Community-based mental health services for these and other
groups of multi-problem children who receive public sector re-
sources have typically been absent, limited in scope or inappropri-
ate. In most places in the country there are no coordinated State
rights systems to facilitate development of interagency services
that monitor the effect of services. As a result, this high-risk and
costly population of seriously disturbed, mentally ill, and troubled
children receive protection, supervision and education, but little or
no mental health treatment. This would be analogous to a diabetic
child receiving the same services without insulin.

To deal comprehensively with the problems addressing the
mental health needs of youth in the juvenile justice system, the re-
authorization of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Act must take the lead. It should provide the necessary resources
to fund demonstration projects and evaluations of such projects,
convene conferences to provide technical assistance for communi-
ties, develop services for family preservation, and allocate research
to identify the prevalence of mental health and other mental
health problems of co-morbidity, or the mental illness related to al-
cohol and drugs.

I encourage you to encourage leadership amongst the States and
develop coordination to assure the following principles. Resources
of the juvenile justice, mental health, substance abuse, education
and other systems must be developed and integrated to assure that
children with severe emotional disturbance or mental illness are
identified, assessed and appropriately treated. No children or ado-
lescents should be placed or detained in a juvenile detention facili-
ty, correctional facility or any unduly restrictive care facility due
to a lack of appropriate services for mental illness or severe emo-
tional disturbances. Every child or adolescent in or diverted from
the juvenile justice system with serious emotional disturbances or
mental illness should receive all needed mental health services
wherever they reside. Every child or adolescent suffering from
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mental illness or serious emotional disturbances whose offenses are
directly related to that condition should be treated in a manner
and setting appropriate to his or her condition. The police should
never have to charge a child in order for the youth to get the
mental health services.

By ignoring the needs of these offenders we are not preserving
the integrity of the juvenile justice system. The net result is that
we will be contributing to a system in which more children are
being harmed by what is designed to protect them. In the 1990's,
increased numbers of children with more complex problems will be
at a far greater cost and in a completely unprepared children's
system. These children will be in the juvenile justice system, on the
streets, or on the welfare rolls.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Susan Rotenburg follows:]

STATEMENT OF SUSAN ROTENBURG, NATIONAL COALITION FOR THE MENTALLY ILL IN
THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM, SEATrLZ, WA

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee on Education and Labor Subcommittee
on Human Resources:

I would like to introduce myself. I am Susan Rotenburg, President of the National
Coalition for the Mentally Ill in the Criminal Justice System. Currently, the Coali-
tion is involved in a national project focused on the mental health needs of youth in
the juvenile justice system. We are developing a monograph that will become the
state-of-the-art in literature for this population group and completed in May 1992. I
am very glad to be here as a specialist on these issues around youth offenders, how-
ever, my greatest experience is from my child who was mentally ill at the age of 8
years and is now an adult who is mentally ill. The most important thing I can say
here is like cancer you cannot wait for a cure or search for a "single cure," or treat-
ment for this group is likewise doomed. We cannot approach the problems of youth
who are seriously emotionally disturbed and mentally ill like a person standing in a
lobby of a general hospital and asking the question, "What would cure all these pa-
tients," as illustrative of this approach with mentally ill delinquents.

In approaching the reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Pre-
vention Act, I encourage you to consider that there needs to be a proposition with a
clear directive amendment in the Act for Discarded C_,hildren, the seriously emotion-
ally disturbed and mentally ill. These children cross over systems and are included
with the children in the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, that are
delinquent, runaways, homeless, missing children, victims of child abuse, and who
are alcohol and drug users.

Fundamental to creating a proposition with a clear directive amendment in the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act must be a shared "goal" to give
these youth treatment is so important. Youths in the juvenile justice system who
require mental health services, existing State studies suggest the development of
mental disorders is much higher for this group than the general population of
youths. National data suggests that a significant proportion of 100,000 youths resid-
ing in juvenile justice facilities and more than 1 million youths involved with the
juvenile justice system through contact with probation or juvenile courts may re-
quire mental health service and reports to grow. Research findings suggest half of
these youths identified as mentally ill are also substance abusers and that the rate
of drug use among youth placed in juvenile facilities may be three times higher
than the general population group. Between 7 and 9 million children in the general
population group have serious emotional problems and 70 percent to 80 percent of
them receive no appropriate mental health services, it is suggested for many youths
in the juvenile justice system this has become the treatment center of last resort,
Research has indicated minorities differ out of the system of mental health to delin-
quency on ambiguous cultural expectations.

As a Nation we need to talk about these issues around the seriously emotionally
disturbed mentally ill youth. Delinquency is an issue of public concern. This issue
needs to become an issue of public interest. Youth who are seriously and emotional-
ly disturbed in the juvenile justice system are children who receive mass amounts of
public sector resources and are among the severely disturbed members of the com-
munity. Community-based mental health services for these and other groups of
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multi-problem children who receive public sector resources have typically been
absent, limited in scope or inappropriate. In most places in the country, there is also
no coordinated State right systems to facilitate development of interagency services
that monitor the effect of services. As a result, this high risk and costly population
of seriously disturbed and mentally ill troubled children receive protection, supervi-
sion, and education, little or no mental health treatment. This would be analogous
to a diabetic child receiving the same services without insulin.

To deal comprehensively with the problems addressing the mental health needs of
youth in the Juvenile Justice System the reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention Act must take the lead and declare policy of Congress
to provide: necessary resources to fund demonstration projects and evaluation of such
projects with convene conferences; to provide technical assistance for communities
and develop approaches in services and family preservation; allocate research to iden-
tify the prevalence of mental health and other mental health problems of co-morbidi-
ty. Further declared policy of Congress should be to encourage leadership and devel-
op coordination and assure; (1) Resources of the juvenile justice, mental health, sub-
stance abuse, social service, education and other systems must be developed and in-
tegrated to assure that children with severe emotional disturbance or mental illness
in the juvenile justice system are identified, assessed and appropriately treated; (2)
No child or adolescent should be placed or detained in juvenile detention facilities
or correctional facilities or any other unduly restrictive care because of mental ill-
ness or severe emotional disturbance and/or the lack of appropriate services; (3)
Every child or adolescent, in or diverted from the juvenile justice system with seri-
ous emotional disturbance or mental illness should receive all needed mental health
services wherever they reside; (4) Every child or adolescent suffering from mental
illness or serious emotional disturbance whose offenses are directly related to that
condition should be treated in a manner and setting appropriate to his or her condi-
tion; (5) Police should never have to charge a child in order to get them mental
health services.

By ignoring the needs of these special needs offenders, we are not preserving the
integrity of the juvenile justice system, the net result we will be contributing to a
system that more children are being harmed by the system designed to protect
them. Far more children with more complex problems will be in care in the 1990's
at a far greater cost and with a completely unprepared children's system. These
children, it is written, will be in the juvenile justice system, on the streets, and on
welfare rolls.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you. As far as I know the Act as it
is written now does not address any particular need of mental ill-
ness.

Let's discuss a little bit more mental illness and to what degree
because there's emotional problems that can be dealt with and
there are some other mental illnesses that are much more compli-
cated than just dealing with the emotional problems, if you can
deal with the emotional problems, you know.

Ms. ROTENBURG. Right. There are children who are seriously
emotionally disturbed. Their symptoms are very similar to those of
children who have neurobiological disorders, which is frequently
manifested in their acting-out behavior. There is a very thin line.

I would like to add, may I just-
Chairman MARTINEZ. Sure.
Ms. ROTENBURG. I have worked many years in the adult system

of mental health. What bothers me greatly is that the problems ex-
perienced with the adult mentally ill offenders are the same as ex-
perienced with the children.

A child in detention who exhibits acting-out behavior may not be
perceived as an emotionally disturbed or mentally ill child. Instead,
it is believed that this behavior can be controlled and thus the
action to control the child is inappropriate. The same situation is
found in the adult system, where one of the problems in handling
acting-out behavior is the lack of training. People are not dealt
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with in an appropriate manner. Detention facilities have to be
aware of the liability issues.

Chairman MARTINEZ. The whole idea is that those people with
those problems that are different than the problems from which
most young people suffer, can be better handled by professionals
trained in mental health problems.

Ms. ROTENBURG. Absolutely.
Chairman MARTINEZ. As you have said, sometimes the problems

are misdiagnosed. Different reasons are used to explain why the
young person's acting a certain way, and then the real reason is
not dealt with adequately or in the right way and that young
person is not helped.

As it is now, there are places like Boys Town where they do rec-
ognize these problems and they do have special counselors to deal
with them.

Ms. ROTENBURG. Very good program.
Chairman MARTINEZ. And they come in and do help. In a lot of

other places you don't have that. There are a lot of very good com-
munity based organizations, like Amoja House, that do not have
that.

Ms. ROTENBURG. We have Echo Glen, which is what I would con-
sider a very excellent facility, in my own State. Yet, because of
lack of resources, and this is very common with detention facilities,
they are letting kids out on the street who are seriously emotional-
ly disturbed and mentally ill. There are no resources in the com-
munity.

Also, let me bring up the fact that a lot of places are mixing to-
gether these special needs kids. The adult system has learned that,
as far as with lockup, you have to separate this very vulnerable
population group from the general population group. It can be
brutal and very harmful to the children.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Are there places now in the adult lockups
where they are separating out that particular group?

Ms. ROTENBURG. Yes. Well, I would say that it's spotty, it's very
spotty. Very spotty.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Some people are way ahead of others.
Ms. ROTENBURG. Yes, yes.
Chairman MARTINEZ. But right now as far as this Act is con-

cerned, I am more concerned with the juveniles. Your feeling is
that there has to be something in the Act to address mental
health?

Ms. ROTENBURG. Absolutely.
Chairman MARTINEZ. That creates another problem. Here again,

as Father Peter says, you can't mandate things without providing
the resources to carry out the mandate, and so there would have to
be I guess, targeted dollars to provide money to assess, number one,
and then after the assessment to provide extra funding for that
particular population.

Ms. ROTENBURG. I have heard of many juvenile courts in which
judges have no alternative tq placing the child in detention; there
are no other resources for the seriously emotionally disturbed. This
attitude is, "Oh, send them out of State."

Chairman MARTINEZ. How often is it that a judge will recognize
somebody that really has a mental health problem?
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Ms. ROTENBURG. There are different counties and different
judges who run their courts differently. I cannot answer that exact-
ly, but I would say that it's important that information be brought
into-the court.

Chairman MARTINEZ. I went to a national juvenile judges' confer-
ence, and the people I met there are very conscientious and very
concerned about what happens to the juveniles through their
courts. The problem is that they are not always in a position to rec-
ommend an evaluation or assessment of the young person. They
have got to be given a tool by which to do that-some way to assess
that young person because a lot of the kids come to these communi-
ty based organizations without being referred by the court system.

metimes they are just referred by a police department and police
departments in most cases aren't going to be in a position to be
able to evaluate or assess that young person so it's got to be done
in that facility.

I guess what we are looking at is making sure that some consid-
eration or some assessment is done to determine these particular
special needs of the clientele that they have.

Ms. ROTENBURG. Exactly.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Very good. I think you are right because

mental illness is a very illusive thing for a lot of people. A lot of
people can't imagine that there is something that can be done for
this particular behavior pattern. They think a good spanking will
take care of the problem or some real harsh punishment will take
care of it. They don't understand that it's much deeper than that
and someone is not going to respond to that type of behavior except
to develop a worse behavioral pattern.

See, there are a lot of people- that unless they experience the dis-
orientation from a mental problem, the can't imagine anybody
can have a mental problem. They believe that it's all an act or it's
all a behavior thing. It's hard to convince a lot of people that there
is this particular need for mental health services.

I guess that's our responsibility is to make sure that they under-
stand it and I guess education is the best way to do it.

We need you and your organizations to help us educate many
people in Congress that there may be a special need here that we
have got to address in the Act.

Does the crime commission actually have a certain responsibility
that comes from the State?

Ms. ROTENBURG. That's right.
Chairman MARTINEZ. And this is one of the problems we face:

There are certain rights that States have and certain jurisdictions
that are theirs and we have to somehow provide through our bill,
which is a catalyst for providing moneys to you to do the things
that you do, without infringing on those jurisdictions. It has always
been in the form of a carrot-you do this, we'll give you this, but
here you stated very early-I forget, it's 350,000 some dollars-you
have as a State need greater than that.

What can we do to maybe cause some kind of a targeting or some
kind of a discretionary program that, because there is a greater
need here, transfer funds from some places of less need. How?

Ms. LOVELL. I think discretionary funding is one way to address
that.
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One of the problems is that most of the States receiving the min-
imum allocation lack a staff to adequately support the mandates of
the Act. A certain amount of the money, 71/2 percent, can be used
for administration. In Nebraska, that's about $23,000.

So we have to come in and the State matches Federal funds with
the equal resources. In my agency, for instance, part of my salary
is used for a match. Part of our fiscal analyst salary is used for a
match. We don't have a full-time juvenile specialist in our State.
We have just had some transfer by the appropriations committee
and a change in legislation that will allow us to have a full-time
juvenile justice specialist in July.

But the States that receive the minimum allocation really need
administrative help in supporting the mandates of the program. It
would be helpful if, for instance, we could use up to 10 percent of
the money for administration. In a State like Nebraska that would
be a windfall; larger States get millions and millions of dollars as a
result of this Act. One thing I would suggest that Congress look at
in the reauthorization of this is setting a minimum amount for all
States to receive in the area of administration.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Administration.
Ms. LOVELL. We certainly don't want to squander money in ad-

ministration.
Chairman MARTINEZ. No, but realistically $23,000 isn't going to

do very much for you.
Ms. LOVELL. That certainly doesn't. We have people in our office

who care very deeply about these issues, but our agency is responsi-
ble for a lot of other things, too. We have the Law Enforcement
Training Center. We also administer the block grant money to ad-
dress drug issues.

There are people in my office who volunteer their time. It's not
part of their job description to work on the juvenile issues.

As I said, if things go well this legislative session we will have a
commitment from the State legislature to hire a full-time juvenile
justice specialist. It will be the first time in 5 or 6 years that we
have had one in the State.

Chairman MARTINEZ. In the JTPA we increased the administra-
tion funding there for a similar reason. It was a percentage of the
total allotment to the State but we put a flexible trigger in there
for those States that had a minimum, those States that would re-
quire more administration.

Ms. LOVELL. That's right. There is an economy of scale at some
point.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Yes, and so I think that we could do that
for this too.

Ms. LOVELL. I think that would be very helpful. We are not the
only State that has this problem. I know that right now, Maine is
at risk of losing their juvenile specialist.

It would be very beneficial to have one full-time person in the
State to deal with this issue.

As I said, we try to pull things together. I think that there is a
lot of cooperation in Nebraska, as Congressman Barrett knows. We
work closely with Carol and the people in her office and with the
advocacy groups like Voices for Children. We really pull together
and try to look for solutions for this.
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Chairman MARTINEZ. Wouldn't it help you too in finding other
methods of funding and forms of funding?

Ms. LOVELL. Absolutely. It would help if we had one person that
could work full time on it. As I said, we will in July. But this is
because of scraping and fighting and finding someone in the legis-
lature who realizes how important this is. We have finally been
able to get to this point.

Chairman MARTINEZ. I'll see how my colleagues feel about that
but I think you have made a good case for it.

Congressman Barrett?
Mr. BARRET. I'll hold you to that last statement.
Chairman MARTINEZ. I realize in a lot of the programs we put

forth we're so concerned about the program dollar going for the
use intended by the law because there have been abuses in the past
where there was no set amount for administration, that we forget
there is money needed for administration.

Ms. LOVELL. The minimum allocation States have a lot of difficul-
ty; these are often the States that have problems.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Yes, we could tie it to that. That's where
the crisis really is--Mr. Barrett.

Mr. BARRETT. Thank you. Jean, I am glad to hear you tell us fi-
nally that L.B. 447 is now in final reading and will probably.
become a reality.

That is the Youth Planning Commission and I guess my question
is that takes it out of the, that takes the present situation out of
the Department of Corrections, which is mainly involved with
adult situations. Where does it go now physically? Does it go into
the Crime Cmmission?

Ms. LOVELf.. Actually, the original intent of the bill would have
created a new agency. The legislature, however, backed off on that
because of the fiscal problem that the State is facing right now.

This Youth Planning Commission would develop an implementa-
tion plan for a Department of Youth Services. It is the intent of
this legislation that Nebraska will eventually have a Department
of Youth Services. The C/immission is made up of representatives
of the State government and some other groups that are most often
involved in these issues. The Director of the Department of Social
Services, the Director of the Department of Institutions, the person
in my position, the Director of the Department of Corrections, the
Department of Education are some of the people that will be on
that Commission. This is a commission where the people will have
hands-on involvement. You are not going to be able to send some-
one else to represent you if you want to have input.

We are bringing together an additional group of people, includ-
ing representatives from the court system and advocacy groups, to
look closely at what we are doing in Nebraska. We must separate
juveniles from adults if they are going to get the attention that
they deserve, which is the purpose of this legislation.

The Department of Corrections, for instance, cares very much
about what happens to juveniles. But when they determine how to
use their resources, they are going to channel those resources
toward the people that are suing them in Federal court, who aren't
usually children.



160

Mr. BARRETT. But because of the lack of funding, at least for now
will this become your stepchild? The Crime Commission?

Ms. LOVELL. Yes. Yes, the Commission will have a full-time plan-
ner or someone will be hired full time to assist the Commission.
This person will be housed under the current Commission but will
work independently.

Neither I nor the Commission will direct their work, but they
will be housed under the Crime Commission.

Mr. BARRETT. Okay. Now we have talked a little about the
$325,000 Federal grant and the $23,000 which is allowed for admin-
istration.

Give me a breakdown on the rest. How was that $325,000 spent?
Ms. LOVELL. Well, two-thirds of it must go to local projects.
Mr. BARRETT. Local projects.
Ms. LOVELL. As I said, last year Nebraska was not able to meet

the jail removal mandates. We assured the Federal Government, in
order to receive money, that we would spend all of our money in
jail removal. So the money that we received last year went entirely
to jail removal projects. In this district the majority of it went to
the juvenile detention facility in Scottsbluff County, which is a new
facility that opened last July.

They received a little in excess of $100,000.
The facility in northeast Nebraska, in Wayne, Nebraska, which

is a detention facility, received some of that funding.
The freeway station in Lincoln, Nebraska received about $10,000,

which is not a substantial amount. We had to direct all the re-
sources to jail removal projects, which are detention facilities. So
this is where it went last year.

On the State level, we funded two positions for intensive supervi-
sion for juvenile probation, two intensive supervision probation of-
ficers, one in the eastern part of the State and one in the western
part of the State. These probation officers monitor a small caseload
of up to 15 juveniles. They wear electronic bracelets, the children
on probation, but they would otherwise be locked up. This is where
the majority of the money went.

We also have a grant that provides for a full-time community
planner. This person just began last week and will work to help
communities develop their own special plan that meets their indi-
vidual needs.

You mentioned earlier about sending a van around to help com-
munities. I think in some ways that would be very good, but differ-
ent communities have different needs.

I think as Carol Stitt pointed out, in some communities there
may be a prosecutor who clearly understands how to handle a case
of abuse, but does not have the right investigative tools. The same
is true all over the State. Hopefully this community planner will
help each community identify their strengths and their needs and
also come up with a comprehensive plan to fund some of its
projects through the money received from the Federal Government
and the $500,000 from L.B. 663, which you sponsored.

Mr. BARRETT. Right, thank you.
Ms. Rotenburg, you are an attorney, are you not?
Ms. ROTENBURG. No, I am not.
Mr. BARRETT. You are not?
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Ms. ROTENBURG. No. I am sorry-no. Did I say-
Mr. BARRETT. No, you didn't. That's why I asked the question.
All right. You have been involved, what, for 8 years, did you say

in this kind of-or your present position?
Ms. ROTENBURG. I have been involved, yes, in advocacy for this

population group, yes.
Mr. BARRETT. What about the shared goal? I am very interested

in your testimony here. You are talking about fundamental to cre-
ating a proposition with a clear directive amendment in the Act
must be a shared goal.

What--can you embellish just a little bit on that to give these
kids treatment as being so important? As a shared goal, are you
talking about the public sector and the private sector or what are
we talking about?

Ms. ROTENBURG. Yes, I think I mentioned the shared goal with
the Alaska Youth Initiative. Out of the Alaska Youth Initiative
came interagency gate-keeping, flex-dollars and wrap-around serv-
ices. They were sending several of their kids out of the State for
services. Now they have brought them all back by using the wrap-
around services and also using the families, keeping the families
together.

When there are seriously emotionally disturbed and mentally ill
children, families frequently dismantle. This is not to say that the
families with such children, especially those with neurobiologicaI
disorders, are your typical bad guys. They very much want to keep
their families together. The parents with whom I have talked
around the country, the parents that are involved with our group
of parents belonging to the Coalition, would want their children at
home if there were resources for them.

Mr. BARRETT. It's all of that.
Ms. ROTENBURG. Yes.
Mr. BARRETT. And perhaps more.
Ms. ROTENBURG. And perhaps more, yes.
Mr. BARRETT. Yes. Okay, I guess finally in your remarks you also

talked about declaring a policy of Congress to provide and your
second point on the last page "and no child or adolescent shall be
placed or detained in juvenile detention facilities or correctional fa-
cilities or any other unduly restrictive care because of mental ill-
ness or severe emotional disturbance."

How do you see this operating? Is this something that you would
have to-

Ms. ROTENBURG. Is that number two?
Mr. BARRETT. Number two, yes.
Do you envision some kind of an evaluation service at perhaps

intake or what-I guess I wasn't tracking with you at that point.
Ms. ROTENBURG. Let me give you some background on these five

principles that I have presented here.
Participants in- the planning of the National Work Session,

which will take place in May, included several national associa-
tions.

Mr. BARRETT. Okay.
Ms. ROTENBURG. I could say freely that the majority of the asso-

ciations involved want to see diversion from detention, from
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lockup, for these children. There are different points at which this
can be made.

Mr. BARRETT. This would then be, referring to the five points
that you're talking about?

Ms. ROTENBURG. Number two.
Mr. BARRETT. On number two, okay.
Okay, thank you, very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Barrett.
First of all, I would like to say thank you to the last two wit-

nesses. Your testimony has helped us. You have made some good
points.

Secondly, I would like to thank Mr. Barrett for hosting us.
Lastly, I would like to thank all of Nebraska for being such a

great host and showing us such a great time while we're here and
helping educate us to some of the problems of Nebraska. We'll go
back to Congress now and with the help of Mr. Barrett and our col-
leagues try to devise a plan that will help us all.

Thank you.
[Whereupon, at 11:35, the hearing recessed, to reconvene at the

call of the Chair.]
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